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BOARD’'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS,

The Directors present the Annual Report of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (the “Company”
or “TRIL") along with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.
The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiaries has been referred to wherever
required.

1. Financial Results
(Rs. In lakh)
Standalone Consolidated
FY —-20-21 | FY—-19-20 | FY—-20-21 | FY - 19-20
Revenue 12,450 17,585 1,20,056 1,57,879
Other income 16,800 14,966 4,091 5,998
Total income 29,250 32,551 1,24,147 1,63,877
Expenses
Operating expenditure 16,993 24,030 72,802 1,22,277
Depreciation and amortization
expenses 217 192 20,934 17,251
Total Expenses
i 17,210 24222 | 43 736, 139,528
Profit before finance cost and tax
12,040 8329  30411| 24,349
Finance cost 21,108 28,496 60,058 60,186
Profit before tax (PBT) (9,068) (20,167) (29,647) (35,836)
Tax expense (568) (2,418) (686) (653)

rofit / (Loss) for the year
(9,636) | (22,585) | (34 333) | (36,489)

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the company - - {29,451) (36,256)
Non-Controlling Interest - - (882) (233)

Opening Balance of retained (73,552) (37,659)

earning (1,35,799) (99,543)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (9,636) (22,585) (29,451) (36,256)
Transferred from OCI to Retained

earnings on derecognition of - (13,308)

equity instruments - -

CIOSI_ng balance of retained (83,188) (73,552)
earnings

(1,65,250) | (1,35,799)




2. Dividend

In view of the loss incurred during the year under review, the Directors do not recommend any
dividend for the year 2020-21.

3. Transfer to Reserves

Your Directors do not recommend transferring any funds to reserves of the Company.

4, Company’s Performance

On a standalone basis, the revenue for FY 2020-21 was Rs. 12,450 lakhs, lower by 29% over the
previous year's revenue of Rs. 17,585 lakhs in FY 2019-20. The loss after tax attributable to
shareholders for FY 2020-21 was Rs. 9,636 Lakhs registering a reduction of 57% over the loss after
tax of Rs. 22,585 lakhs for FY 2019-20.

On a consolidated basis, the revenue for FY 2020-21 was Rs. 1,20,056 lakhs, lower by 24% over
the previous year’s revenue of Rs. 1,57,879 lakhs. The Loss attributable to shareholders and non-
controlling interests for FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 was Rs. 36,489 lakhs and Rs. 30,333 lakhs
respectively. The Loss attributable to shareholders for FY 2020-21 was Rs. 29,451 lakhs registering
a reduction of 19% over the Loss of Rs. 36,256 lakhs for FY 2019-20.

State of the Company’s Affairs;

Tata Realty & Infrastructure Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited, is in
the area of design, development and management of commercial assets and few residential projects.
Since its inception the Company has developed 16.7 mn. sq. ft. area and has ~11.7 mn. sq. ft. under
development and planning stage across 4 projects. The Company has leveraged its expertise in
project management to develop over 6.7 mn. sq. ft. of office campuses for Tata Consultancy Services
(TCS). Your Company also has ~0.1 mn. sq. ft. leasable area at Gurgaon mall.

5. Subsidiary Companies

As on March 31, 2021, the Company has 24 subsidiaries, 1 associate and 5 joint venture companies.
There has been no material change in the nature of the business of the subsidiaries.

During the year under review, the Company has acquired around 20.23% of Equity shares in Tata
Housing Development Company Limited and divested its stake in the SPV namely TRIL Bengaluru
Real Estate Four Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Hence, it ceases to be
the subsidiary of the Company.



Except as stated above, there were no other companies which have become or ceased to be the
Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies of the Company, during the year under review.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”), a statement
containing the salient features of financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries in Form AOC-1
is attached to the financial statements of the Company.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the
Company along with relevant documents and separate audited financial statements in respect of
subsidiaries are also available on the website of the Company i.e. www tatareaity.in.

6.
a)

b)

Covid-19 Pandemic Situation — Update on Operations

Impact of the CoVID-19 pandemic on business:
The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various activities due to ongoing Covid-19
pandemic posed various challenges to different aspects of the business during the year.

During the initial lockdown till early May 2020, activities at construction sites were fully
suspended with almost 1,000 workers remain at on-site camps on commercial construction
sites. On commercial properties, the complexes were closed with tenants working from home.
However, they continued to use resources on site like servers etc.

As the lockdown gradually eased, all properties reopened across states and most tenants
restarted partial operations. Almost all tenants have continued to pay rentals including
maintenance charges during the year, a testament to and acknowledgement of all the efforts
to provide services in these uncertain times. Occupancy levels have been sustained at almost
95% with minimal churn. Construction activities have also fully resumed at all sites.

A thorough exercise was undertaken to go through all refevant contracts, especially with
tenants, service providers and investors as applicable.

Ability to maintain operations including the factories/units/office spaces
functioning and closed down:

Construction sites: In Q1 there was significant stoppages / slowdown due to combination of
lockdown, movement restrictions of managerial staff as well as material, and temporary
movement of ~50% migrant fabour to native locations. However, from June itself, construction
across sites were restarted (the Company being one of the developers to restart in many
regions) and have been well sustained, resulting in meeting most construction targets. Even
during the recent wave of Covid19 starting March 2021, construction has continued.



d)

Commercial office spaces: Services were kept functioning even during peak of lockdown by
obtaining necessary approvals & precautions, and uninterrupted access have been ensured to
tenants throughout the year.

Residential sales offices: On-site offices were reopened in an expedited manner as per local
guidelines in Q2, with disruption to sales minimized by supplanting site visits with digital
engagements with buyers.

Corporate offices: Work from home has been enabled and encouraged as much as possible,
although offices were gradually opened from 2nd half of Q2 to be used as needed.

Schedule, if any, for restarting the operations:

As described above, construction and commercial operations have been restarted from May
2021 as per guidelines issues by the Central Government, State Governments & Local
Authorities.

Steps taken to ensure smooth functioning of operations:

Clear SOPs have been prepared and implemented for construction activities and office
complexes, covering transport, social distancing, hygiene and basic do’s & don'ts. Necessary
arrangements have been made to provide sanitizers, spare face masks, PPE kits etc. for all
personnel. Checklists are being adhered to and regular reports circulated to leadership teams.
Contingency measures are in place for any detected cases, in collaboration with healthcare
facility providers. Regular planning meetings helped in reacting to changing situations and
taking rapid decisions. With the start of vaccination, measures are being taken to facilitate
vaccination for on-site eligible labour.

Before reopening of sites and offices, thorough sanitization and fumigation were carried out.
For tenants, in close coordination with 3rd party estate management firms, innovative new
technologies were installed like touch-less sanitizers and access gates. To facilitate work from
home for corporate staff, various steps were taken like enabling remote IT access, and
streamlining controls & approvals.

Estimation of the future impact of CoVID-19 on operations:

The leasing business from existing tenants has already rebounded and the outlook remains
strong in its ability to generate cash flows. Some ongoing discussions regarding new leases
have got deferred / slowed down. However, the underlying-term demand drivers & thus long-
term outlook for commercial space uptake remains positive in India overall, and our micro-
markets specifically. The Company has also signed select major new leases & contracts during
this phase, giving confidence in the ability to mitigate any medium-term impact and embark
on a sharp V-shaped recovery.



Some of the steps taken to make workplaces and properties suitable, related to hygiene,
automation, configuration etc., will gradually become permanent fixtures of the planning for
any new project. Finally, many companies have already confirmed moving back to offices
when possible, mitigating the impact of the current trend of work-from-home.

f) Impact of CoVID-19 on capital and financial resources, profitability, liquidity
position, ability to service debt, assets and internal financial reporting and control:
The Company has adequate liquidity in the form of cash and cash equivalents and undrawn
facilities. Given its well capitalised balance sheet and strong business profile, the Company
does not envisage any issues in raising additional funds during the year as and when required.

The Company has sound internal control measures for all its processes and there has been no
impact on the internal financial reporting and controls of the Company.

g) Impactof CoVID-19 on supply chain:
In the initial stages, restrictions on movement of materials across states hampered operations,
even resulting in sporadic price surges in certain materials like cement. However, over the
year these issues subsided, and the overall supply chain has improved with vendors able to
manufacture and transport material to sites. Other equipment like face-masks and sanitizers
also have been secured in sufficient quantity.

h) Existing contracts/agreements where non-fulfilment of the obligations by any
party will have significant impact on the listed entity’s business:
The Company is well positioned to fulfil its obligations and also does not foresee any significant
impact on the business due to non-fulfilment of the obligations by any party.

7. Industry Outlook and Future Prospects:

Overview of Real Estate Sector in India:

The Indian economy with its sound fundamentals will remain a hot spot on the global map in the
21st century, primarily driven by the attractive demographics of 1.3 billion population, both from a
supply and demand perspective. Younger population (median age in 2030 of 31.4 years v/s 40 years
in US and 42 years in China) acts as a great talent pool and will be the largest consumer segment.
With ~10 million people migrating to cities every year, the urban population will contribute 75% to
the GDP by 2030.

All these factors will boost the demand for real estate in India across segments. By 2030, India is
likely to need 25 million affordable housing units to meet the urban population’s demand. The
growing economy will drive the demand for commercial and retail space.



As per India Brand Equity Foundation (IBEF), the contribution of real estate sector was expected to
increase from current 6% to 13% of GDP by 2025 and the sector was expected to reach US$ 1
Trillion by 2030 from US$ 120 Billion in 2017 at an expected CAGR of 19.5% — however the current
economic downturn due to COVID 19 may will push growth by 1-2 years.

Indian real estate is expected to attract a substantial amount of FDI over the next two years, with
US$ 8 billion capital infusion by FY22.

Commercial real estate:

After the historic heights of 2019, 2020 was a difficult year for commercial office sector with
uncertainty, hesitation & anxiety leading to muted activity. Net leasing was approximately 26 mn.
sq. ft. with Bengaluru, Hyderabad & Delhi-NCR being top contributors totaling 68%. IT & related
sector (35%), then BFSI corporates (19%) & engineering & manufacturing (11%) drove demand.
Small (<10k sg. ft.) & medium- sized (10-50k sq. ft.) transactions led the way.

As construction activity resumed post lows of H1 2020, completions reached 39 mn. sq. ft. — 22%
less as compared to 2019. IT hubs of Bengaluru, Hyderabad & Pune recorded lower vacancy
compared to MMR & NCR, which accounted 55% vacancy. Rentals across all markets remained
stable except marginal increase in rental in Bengaluru. Rental collections were >97% for institutional
owners with less than 4% vacancy.

In terms of future outlook, overall office leasing volume will witness an uptick in 2021-22. Renewals
& terminations may impact rentals in immediate term, with rental recovery expected in only select
assets in a few micro markets in cities such as Bengaluru in H2 2021. In addition to growth driven
by ITeS/IT, BFSI, co-working, consulting and manufacturing, demand from new sectors like data
centres, e-commerce & technology will continue to rise. Post Covid, India is expected to emerge
stronger as preferred global outsourcing destination owing to availability of low-cost, knowledgeable
talent. This along with maturing REIT environment and recently relaxed FDI norms will see many
new companies planning foray into Indian markets.

REIT market opportunity is stil! significant and largely untapped in India. As of Aug 2019, US REITs
market capitalization was 96% of real estate market, 55% in Singapore and 51% in Japan — in
comparison, it was only 17% in India with only 3 listed REITs. Currently, top 7 cities of India have
~550 million sq ft Grade A office supply, of which 310 - 320 million sq ft is REIT-able. Regulatory
environment has also evolved favourably over the last few years.



Covid has triggered the world’s largest remote working experiment, but in spite of companies
committing to continue 25-40% WFH, long term impact likely to be 10-15%. Tenant expectations
and preferences have fundamentally shifted, with premium on environment, health & wellness to
ensure employee centricity. As occupiers look for mare flexible, cost-effective & on-demand spaces,
they will place increased emphasis on flexible lease terms as well as technology-enablement to boost
productivity.

Residential real estate:

In 2020, ~2.75 lacs units were sold which is 16% lower than previous year. We saw a 30% drop in
new launches, although prices primarily held steady with minor reductions in few markets. Inventory
overhand rose to 33 months with ~0.75 million unsold units. However, Q3 onwards saw a marked
uptick in the sector, driven by favorable policy environment of all-time low interest rates supported
by regional incentives like stamp duty waivers. Recovery in consumer sentiment was matched by
sales recovering to pre-Covid levels in key markets by Q4.

The move towards a more transparent and accountable way of working has continued, evidenced
by the accelerated consolidation in the market towards reputed, trust-worthy developers with strong
processes & fiscal situation. Post-Covid, homebuyers’ expectations have fundamentally shifted with
homes emerging as 'safe havens’ and ‘home offices, leading to preference for larger, digitally
enabled, ready-to-move-in units. Government’s policy push to affordable housing with its efforts
under Housing for All as well as infrastructure status will continue to drive traction in the affordable
housing segment.

Regulation in the Sector:
The following regulatory reforms provided much needed stimulus to the real estate sector, with
some showing upfront benefits and others to have an impact in the near future -

o Corporate tax reduced from 30% to 22% excluding all cess and surcharges, for domestic
companies — will help boost companies’ investment abilities.

s Historical lowest home loan rates esp. for the Affordable housing sector (under PMAY scheme)

s RBI's loan EMI moratorium & liquidity measures for developers & consumers — helped the sector
deal with initial COVID-caused lockdown challenges

» Passage of policies like National E-commerce Policy & Personal Data Protection Bill — boost to
localization of data and growth of Data Centre asset class

e External commercial borrowing relaxed for developers to obtain overseas funds

» Provision for reduction in minimum capitalisation for FDI investment from US $10 million to US
$5 million

e Section 10AA of the Income Tax Act, units in SEZs get a phased tax-holiday for a period of 15
years; However, under the SEZ Sunset clause this benefit was available to only those units that
start operations before 31st March 2020



» GST on under-construction properties outside the affordable segment were revised to 5% with
no Input Tax Credit (ITC) and 1% without ITC for affordable housing properties

*Sources: RBI Annual report, IBEF, Anarock, JLL, PropEquity, Media reports, Press articles
INFRASTRUCTURE:

The year 2020-21 was the year in which the Company made significant progress towards completion
of under construction assets in its Infrastructure Business. All the Road Projects became operational,
and for the two under construction road assets the Company had applied for completion certificate
and are hopeful to get the same by July'21. The Company achieved the financial closure of the Pune
metro fine 3 project in January 2021 and significant part of the land acquisition was completed in
the financial year 2020-21. Further, the Company continued to complete construction of the
Dharamshala ropeway project despite challenges. The Company also sold its stake in the Manali
ropeway project during the year thus achieving a major milestone in the corporate strategy.

At the start of financial year, the country had to face a complete lockdown due to the rise of COVID
pandemic, disrupting the tolling and stoppage of construction activity on Infrastructure assets. Post
the lifting of lockdown, toll collection on its road assets was muted for few months as was the case
with most of the road assets across India. Post September the normalcy returned, and all its road
assets started collecting toll at par or even more than the pre covid toll collection. However, the
period prior to the financial year end saw incidence of the second wave, wider spread of the outbreak
of novel Coronavirus and consequent mini lockdowns/ lockdowns/ restrictions imposed in several
states, causing adverse impact on toll collection and pace of construction activity.

In the coming financial year, the Company expects to get the completion certificate of the two under
construction road assets, start of commercial operation of Dharamshala ropeway project and starting
the construction post the declaration of appointed date of Pune Metro project.

Lastly, there are clear signs that there would be increased impetus to development of infrastructure
and large investment requirements in the ensuing years and the Company is well poised to
participate in these opportunities. In the coming year Company would also be focusing on
completing /developing its existing Projects and monetise its operational projects.

8. Share Capital and Other Securities:
A. Share Capital:
During the year under review, the Company has allotted 60,00,00,000 (Sixty Crore) Equity Shares of

Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) to Tata Sons Private Limited, Holding Company
on April 09, 2020, by way of rights issLe.






Short term Bank
Facilities — Non- | CARE
Fund and Fund | Ratings
Based (proposed)

CARE A 1+ ¥ 115 crore Re-affirmed

9. Depository System

Your Company's Equity Shares are in dematerialization (Demat) form done through National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The ISIN as allotted by NSDL is INE371K01016. In case of
any guery, you may please get in touch with the Company or the Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e.
Kfin Technologies Private Limited, Address: Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad — 500 032, Phone:; +91 040 6716 2222 and +91 40
6716 1602. As on March 31, 2021, 161,73,07,692 (100%) of Equity Shares of your Company were
held in dematerialized form.

10. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory, cost and secretaria
auditors, including the audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting by the statutory
auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant board committees, including
the audit committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were
adequate and effective during FY 2020-21.

Pursuant fo Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and
ability, confirm that:

i.  In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there are no material departures;

ii. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the
Company for that period;

iii. They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv.  They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v. They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectivelv:



vi.  They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

11. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, the Company’s composition of Board was an adequate blend of
Executive, Non-executive and Independent Directors. In addition to provisions of the Act the
governance guidelines adopted by the Board, set out the role and responsibility of the Board,
composition of the Board and code of conduct.

As on April 01, 2020, Board of your Company consists of following Members:

Mr. Banmali Agrawala - Chairman and Non- Executive Director;
Mr. Sanjay Dutt - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer;
Mr. Farokh Subedar - Non- Executive Director;

Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan - Independent Director;

Mrs. Neera Saggi - Independent Director; and

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal - Non- Executive Director.

A o

As on March 31, 2021, Board of your Company consists of following Members:

Mr. Banmali Agrawala - Chairman and Non- Executive Director;
Mr. Sanjay Dutt - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer;
Mr. Farokh Subedar - Non- Executive Director;

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal - Non- Executive Director.

o

During the year under review, Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan and Mrs. Neera Saggi had completed their
second term as Independent Directors of the Company on March 25, 2021. They have been the
pillars of this organisation and the Company appreciate their contribution to the organisation. The
Company also thanked them for sharing their professional knowledge and expertise during their
tenure and uploading the Tata values.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs on February 19, 2021, had notified the amendments to the
Companies (Specification of definitions details) Rules, 2014, pursuant to the which the Company will
not be considered as Listed Company as per the provisions of the Act. Accordingly, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 149, 177 and 178 read along with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company being an unlisted Company now and a wholly
owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited will not be required to re-constitute the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and appoint Independent Directors.



Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal, Director of the Company retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for his re-appointment forms part
of the Notice.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on March 19, 2021 has approved the remuneration to be paid to
Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director (MD)} & Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) for next 2 Financial Year
i.e. April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2023 and a resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for the same
farms part of the Notice. Below mentioned is additional information as required as per the Schedule
V of the Act for FY 2020-21.:

¥ Lakhs
Performance
Benefits Details Linked
Name of Per uisités Pension | of fixed Incentive Commiss Incentive
- Salary 9 compen | along with : Remunera | ESPS | Total
Director and ion X
ent the tion
Allowances
performance
criteria*
Mr.
Sanjay
Dutt 164.81 159,88 0 142.97 247.46 0 0 0 715.11
{MD and
CEQ)

60% of above mentioned remuneration was recovered from Tata Housing Development Company Limited, an
Associate Company.
*Based on provisions made.

Services of the Managing Director may be terminated by either party, giving the other party three
months’ notice or the Company paying three months’ salary in lieu thereof. As per provision of
severance pay, the Company would pay three month’s salary.

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committees of the
Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the
Company as on March 31, 2021 are Mr. Sanjay Dutt, MD & CEO of the Company (appointed with
effect from April 01, 2018 for a period of 5 years), Mr. Sanjay Sharma, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company (appointed with effect from September 10, 2018) and Mr. Sudhakar Shetty, Company
Secretary of the Company (appointed with effect from December 01, 2019).




12. Number of Meetings of the Board

There were elven meetings of the Board, held during the year under review. The said meetings were
held on April 16, 2020, June 26, 2020, July 06, 2020, July 21, 2020, August 24, 2020, September
02, 2020, October 01, 2020, October 23, 2020, January 13, 2020, February 24, 2021 and March 19,
2021. Details of the Directors’ attendance are given herein befow:

Name of the Board Member Board Meeting Attendance
Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Chairman 11 out of 11
Mr. Sanjay Dutt 11 out of 11
Mr. Farokh Subedar 11 outof 11
Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan 11 out of 11
Mrs. Neera Saggi 11 outof 11
Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal 9 out of 11

13. Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors have carried out an annua! evaluation of its own performance, board
committees, and individual directors including Chairman pursuant to the provisions of the Act.

The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the directors
onh the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board
processes, information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the
committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness
of committee meetings, etc.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of individual
directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and
committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive
contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.

The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017.

As the tenure of the Independent Directors were completed on March 25, 2021, the requirement for
holding a separate meeting of independent directors by March 31, 2021 is not applicable to the
Company.



In the board meeting and meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance
of the board, its committees, and individual directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of
independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being
evaluated.

14. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Earlier the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan, Chairman
of the Committee, Mr. Banmali Agrawala and Mrs. Neera Saggi, as its Members. Owing to retirement
of Independent Directors of the Company on March 25, 2021, the Committee consist of only one
member i.e. Mr. Banmali Agrawala and was dismantled by the Board of Directors at its meeting held
on May 24, 2021 w.e.f, April 01, 2021.

The Committee met three times during the year under review. The said meetings were held on June
26, 2020, July 06, 2020 and March 19, 2021. The details of the presence of Members are given
herein below:

Name of the Member NRC Meeting Attendance
Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan, Chairman 3outof 3
Mr. Banmali Agrawala 3out of 3
Mrs. Neera Saggi 3outof3

The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in
Section 178(3) of the Act has been annexed to this report at "Annexure A- (a) and (b)” and is also
available on www.tatarealty.in.

15. Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and
external consultants and the reviews performed by management and the relevant Board
Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal
financial controls were adequate and effective.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operation was observed. In the opinion of the Auditors of the Company, there exist an adequate
internal control procedure commensurate with the size of the Company.



monitoring & reporting to provide management, the board of directors with the assurance that key
risks are being effectively managed. As per the said Policy, a Risk Management Steering Committee
('RMSC") comprising of MD & CEO and Functional Heads has been formed. The charter and policies
provide the overall framework for Risk Management process which includes risk identification,
assessment, evaluation, treatment and other related process. The RMSC is the Apex Committee in
the RM Organization structure comprising of key decision makers within the Organization. It is
responsible for adopting and implementing the RM Framework across the Organization. They are
charged with the responsibility of taking decisions to manage the risks and also report about various
initiatives to the Board / Audit Committee and other stakeholders on a regular basis.

Based on said ERM framework, the risks identified by the Company are reviewed by the executive
team comprising of employees of the Company including the top management. Risk identification is
a continual process and appropriate mitigation plans are deployed as required. All the risks are
evaluated on the count of occurrence and impact. Based on the risk ranking, high risk areas are
identified and presented to the Audit Committee.

20. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Your Company falls within the scope of the definition “infrastructure company” as provided by the
Act. Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act (except
Section 186(1) of the Act) with regards to Loans, Guarantees and Investments,

21. Related Party Transactions

In line with the requirements of the Act, the Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party
Transactions (Policy), to ensure due and proper compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Act. The said Policy also provides guidance for entering into transactions with related parties to
ensure that a proper procedure is defined and followed for approval / ratification and reporting of
transactions as applicable, between the Company and its related parties.

During the year under review, all contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the
Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and
on an arm’s length basis and did not attract the provisions of Section 188 (1) of the Act. Given that
all the transactions entered by the Company during the year under review were at arm’s length the
Company and in the ordinary course of business and that none of the transactions were material in
nature, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act
in Form No. AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for financial year 2020-21 and hence does not
form part of this report.



16. Audit Committee

Earlier the Audit Committee consists of Mr. Farokh N. Subedar, Chairman, Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan
— Independent Director, Mrs. Neera Saggi - — Independent Director. Owing to retirement of
Independent Directors of the Company on March 25, 2021, the Committee consist of only one
member i.e, Mr, Farokh N, Subedar, Chairman of the Committee and was dismantled by the Board
of Directors at its meeting held on May 24, 2021 w.e.f. April 01, 2021.

The Committee met 8 (Eight) times during the year under review. The said meetings were held on
April 16, 2020, June 26, 2020, July 06, 2020, August 24, 2020, October 23, 2020, November 04,
2020, February 24, 2021 and March 19, 2021. The details of the attendance of Members are given
herein below:

Name of the Member Audit Meeting Attendance |
Mr. Farokh Subedar, Chairman 8 out of 8
Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan 8 out of 8
Mrs. Neera Saggi 8 out of 8

17. Auditors

The Shareholders of the Company at their Tenth Annuali General Meeting held on
August 24, 2017, had appointed M/s. Deloitte Huskins and Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 years commencing till the conclusion of fifteenth
AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2022. The requirement to place the matter relating to
appointment of auditors for ratification by Members at every AGM has been done away by the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being
proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the ensuing AGM.

18. Auditor’'s Report and Secretarial Audit Report

The statutory auditor’s report and the secretarial audit report do not contain any qualifications,
reservations, or adverse remarks or disclaimer. Secretarial audit report is attached to this report as
Annexure B.

19. Risk Management

The Company is governed by the Risk Management Charter and Policy Documents. An integrated
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Charter & Policy has been developed with the objective of
establishing a common understanding & methodology for identifying, assessing, responding,



monitoring & reporting to provide management, the board of directors with the assurance that key
risks are being effectively managed. As per the said Policy, a Risk Management Steering Committee
{'RMSC") comprising of MD & CEO and Functional Heads has been formed. The charter and policies
provide the overall framework for Risk Management process which includes risk identification,
assessment, evaluation, treatment and other related process. The RMSC is the Apex Committee in
the RM Organization structure comprising of key decision makers within the Organization. It is
responsible for adopting and implementing the RM Framework across the Organization. They are
charged with the responsibility of taking decisions to manage the risks and also report about various
initiatives to the Board / Audit Committee and other stakeholders on a regular basis.

Based on said ERM framewaork, the risks identified by the Company are reviewed by the executive
team comprising of employees of the Company including the top management. Risk identification is
a continual process and appropriate mitigation plans are deployed as required. All the risks are
evaluated on the count of occurrence and impact. Based on the risk ranking, high risk areas are
identified and presented to the Audit Committee.

20. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Your Company falls within the scope of the definition “infrastructure company” as provided by the
Act. Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act (except
Section 186(1) of the Act) with regards to Loans, Guarantees and Investments.

21. Related Party Transactions

In line with the requirements of the Act, the Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party
Transactions (Policy), to ensure due and proper compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Act. The said Policy also provides guidance for entering into transactions with related parties to
ensure that a proper procedure is defined and followed for approval / ratification and reporting of
transactions as applicable, between the Company and its related parties.

During the year under review, all contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the
Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and
on an arm’s length basis and did not attract the provisions of Section 188 (1) of the Act. Given that
all the transactions entered by the Company during the year under review were at arm’s length the
Company and in the ordinary course of business and that none of the transactions were material in
nature, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act
in Form No. AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for financial year 2020-21 and hence does not
form part of this report.



22, Corporate Social Responsibility

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company are set out in
Annexure C. However, owing to the losses as per the calculation of net profit under Section 198 of
the Act no contribution was made during the year under review towards CSR activities. The
disclosures as required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014
are set out in Annexure D of this report.

During the year under review, the CSR Committee consists of Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Chairman of
the Committee, Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan and Mr. Sanjay Dutt, as its Members. The Ministry of
Corporate Affairs on January 22, 2021 has notified the provisions of sections Companies
(Amendment) Act, 2020, pursuant to which Section 135(9) has been inserted in the Act, wherein if
the amount required to be spent by a company as CSR Expenditure does not exceed fifty lakh
rupees, the requirement for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall not
be applicable and the functions of CSR Committee provided under this section shall, in such cases,
be discharged by the Board of Directors of the company. Owing to which the Board of Directors at
its meeting held on May 24, 2021, dismantled the CSR Committee w.e.f. April 01, 2021.

The CSR policy is available on website of the Company i.e. www.tatarealty.in.

23. Annual Return

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder,
the annual return for FY 2020-21 in the prescribed Form No. MGT-7 shall also be placed on the
website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in.

24. Particulars of Employees

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the
Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 is annexed to the Report as Part A of Annexure F.

The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the
particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is
provided in Part B of Annexure F, In terms of proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act, the Report and
Accounts are being sent to the shareholders excluding Part B of Annexure F. The said Statement is
also open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. Any member interested in
obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary Nnne nf the emnlayees listed in
the said Annexure are related to any Director of the Company.



25. Disclosure Requirements

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.

26. Deposits from Public

During the year under the review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as
such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on
the date of the balance sheet.

27. Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Qutgo

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with the Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the “Annexure E” to this report.

28. Cost Auditors

Your Board has appointed M/s. Kishore Bhatia & Associates, (Firm Registration No 00294), Practicing
Cost Accountant as Cost Auditors of the Company for conducting cost audit for the FY 20-21. A
resolution seeking approval of the members for ratifying the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors for FY 2021-22 is provided in the Notice to the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

As required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company confirms that it
has prepared and maintained cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

29. Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulator or Courts or
Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status and Company’s Operations in Future

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any regulators
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operation in future.



30. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company and to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statements relates and the date of this report.

31. Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on
Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace in line with the provisions
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and the rules framed there under for Prevention and Redressal of complaints of Sexual Harassment
at workplace.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committee (POSH) ("Internal Complaints Committee™) is in place
as per the policy and provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. There were no complaints relating to sexual harassment,
pending at the beginning of financial year, received during the year and pending as on the end of
the Financial Year 2020-21.

32. Vigil Mechanism

The Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism Policy (“the Policy”), under Section 177 of the Act
with a view to provide a mechanism for employees and Directors of the Company to approach the
Ethics Counsellor to ensure adequate safeguards against victimisation. This policy is also placed on
the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in and would help to create an environment where
individuals feel free and secure to raise an alarm where they see a problem. It wilt also ensure that
complainant(s) are protected from retribution, whether within or outside the organization and makes
provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional
cases. We confirm that during the financial year 2020-2021, no employee of the Company was
denied access to the Chairman of Audit Committee. Further, one Whistle-blower complaint was
received by the Company which was considered as non-material after following the due process of
full investigation of the issue. The Board believes that there is no material impact of any such open
matter on March 31, 2021, in the financial statements of the company.
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By order of the Board of Directors
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
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Annexure A (a.)

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND
OTHER EMPLOYEES

The philosophy for remuneration of directors, Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP”) and all
other employees of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited ("Company”) is based on the
commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The remuneration policy is
aligned to this philosophy.

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”} and Clause 49(IV)(B)(1) of the Equity Listing Agreement
("Listing Agreement”). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions of law and
this remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail and the company shall abide
by the applicable law. While formulating this policy, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee ("NRC") has considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act,
which are as under:

"(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

(c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senjor management involves
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals”

Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:

« Remuneration for independent directors and non-independent non-executive
directors

0 Independent directors ("ID”) and non-independent non-executive directors ("NED") may
be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of which
they may be members) and commission within regulatory limits.

0 Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will
be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.




o Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the company (taking
into consideration the challenges faced by the company and its future growth imperatives).

o Overall remuneration should be reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/
industry/ company’s operations and the company’s capacity to pay the remuneration.

o Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices.
0 Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.

o The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by the
NRC to the Board based on company performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder
value creation and any other significant qualitative parameters as may be decided by the
Board.

0 The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each director based
upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors including
attendance and time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual contributions
at the meetings and contributions made by directors other than in meetings.

o In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the company may pay to any director such
fair and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while
performing his/ her role as a director of the company. This could include reasonable
expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board/ Board committee meetings,
general meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders/ creditors/
management, site visits, induction and training (organized by the company for directors)
and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the furtherance of his/
her duties as a director.

« Remuneration for managing director ("MD")/ executive directors ("ED")/
KMP/ rest of the employees?

0 The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and
qualified individuals suitable for every role. Hence remuneration should be:

= Market competitive (market for every role is defined as companies from which the
company attracts talent or companies to which the company loses talent)
= Driven by the role played by the individual,

» Reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company’s
operations and the company’s capacity to pay,



IExcudes employees covered by any long term settlements or specific term contracts. The remuneration
far these employees would be driven by the respective long term settlements or contracts.

Consistent with recognized best practices and
Aligned to any regulatory requirements.

o In terms of remuneration mix or composition,

The remuneration mix for the MD/ EDs is as per the contract approved by the
shareholders. In case of any change, the same would require the approval of the
shareholders.

Basic/ fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income
in line with their skills and experience.

In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company provides employees with certain
perquisites, allowances and benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer
scope for savings and tax optimization, where possible. The company also provides all
employees with a social security net {subject to limits) by covering medical expenses
and hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death
and dismemberment through personal accident insurance.

The company provides retirement benefits as applicable.

[In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided
above, the company provides MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of commission,
calculated with reference to the net profits of the company in a particular financial year,
as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in Section
197 of the Act. The specific amount payabie to the MD/ EDs would be based on

performance as evaluated by the Board or the NRC and approved by the Board.]?
2 To be retained if Commission is provided to MD/ EDs

[In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided
above, the company provides MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of an annual incentive
remuneration/ performance linked bonus subject to the achievement of certain
performance criteria and such cther parameters as may be considered appropriate from
time to time by the Board. An indicative list of



factors that may be considered for determination of the extent of this component are:

v' Company performance on certain defined qualitative and quantitative
parameters as may be decided by the Board from time to time,
v Industry benchmarks of remuneration,

v Performance of the individual.]?
* To be retained only if Commission is not provided to MD/ EDs

The company provides the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus. The
performance linked bonus would be driven by the outcome of the performance appraisal
process and the performance of the company.

» Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable
for services rendered by such director in any other capacity unless:

a) The services rendered are of a professional nature; and
b) The NRC is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite gualification for the
practice of the profession.

« Policy implementation

The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board
is responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Managing Director & CEQ

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limitec

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman

DIN: 00120029

Date: June 17, 2021
Place: Mumbai



Annexure A (b.)

Payment of sitting fees and commission for Non-Executive Directors j

1. Introduction

This document (“Advisory Note™) serves as an advisory for payment of sitting fees and commission
to directors based on current and emerging best practices from both within and outside Tata
companies!. The document has been written from an Indian perspective and prepared keeping in
view the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) and the corporate governance requirements
as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") under Clause 49 of the Equity
Listing Agreement (“Clause 49”). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions of law and
this Advisory Note, the provisions of the law shall prevail and the company shall abide by the
applicable law. In case there are any changes in the law, companies will have to comply with the
applicable amended provisions.

2. Principles

The principles governing sitting fees and commission are as follows:

» Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the company (taking into
consideration the challenges faced by the company and its future growth imperatives).

» Overall remuneration should be reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/
industry/ company’s operations and the company’s capacity to pay.

e QOverall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices.
» The extent of remuneration should be as per the prescribed law.

¢ Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.

o ! For the purpose of this document, a “Tata company” shall mean Tata Sons Private Limited and every company of which Tata Sons Private
Limited or Tata Industries Limited or any company promoted by Tata Sons Private Limited or Tata Industries Limited is the promoter or in which
such companies whether singly or collectively hold directly or indirectly 26% or more of the paid up equity share capital or in which the
sharehalding of such companies represents the largest Indian hoiding apart from haldings of financial institutions/ mutual funds or a company
which is permitted by Tata Sons Private Limited to use the Tata brand/ name.



. Sitting Fees

The quantum of sitting fees payable per meeting is to be approved by the Board of directors
("Board”), based cn the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
("NRC"), and shall remain applicable uniess modified in the future by the Board based on the
recommendation of the NRC.

As per the Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, “A company may pay sitting fee to a director for attending meetings of the Board
or committees thereof, of such per meeting of the Board or committee thereof:

Provided that for independent directors and women directors, the sitting fee shall not be less
than the sitting fee payable to other directors.”

While determining the quantum of sitting fees payable, the Board may consider the quantum of
such fees paid in the past and follow a staggered approach for increasing the quantum upto the
prescribed limit.

In case of Tata companies that currently and in the foreseeable future do not have adequate
profits to pay commission (in the judgment of their respective Boards), it is suggested that
quantum of sitting fees balance the need to attract the right caliber of directors and the
company’s capacity to pay. The Board of such a company (supported by the NRC) may determine
sitting fees such that the total annual remuneration payable to each director (eligible for sitting
fees) amounts to at least Rupees six lakhs and does not exceed Rupees twelve lakhs. In case
the Board (supported by the NRC) is of the view that the total annual remuneration payable to
each director must exceed Rupees twelve lakhs, the matter would be referred to the NRC of the
parent/ holding company for consideration/ approval. The range of annual remuneration
provided herein are subject to review at least once in every 3 years by the Board (supported by
the NRQ).

However, it is recommended that the per meeting sitting fees payable to current employees of
Tata companies who are non-executive directors ("NED") other than woman directors on Boards
of Indian Tata companies not exceed Rs.20,000.

Sitting fees may vary for Board meetings and varicus committee meetings. Same amount of
sitting fees per meeting may be considered for Board meetings, Audit Committee meetings and
NRC meetings.



» The Board and committees should meet as often as it is necessary in the best interest of the
company. Normally, we have observed that the frequency of meetings are typically as follows:

o Board meetings: 4-8 in a year

o Audit Committee: 6-8 in a year

0 Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 3-4 in a year
o Committee of the Board: 6-8 in a year

0 Other Committees: 1-3 in a year

However, it is the Board/ committee’s discretion to have maore frequent meetings, if so required.

e If any Board / committee meeting is held solely for approving a procedural matter, the directors
present may, at their entire discretion, resolve not to take any sitting fee for that meeting.

4. Commission

+ The payment and computation of commission will be governed by guidelines issued in the past
in this regard

For Tata Realty and Infras! icture Limited

Managing Director & CEQ

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

N o

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Date: June 17, 2021
Place: Mumbai



D. A. KAMAT & Co

Practicing Company Secretaries

Office: B-208, Shreedham Classic, Next to St. Johns Universal School, S. V. Road, Goregaon (W),Mumbai 400 104

Contact: +91- 7208023169, +91- 9029661169 | office@csdakamat.com |[www.csdakamat.com

To,

The Members,
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited,
Mumbai

Subject: Secretarial Audit Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-21

We present herewith the Secretarial Audit Report for Tata Realty and Infrastructure Ltd, for the

Financial Year 2020-21 in terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. Our report of even

date is to be read along with the following;:

. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the

company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based

on our audit.

. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books

of Accounts of the company.

. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited

to the verification of procedures on test basis.

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted

the affairs of the company.



D. A. KAMAT & Co

Practicing Company Secretaries
Office: B-208, Shreedham Classic, Next to St. Johns Universal School, S. V. Road, Goregaon (W),Mumbai 400 104
Contact: +91- 7208023169, +91- 9029661169 | office@csdakamat.com |[www.csdakamat.com

7. In view of the restrictions imposed by the Government of India on the movement of
people across India to contain the spread of Covid-19 pandemic, which led to the
complete lockdown across the nation, we have relied on electronic data for verification

of certain records as the physical verification was not possible.

DWARKANAT Diitally signed by

Place: Mumbai H ANNAPPA  ANNAPPA KAVIAT
Date: 13.05.2021 Date: 2021.05.15
KAMAT 13:07:29 +05'30"
Signature:
Name of the Firm: D. A. Kamat & Co
FCS No. 3843

CP No: 4965
UDIN: F003843C000291086



D. A. KAMAT & Co

Practicing Company Secretaries

Office: B-208, Shreedham Classic, Next to St. Johns Universal School, S. V. Road, Goregaon (W),Mumbai 400 104
Contact: +91- 7208023169, +91- 9029661169 | office@csdakamat.com |[www.csdakamat.com

FORM NO MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 1ST APRIL, 2020 to 315STMARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule No.9 of Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited,

Mumbai

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
(hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and

expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
tiled and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the
secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and there presentations made
by the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
company has during the audit period covering Financial Year from 1st April, 2020 to 31st March,
2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and

subject to the reporting made hereinafter:



D. A. KAMAT & Co

Practicing Company Secretaries

Office: B-208, Shreedham Classic, Next to St. Johns Universal School, S. V. Road, Goregaon (W),Mumbai 400 104
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We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by the Company. Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

I. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, reports issued
by various fellow professionals and other applicable records and registers and maintained
by the Company for the Financial Year from 15t April, 2020 to 31t March, 2021 according to

the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under

2. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings - as applicable in respect of the reporting towards their Foreign
Exchange Management Act, 1999:

3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992; (As applicable to Debt Listed Entity)

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (As applicable to Debt Listed Entity)

5. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (As applicable to Debt Listed Entity)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above to the extent stated in this

Report.

II. Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed are not applicable

to the Company, for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 under report:-



D. A. KAMAT & Co

Practicing Company Secretaries
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(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
and

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2009;

II. We have reviewed the information, documents, records, filings and other certificates or
confirmations received from fellow professionals for the period under review and the
representations made by the company and its officers on the systems, records and
compliances under other laws applicable to the Company. The list of major laws and acts

applicable to the company are stated in Annexure I to this Report.

ITI. We have examined the compliances of the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards,
I and II issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries, India and notified by the MCA
u/s 118(10) as issued under the Companies Act, 2013.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in

compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful

participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through with unanimous consent of all the Board of Directors and

recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that during the year under report, the Company has undertaken following
events / action having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above

referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above viz.

1. The Company has issued Unsecured, Redeemable, Non-convertible Debentures (NCD)

on Private Placement Basis on the following dates. These securities were listed on BSE

Limited.
Date of Issue Amount (Rs.)
12th November, 2020 4,00,00,00,000
23rd December, 2020 3,00,00,00,000
24th March, 2021 2,75,00,00,000

2. The Company has also issued and allotted 60,00,00,000 equity shares to Tata Sons Private
Limited, issued on rights Basis on 9t April, 2020.

3. Mr. Santhanakrishnan Sankaran and Mrs. Neera Saggi, ceased to be an Independent
Directors w.e.f. 25th March, 2021 on completion of their tenure and ceased to be members
of Board of Directors of the Company.

4. The Company has constituted committee of Directors to oversee the Acquisition of 26%

stake of TRIL IT4 Private Limited from Actis Treit Holdings No. 2 (Singapore) Pvt Ltd.
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5. The Board has approved the payment of remuneration to Mr. Sanjay Datt, MD & CEO of

the Company for two years i.e. 01st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2023 subject to the approval

of the Shareholders in General meeting.

6. The

Company has obtained following approval from the Board of Directors for

investments and Corporate Guarantee and are within the limit as per the Provision of

Section 179 of the Companies Act, 2013:

>

>

Y V¥V

Enhancement in investment limit in Gurgaon Construct Well Private Limited from
Rs. 55 Crore to Rs. 160 Crore

Enhancement in investment limit in International Infrabuild Private Limited form
Rs. 110 Crore to Rs. 140 Crore

Enhancement in investment limit in Arrow Infrastate Private Limited form Rs. 35
Crore to Rs. 245 Crore

Enhancement in investment limit in Gurgaon Realtech Limited from Rs. 25 Crore
to Rs. 290 Crore

Provide Corporate Gaurantee for financing option for Debt facilities to be availed
by Pune Sholapur Expressway Private Limited

Enhancement in investment limit in TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited form
Rs. 978 Crore to Rs. 984 Crore

Provide Performance Bank guarantee of upto Rs. 91 Crore in favour of Pune
Metropolitan Region Development Authority (PMRDA)

Investment in Tata Housing Development Company Limited for an amount not
exceeding Rs. 500 Crore

Investment in TRIL IT4 Private Limited for an amount not exceeding Rs. 35 Lakhs
Investment in Dharmshala Ropeway, project

Digitally signed b
DWARKANAT DV?IARKyAN?ATH !

Place: Mumbai H ANNAPPA ANNAPPA KAMAT

Date:

13.05.2021 Date: 2021.05.15
KAMAT 13:09:20 +05'30"
Signature:
Name of the Firm: D. A. Kamat & Co
FCS No. 3843
CP No: 4965
UDIN: F003843C000291086
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Annexure I - List of other Acts specifically applicable to the Company

Registered Office:  Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited.
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai City MH 400033

Major Acts applicable to the Company: Based on the list of other statutes provided by the
Company, taking into consideration the nature of business, the following list of Major Acts are

applicable to the Company.

a) Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

) The Maternity Benefit Act,1961

o

c) Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

d) Acts as prescribed under the Direct Taxes and Indirect Taxes

e) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

f) The Bombay Shops & Establishments Act, 1948

g) Employees Superannuation Scheme

h) Hazardous Waste (Management, Handling And Trans boundary Movement) Rules, 2008

i) Local laws as applicable to various offices of the Company



Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Annexure “C"

1. PREAMBLE:

At TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED ("TRIL” or “the Company”), we are committed
to Tata Group’s vision of Integrating environmental, social and ethical principles into the core
business, thereby improving the quality of life of the communities we serve and enhancing long-
term stakeholder value. At TRIL, we are sensitive and concerned about the communities and region
we are operating. Thus believing that through sustainable measures, we would actively contribute

to the Social, Economic and Environmental Development of the Community.

2. CSR VISION AND MISSION:
The Company recognizes its responsibility towards the society and contributes significantly towards

the betterment of the local communities it serves.

We believe in creating value for the community we work and empowering our stakeholders by
touching the lives of one lakh people by 2025. The said vision- mission is proposed to be achieved
by implementing CSR programs in the key areas of Livelihood and Skill development, Healthcare,

Environment protection, Social development and relief.

Activities undertaken in the past:

The Company and its subsidiaries have a wide geographical stretch covering throughout the nation
and has voluntarily initiated numerous CSR activities during its recent past like;
Health:
- Organizing awareness sessions on health and hygiene, free health check-ups and blood
donation camps in and around the project site.
- Installation of water purification plants at schools near project sites.
- Rural development programmes like support on providing a garbage vehicle and providing
ambulance support.

Environment Protection;

- Undertaking plantation drives within the communities and schools to bring about an

awareness on environmental issues and creating balance ecosystem.



Livelihood:
- Entrepreneurship Development program (EDP) for socio-economically backward youth
involved in the construction sector.
- Skill development program for the construction workers.
- An onsite welfare facilitation program for construction workers to improve access to social
protection schemes.
- Working towards women empowerment by introducing scholarship program for girls coming
from socio-economically challenged backgrounds.
Education:
- Supporting educational institutes and universities in the conducting academic research.

Social Development and Relief:

- Support to Informal Workers of Urban Areas to Combat Covid-19.

- Support on improving medical infrastructure as a response to the Covid- 19 crises in the

nation.

3. DEFINITION ON CSR POLICY:

This CSR Policy is a statement containing the approach and direction given by the Board of a
company, taking into account the recommendations of the CSR Committee, and includes guiding
principles for selection, implementation and monitoring of activities as well as formulation of the

annual action plan.

4. OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY:

- Define the operational framework and to provide a pathway for undertaking CSR initiatives
for the company.

- The Policy sets out the rules that need to be adhered to while taking up and implementing
CSR activities.

- To lay down effective guidelines in carrying out CSR programs by aligning them to the areas
mentioned under the schedule 7 of companies Act 2013 and contribute efforts towards
meeting larger SDGs (Sustainable Development Goals) 2030.

The Company shall timely ensure appropriate utilization of contribution viz financial and human

resources to the benefit of the community at large.



5. CSR THRUST AREAS AND FRAMEWORK:

The programs designed towards integrating wider perspectives of SDGs 2030 will reflect on doing a

responsible business and invest in Social good.

The CSR Framework developed for the next 3 years, focuses on the following areas of intervention,

which are in line with Schedule VII of Companies Act 2013 and beyond business as usual.

LIVELIHOOD AND
SKILL
DEVELOPMENT
(Under Scheagule 7,
point no. II and SDG
1,8 10)

skill
for employability

- Enhancing

- Mapping existing
traditional
livelihood
patterns and
enhancing their
scope.

- Supporting
entrepreneurship
development.

- E.g. Upskilling

and reviving of

Bamboo crafts in

West Bengal.

HEALTHCARE

{(Under Schedule 7,
point no, I and SDG 3,

6)

- Designing and
implementing
awareness
campaigns around
sanitation and
hygiene practices.
- Addressing  vital
health issues in the
marginalized
communities.
- Eg. Regular
Health awareness
session for
Construction
labours and the
communities

around.

ENVIRONMENT
PROTECTION

(Under Schedule 7, point
no. IT and SDG 11, 13)

Focusing on projects
that have sustainable
long-term impact and
that promotes use of
renewable energy and
recycling.

Enhancing biodiversity,
natural resource
management and
mitigation of climate
change impacts.
Water

E.g. Body

Restoration in Rural
outskirts of Chennai
Solid

Management project in

and waste

Bangalore-Rural.

SOCIAL
DEVELOPMENT AND
RELIEF
(Under Schedule 7,
point no. VII/XII and
Qualifying overall SDGs
and Schedule VII)

- Special projects to
be undertaken basis
immediate need and
thereby fulfilling the
objectives of the
policy.

- Engaging with

communities

affected by natural
disasters, while
meaningfully

responding towards

strengthening their

resilience.
- E.g. Covid relief
initiatives or

contribution to the



Prime Minister's

National Relief

Fund.

6. COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE:

The Committee shall be constituted with following members only if the CSR expenditure amount to

be spent by a company exceeds fifty lakh rupees:

1) With minimum three directors of which at least one director shall be an Independent Director
from the Board of the Company; or

2) With minimum two directors from the Board of the Company, in case the company is not required
to appoint an independent director under sub-section (4) of section 149 of the Companies Act
2013 (“the Act”).

If the CSR committee is not required to be constituted by the Company as per provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Responsibility of CSR Committee as per the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013, be discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Mandate of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

As per_ provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (as amended), the CSR Committee

shall:

i. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company in the areas or subject specified in
Schedule VII;

ii. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities;

iii. Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time;

iv. To formulate and recommend to the Board an Annual Action Plan in pursuance of the CSR paolicy,
which shall include the following, namely:-

a) the list of CSR projects or programmes that are approved to be undertaken in areas
or subjects specified in Schedule VII of the Act,



b) the manner of execution of such projects or programmes,

c) the modalities of utilisation of funds and implementation schedules for the projects
or programmes,

d) monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programmes, and

e) details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the
company

v. Any other matter, which may be considered appropriate by the Committee for furtherance of
Company’s CSR activities.

7. ADDITIONAL MANDATE:
i. Oversee the company’s conduct with regard to its corporate and societal obligations and its
reputation as a responsible corporate citizen;
ii. Oversee activities impacting the quality of life of various stakeholders;
iii. Monitor the CSR Policy and expenditure of the material subsidiaries (material
subsidiary” means a subsidiary whose income or net worth exceeds ten percent of the
consolidated income or net worth, respectively, of the Company and its subsidiaries in the

immediately preceding financial year).

8. IMPI "MENTATION PROCEDURE/ ANNUAL ACTION PLAN:
The CSR programmes will be designed systematically with defined timelines, objectives and

deliverables. All the CSR initiatives will have well-defined KPIs to measure impacts on target groups.

Every year Company review the existing programmes and will come out with Action Plan for
implementation of each of the CSR projects or programmes, which were approved by the CSR
Committee.

The company will collaborate with select NGO/ voluntary organization for the implementation of the
programmes. The engagement with the partner will be based on thorough due diligence process

and assessing the credibility of the organization.



The Company shall during the financial year i.e. any time between 1% April to 31% March every year,
carry out its above listed CSR activities. The CSR Committee shall, from time to time, decide on the

schedule,

The modalities of utilisation of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or programmes:

The funds required for utilization on CSR activities shall be allocated out of the profits of the
Company. The Company shall spend on CSR activities an amount of at least two percent of the
average net profits, made during the three immediately preceding financial years. The average net
profit shall be reckoned in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the Act.

However, in the absence of any profits, the Company may still volunteer to undertake/spend on CSR

activities,

The Company shall implement the CSR activities either on its own or by contributing in form of

donation to a registered trust / society.

The Committee may from time to time recommend selecting and implementing any of the CSR
activities enumerated above and to encourage employees to voluntarily participate in such activities

toward society’s betterment and overall well-being.

9. MONITORING AND REPORTING M CHANISM:

The Committee may from time to time monitor proper implementation of its CSR activities, either
by itself or through appointed authorized representative or by appointing independent agency or as
it may deemed fit. The concerned person shall supervise and submit a report, containing details on

imptementation of the CSR activities, to the CSR Committee of the Board.

Details of Impact Assessment, if any, undertaken by the Company:

The Company may on its own or engage the services of professional / independent agency in order
to do the impact assessment of selected or applicable projects or programmes on a periodic basis,

as may be required from time to time.



10.POLICY GUIDELINES AND REVIEW

This CSR Policy has been formulated as per prevailing provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (as
amended), the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and
after taking into considerations of Clarifications / FAQ issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) from time to time. However, if, due to subsequent changes in the law, a particular part

thereof may become inconsistent with the law, in such case the provisions of the law will prevail.

This CSR policy document will be reviewed from time to time. Any changes, if necessary will be
approved by the CSR Committee of the Board.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Banmali Agrawala W

Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Date: June 17, 2021
Piace: Mumbai



ANNEXURE “D”
FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE
BOARD'S REPORT

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and
projects or programs:

The CSR policy outlines the objectives, composition of the Committee, CSR scope, activity schedule,
monitoring and reporting methods. The CSR policy can be viewed on the web-site of the Company

www . tatarealty.in

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:

Sl. No. | Name of Director Designation / | Number of | Number of
{Identity of the Chairman) Nature of | meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Directorship Committee held Committee

during the year attended during

the year
1 Mr. Banmali Agrawala Chairman 0 0
2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member 0 0
3 Mr. 5. Santhanakrishnan* Member 0 0

*During the year under review, Mr. 5. Santhanakrishnan had completed his second term as Independent
Director of the Company on March 25, 2021 and ceased to be the Member of the Committee as on March
25, 2021.

As on March 31, 2021, the Committee comprised of Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Chairman and Mr. Sanjay
Dutt, as its Member. Further the Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 11, 2021, dissolved the
Committee.



Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company

Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report):

The Company was not required to implement, monitor and report any CSR activities, during the

year under review.

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set off for the financial year, if any: N.A.

Sl No. | Financial Year Amount available for set-off from | Amount required to be setoff
preceding financial years (in Rs.) | for the financial year, if any (in
Rs.)

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) of the Act: Not applicable, as
Company have incurred iosses {based on calculations made as per Section 198 of the Companies

Act, 2013) in last three financial years.

{a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): The Company
was not required to spend mandatory 2% CSR expenditure for the year ended March 31, 2021, due
to reasons mentioned in item 6 above.

(b} Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: N.A,

{c} Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: N.A.

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a*7b-7c): N.A.



8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: N.A.

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Amount Total Amount Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Spent for the transferred to Schedule VII as per second proviso to section

Financial Unspent CSR Account 135(5).

Year. as per section

135(6).
(in Rs.) (6)
Amount Date of Name of | Amount Date of transfer
transfer the Fund

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for

1e financial year: N.A.

(1) (2} (3) 4) (5} (6) {7)
S.No | Name of the | Item from the | Local area | Location of the | Project Amount
Project. list of | (Yes/No}. project. duration. allocated for
activities  in State District the project (in
Schedule VII Rs.)
to the Act.
(8) &) (10) (11)
Amount spent in | Amount transferred to | Mode of Implementation - | Mode of Implementation - Through
the current | Unspent CSR  Account | Direct (Yes/No) Implementing Agency
financial Year | for the project as per Name. CSR registration
(in Rs.). Section 135(6) (in Rs.). number




(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year: N.A.
(1) (2) 3) (4} (%) (6) (7) (8)
Sl. No | Name Item from | Local area | Location of the | Amount | Mode of Mode of Implementation -
of the | the list of | (Yes/No). | project. spent implementati | Through  Implementing
Project. | activities for the { on- Agency
in project | Direct
Schedule (inRs.). | {Yes/No)
VII to the
Act.
State | District Name. CSR
registration
number

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: N.A.

(e} Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A.
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): N.A.

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: N.A.

SI. No. | Particulars Amount {(in Rs.)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) | -
i} Total amount spent for the Financial Year -
(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] -
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the | -
previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii}-(iv) -




9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: N.A.

Sl No

Preceding
Financial

Year

Amount

transferred to
Unspent CSR
Account under
section 135

(6) (inRs.)

Amount

spent in the

reporting

Financial

Year
Rs.)

{in

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VII as

per section 135(6), if any.

Name of
the Fund

Amount | Date  of

(in Rs) | transfer

Amount
remaining to
be spent in
succeeding
financial

years. {in Rs.)

(b} Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the

preceding financial year({s): N.A.

(1) () 3) (4) (5) (6) 7) ) (9)
Si. No Project Name of | Financial Project Total Amount | Cumulative | Status of the
ID the Year in which | duration | amount spent on | amount project -
Project | the project allocated | the spent at the | Completed
was for  the | project in | end of | /Ongoing.
commenced. project the reporting
(inRs.). | reporting | Financial
Financial | Year. (in
Year (in | Rs.)
Rs).

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset

so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): N.A.

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital Asset

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital

asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address

and location of the capital asset).




11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average

net profit as per section 135(5):

Not applicable, as Company have incurred losses (based on calculations made as per Section 198 of the

Companies Act, 2013) in last three financial years.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

L ponra

Banmali Agrawala Sanjay Dutt
Chairman of Board 8\LSR Committee Managing Director & CEQO
DIN: 00120029 DIN: 05251670

Date: June 17, 2021
Place: Mumbai



Annexure “E”

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO:

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Qutgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8(3)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy

Considering the nature of activities undertaken by the Company, the Company has taken certain
feasible initiatives/steps towards sustainability, which include initiatives which has impact on energy
conservation.

Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy

Sustainability is an integral part of the Company’s business philosophy. The Board of Directors of
the Company has urged its stakeholders for undertaking appropriate steps for conservation of
energy. The Company has always endeavor to undertake appropriate steps for conservation of
energy. In this regard, the Company has taken the following steps in the project:

a. Energy metering: Energy meters for external lighting, municipal water pumping, grey
water pumping (for flushing) and water pumping for landscaping;

b. Installation of energy efficient equipment: Minimum 60% efficiency for pumps greater
than 3HP and ISI rated pumps for others, minimum 75% efficiency for motors greater than
3HP and ISI rated motors for others, elevators operating with intelligent group controls and
water level controllers;

c. Electric Charging Facility for Vehicles: Electric Charging Facility shall be provided for 5
% of total parking;

d. Use of maximum daylight: Use of maximum Day light in Apartments and common areas
by providing glazed windows facing South /North Direction;

e. Use of natural ventilation: Use of natural ventilation in Apartments and common areas
by providing big size windows facing South /North Direction;

f. Energy efficient light fixtures: Use of Energy efficient fixtures like LED, T5 having low
power consumptions;

g. Low loss transformers: Use of Level 2 Transformers which have low / no load and full
load losses;

h. Energy efficient air conditioning: Use of 5 star rated AC having low power consumption;

i. Lighting Automation: Use of timers and other energy saving devices for common area
lights, in case of day time it will switch off through automation; and

j. Home automation: Home Automation is done to reduce ideal mode power consumptions
of lights, fans, AC and other electrical devices.



Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of Energy

a. Employee awareness: The Company has in its day to day working environment have
urged its employees for usage of electronic gadgets which saves energy, encouraging
carpooling, make them aware about water conservation, climate change, waste management
and energy conservation with a view to encourage water and energy conservation.

b. Use of Solar Powered Lights in common areas and landscape to reduce power demand of
project.

c. At Corporate Office, Company switch off 50% AC plant during lunch for one hour. The
Company has also kept water taps on low force setting to save water and used signage’s to
minimize use of paper and water in washrooms. Further, Lights are switched off in pockets
beyond 6.30 pm as staff leaves. Waste bottled water is being used for cleaning and plants.

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment'’s;

During the year under review, the Company has not undertaken any capital investment on energy
conservation equipment.

B. Technology Absorption

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption:

The Company endeavors to undertake alternatives for technology absorption. However, during the
FY 2020-21, the Company has not undertaken activities relating to technology absorption.

(ii) Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:

The Company has not undertaken new technology implementation during the FY 2020-21.

(iif) Imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year)-

The Company has not imported any technology during the last three years immediately preceding
the FY 2020-21.

(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

The Company has not incurred any expense on Research and Development during the FY 2020-21



C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

Disclosure of information relating to Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo as required is already given
in Notes, which forms part of the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Banmali Agrawala

Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Date: June 17, 2021
Piace: Mumbai



“Annexure F”
DISCLOSURE OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Part A

a- The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company
far the financial year:

Sr. Name of Director Ratio of Director’'s remuneration to the
No. median remuneration of the employees
of the Company for the financial year

i Mr. Banmali Agrawala* NA

2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director and CEO NIL (receive Annual remuneration)

3 Mr. Farokh Subedar* NA

4 Mr. Santhanakrishnan Sankaran*# NA

5 Ms. Neera Saggi*# NA

6 Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal* NA

* Not Applicable, as only sitting fees being paid
#retired w.e.f. March 25, 2021

The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Sr. Name of Director and Key Managerial Percentage (%) increase in

No. Personnel remuneration in the financial
year
1 | Mr. Banmali Agrawala* NA
2 | Mr, Farokh Subedar* NA
3 | Mr. Santhanakrishnan Sankaran* NA
4 | Ms. Neera Saggi* NA
5 | Mr. Rajiv Sabharwat* NA
6 | Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director and CEQ 0%
7 | Mr. Sanjat Sharma, Chief Financial Officer 0%
8 | Mr. Sudhakar Shetty, Company Secretary 0%

*Not Applicable, as only sitting fees being paid



The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year 2020-21 was INR 27,50,000
annual salary & The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: NIL
The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 119

Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees cother than the managerial personnel was NIL;
Average increase in remuneration of Managers (defined as MD and ED on the board of the Company) was
NIL.

Reason:— N.A.

It is affirmed that the remuneraticn is as per the 'Remuneration Pelicy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and other employees, approved by the Board.

For the purposes of the above.-

(i the expression “median” means the numerical value separating the higher half of a population from
the lower half and the median of a finite list of numbers may be found by arranging all the observations
from lowest value to highest value and picking the middle cne.

(i) if there is an even number of observations, the median shal! be the average of the two middle values.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Banmali Agrawala

Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Date: June 17, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

To The Members of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financia! Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalcne financial statements of Tata Realty and
Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (inciuding Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {"Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31 March 2021, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Cur responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financiai statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter
to be communicated in our report.

&
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Key Audit Matter

Auditor's Response

Determination of fair value of

investments

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had
investments in various subsidiaries and
joint  ventures which have been
accounted for at fair value amounting to
Rs. 5,28,144 lakhs (Refer note 5 to the
financial statements),

The determination of the fair value of
investments requires significant
management judgement, due to various
assumptions / estimates such as market
rent levels, toll revenues, expenditure to
be incurred, vacancy factors, prevailing
market vields and market transactions,
cash flows as well as impact due to
COovID 19,

We assessed the Company’s process

for

the wvaluation of non-current

investments carried at Fair Value which
involved testing of the design and
operating effectiveness of the internal
controls and substantive testing as
follows:

Evaluated the design of the internal
controls relating to the valuation of
non-current investments at Fair
Value.

Tested the operating effectiveness
of controls for the review of
assumptions and estimates used in
evaluation of inputs for the purpose
of fair valuation. We carried out a
combination of procedures
involving enquiry and observation,

and inspection of evidence in
respect of operation of these
The valuation of unguoted investments is controls.
considered to be a key audit matter as this
amount represents a very significant portion Principal audit procedures

_of the total assets of the Covmpany included performed:
in the standalene financial statements,
coupled with use of significant management]|,
judgements and estimates and use off
Management’'s experts in determining the
fair values, on the basis described above,

Assessed the management’'s maker
/ checker controls over preparation
of the discounted cash flow model
for the wvaluation of investments
and controls over management’s
analysis of the variances in values
in compariscen with previous year,

« Ascertained whether the fair value

of investments has been
determined by external
independent valuer, having
appropriate professional expertise
and recent experience in the
location and category of the
property underlying the

investments being valued based on

information and explanations
provided by the management.
» Involved Internal Fair Value

Specialists for reviewing the key
assumptions used in valuation like
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Weighted Average Cost of Capital
for the purposes of determining the
discount rate, capitalisation rate,
market rent levels, vacancy factor,
toll road traffic growth/decline
volume, Tested arithmetic accuracy
of the cash flow models prepared by
the Management.

¢ Performed analytical procedures by
comparing assumptions and fair
values on a year-on-year basis and
obtained reasons for the variations.

With reference to the investment in an
associate which was approved by the
board of directors in their board
meeting held on 25 March, 2021, the
fair vatlue was based on valuation
report obtained from an independent
registered valuer. This transaction
being very close to the year end,
management is of the view that there
would be no change in fair value as at
31 March, 2021 (Refer Note 5 of
financial statements).

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board of Directors report, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

= In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

s If, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a

true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive loss , cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with

'y
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the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safequarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the gaing concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standaione financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting frem error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

&
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exists related to events cor conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we condude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalene financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and {ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
cutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Reqgulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive

Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account,

4
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act,

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h.With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:
1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements ;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts;

ni. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”} issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Qrder,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

O AT

Rajesh K, Hiranandani

(Partner)
Place: Mumbai (Membership No. 36920)
Date: 17 June 2021 UDIN: 21036920AAAACB5701
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDEMNT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our repoirt of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tata Realty and
Infrastructure Limited ("the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based ¢n the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential compaonents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementaticn and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
palicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting recerds, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable te an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in alil
material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend aon the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control ever financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

Y
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principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
potlicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthecrised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system aover
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial control over
financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

[ A A -

Rajesh K. Hiranandani
(Partner)

(Membership No. 36920)
UDIN: 21036920AAAACB5701

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 June 2021
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
Section of our report of even date)
(i) (3a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The Company performs physical verification of its property, plant and equipment
annually. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonabile having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties,
as disclosed in Note 4 to the standalone financial statements, are held in the name
of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

{ii) As expiained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification between physical stock and the books of accounts.

(iiiy According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted
unsecured loans to eleven companies covered in the register maintained under Section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:

(@) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie,
not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, In respect of four
unsecured loans, interest along with principal is repayable on demand and seven
unsecured loans are interest free and the principal is repayable on demand. The
Company has not demanded any loan during the year.

(c) There is no amount overdue for more than 90 days as at 31 March 2021.

(iv)} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees
and securities, as applicable,

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year as provided under Section 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013, There are no unclaimed deposits any
time during the year.

(vi} We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are
of the opinion that, prima Ffacie, the prescribed cost records have been made and
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maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records

with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

{vii)According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(@) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Income-tax, professional tax, provident fund, work contracts tax, labour
cess, Goods & Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it
to the appropriate authorities.

(b)

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, professional

tax, provident fund, work confracts tax, labour cess, Goods & Services Tax, cess
and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable,

{c)

on 31 March 2021 on account of disputes are given befow:

Details of dues of Income-tax and Service Tax, which have not been deposited as

Period to
Name of the | Nature of | Forum where dispute | which the | Amount Amount
Statute Dues is pending amount involved Unpaid
relates
Income Tax Income Tax Appellate B
Act, 1961 Income Tax Tribunal - Mumbai FY 2014-2015 4,43,65,426 | 4,43,65,426
Income Tax Commissioner of Income
Act, 1961 Income Tax Tax - Appeals - Mumbai FY 2016-2017 5,74,36,278 | 5,74,36,278
) - Fy 2012-13, FY
Finance ACt, | oo\ ice Tax | COMMIsSIONerof CGST & | 5y 5 14 " by | 5.07,64,442 | 5,07,64,442
1994 Central Excise - Mumbai
2014-15
Finance Act, . Commissioner of CGST & )
1994 Service Tax Central Excise - Mumbai FY 2010-2011 26,721,775 | 26,721,775
) L ) FY 2010-11, FY
Finance Act, | gervice Tax | SOMMissioner of CGST & 1 54,4 15 ™" £y | 8,837,820 | 79,54,038
1994 Central Excise ~ Nagpur
2012-13
. ] o FY 2010-11, FY
Finance ACt, | goryice Tax | COMMISSIONerof CGST& | 5414 15 *' ry [ 18,207,459 | 16,386,713
1994 Central Excise - Kochi
2012-13
Finance Act, Commissioner of CGST &
1994 Kerala VAT Central Excise - Kochi FY 2014-2015 20,010,000 | 20,010,000
(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings from financial
institutions and dues to debenture holders during the year. The Company did not have
any outstanding dues to banks and government.
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(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause {ix) of
the CARQ 2016 Order is not applicable.

{x) Tothe best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanaticns given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reperted during the year.

(xi) In cur opinicn and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013,

(xiiy The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause {xii) of the
CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compiiance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) According to the information and explanation given to us, during the year the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 is
not applicable to the Company.

{xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persans connected with
them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable.

{xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

M-'——"L\—

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner
(Membership No. 36920)
UDIN: 21036920AAAACBS5701
Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 June 2021
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2021

1Cumrency: Indian rupees 0 lakhs)

Anpexure to Cash Flow

Reconciliatfon of financing activities as per requirernent of para 44A w E of Ind AS 7

Particulars

Financing Cash

Non-Gash Changes

1 April 2020 Fiows {Othar Chanaes) 31 March 2021

Long-term borrowings
Non Cenvertible Dabantures 1 72.500.00 37 500 00 2,37,000.08
Shart-1arm barrawings
Cemmercial Papars from Mulual funds 78.000.00 (16723 58), 22358 §7.500,00
Shart Tsrm Loan from Bank 20.000 00 120 £00 00} - -
(thara
Share Application Monay + 20,000 00 11.20.000.00) -
Finance costs 20.243 41 421546 32§ 21,108 46 $9,806.56
Total 4,17,743.41 5,230.10 (9B,667.96) 3.24,305.56
Particwui Financing Cash| Non-Cash Changes

iculars 1 April 2013 FTm\?s (otnar Chm“g‘ 1 March 2020
Long-tarm bomrowings
Non Conyertibie Debenturas 1,82,500 00 {3.000.00 - 1,79,506.00
Shaori-tarm borrowings
Commaercral Papars frm Mutual Tunas 77 500.00 47447 2553 78,000.00
intar Carporate Deposits 14.000.00 (14.000.00% - -
Short Term Laoan from Bank 4,117.86 13,882 14 - 20,000.20
Othars
Share Applizaton kMonay - 1.20,400.00 - 1,20,000.00
Fmance casls 18,324 51 {26, 47T 37) 28,496 17 20.242.41
Tatal 2.96,342.47 92,879.24 28,521.70 4,17,742.41







Tata Realty and Infrastruciure Limited
CIN Ne: U70102MH2007PLC 168300

Notes to Ind AS financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2021
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

t

Background of the Campany

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (the Company’) was incorporaied on 2 March 2007 to carry on the business of investment
advisory services, project management consultancy services and real estate and infrastructure development., The Company is a wholly
ownad subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited.

Basis of preparation

{a) Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies

These standaione Ind AS financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) as per the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companes Act, 2013 (the Act) and other
relavant provisions of the Act.

(b} Going Concern

The Company is primartly engaged in development of commercial and infrastructure projects to generate stabte cash flows and capilal
appreciation aver the life of the assets through investments in various project SPVs.

The Company has incurred dsses amounting to INR 9,638.34 lakhs in the current year (previaus year INR 22,584.76 lakhs). As at 31
March 2021 the Company has a net current hability pasition of INR 1,06 659 lakhs where the current liabilities at INR 1,73,634 lakhs
exceed the current assets at INR 68.975 lakhs. Based on scheduled repayment of borrowings INR 1,40,000 fakhs is due for repayment
within 12 months from the approval of these financial statements. The Company has also provided corporate guarantees / agreed to
oravide financial support of INR 68,500 lakhs o its subsidies and joint venture companies.

Assessment: The Board of Directors have assessed the above operational conditions and indicators and hava come to the conclusion
that no matenal uncerainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability 1o continue as a going concern based on
cash flow forecasts and the plan management has put in place

Mitigating factors: In spite of difficult market conditions aver a penod, the superior nature of portfoito of the Company's developments
has increased the Fair Value of these assets to INR 5,28,145 Lakhs aver its histarical cost of INR 3,36,153 Lakhs.

Based on projections for FY 2021-22, the SPV's are expected to generata operational net cash flow of mare than INR 50,100 Lakhs
which will increase the value of investments of the Company. The management is evaluating possibiiity of divestment of selected assets
and change in capital structure n its project SPVs' which is expected (o generate more than INR 1,5G,0C0 Lakhs as equity value. Alsa,
the free cash flow from sale of Ready to Move in {RTMI} residential inventory will support its operations dunng coming financial years.

MNegative working capital is on account of management decision ta borraw short-term funds through commercial papers to take
advantage of intarest arbitrage Howaver, manzigement has madified the strategy to replace, to the extent pessible, short term funding
with long term funding arrangement going forward.

The equity capital from the paranti.e. Tata Sons Frivate Limited, of an amount of INR 1,208,000 Lakhs received during the previous year
has improved the company’s net worth allowing the company further ability for additional borrowing in future and 1s reflected in the
ratings of the Company.

Conelusion: The Board of Directors based on cash flow farecasis and management plans have concluded on ability of the Company to
continua as going concern and the financial statzments have been prepared on that basis.

{c} Functignal and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Campany's functional currency. All the financial
information have been presented n indian Rupees (INR) and all amounts have bean rounded-off to the nearest lakhs with two decimals,
except for share data and as ofherwise staied. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughcut the documen may not add up
precisely to the totals and percentage may nat precisely reflect the absolute figures.
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{d) Basis of measurament
The standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on ihe hustorical cost basis except for the followirg assals ard fiabilities
which have been measured at fair vaiue:
1 Certain financial assels and liabifities (including derivative instruments)
2 Defined benefit plans - pian assets measured at fair value

(e} Critical a¢counting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty
In preparing ihese standalone Ind AS financial statements, management has made |udgements, astimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting poficies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expensas. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
Eslimates and underiying assumptions are reviewed an an cngaing basis Revisions te accouning estimates are recognised
prospectively.
{1} Judgements
information about judgements made in applying accounting policies thal have the most significant effacis an the amounts recognised in
the standzlone nd AS financial siatements is included in the following notes:

Note 38 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Note 40 — determining the fair value of investments on the basis of significant uncbservable inputs.

{ii) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions ang astimation uncentainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjusiment in the year
ended 21 March 2021 is included in the follawing nates:

Nate 39 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
Nate 40 - determining the fair value of investments on the basis of significant unobservable inputs

() Measurement of fair values

The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for noth financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. The Company has an established contral framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance eam
has averall respansihility far averseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, 2nd reports directly to the
CFO.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third panty information [s used (@ measure fair values
then the finance t@am assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to supporl the conclusion that such valuations meet the
raquirements of Ind AS, including the lavei in the: fair value hierarchy in which such valuations shauld be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observabie market data as far as possible. Farr vaiues are
categorized inta different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1. quoted prices {unadjusied) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Lavel 2 inputs ather than quoted prices inciuded in Level 1 that are observable far the asset or liability, erther directly {i.e. as prices)
or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices}.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observabie market data (unobservabie inputs).
I the inputs used to measure the fair vaiue of an asset or a lability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest leval input that is significant to the
entira measurement,

(g} Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are transkated into the functional cumency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resuiting from the sattiement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generafly recagnised in profil or loss.

Non-monetary items (hat are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Transiation differences on assets and Habilities carried at fair value are reparted as part of the fair value gain
or loss. The gain or lass arising on translation of non-manetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recagrnition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whase fair value gain or loss is recognised in
OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectivaly).

¥
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3 Significant acegunting paoticies
3.01 Revenue recognition

Ravenue fs recognised to the extent that it 13 probable that the ecanomic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reiiably measured.

Sale of completed property.

Revenue from sale of completed property {residiential and commercial) 1s recagnised when:

1. The Company has transferred to the buyer significan! risk and rewards of ownership of the complaied property:

2. The Company retains neither conlinuing managenal involvement o the degree usually associated with the ownership nor effecive
control over the completed property sold:

3. The amount of revenue can be measured reliahly;

4. 1t 15 prababla that the economic benafit associated with the transaction will flow ta the Campany: and

5. Cost incumed or 1o be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Asset management fees and Project mansgement consuttancy fees are recognized fn accordance with terms of agreement with
customers.

A dividend is recognised as revenue when the righl to receive payment has been established. Far all debt instruments measured sither
at amortised cost ar at fair value through other comprehansive income, interast income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR), EIR is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected Ife of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, where appropniate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amartised cost of a financial liability.

3.02 Property, plant and equipment
{i) Recognition and measurement
Freehold land 1s carried at histoncal cast. All other tems of property, piant ang equipment are measured at cast |ess accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and eguiprnent comprises:
a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase tases, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

k) any costs directly attributable to 2ringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating 1n the
manner intanded by management.

c) the initial estimate of the casts of dismantling and remeving the item and restoring the site on which 1t is located. the cbilgation for
which an entity incurs either when tha iterm is acguired

Income and expenses related to the incidental oparations, not necessary to bring the itemn to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intenderd by management, are recognised in profit or lass.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and eguipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted far as separate items
(major components) of property. plant and eguipment. Any gain or foss on dispasal of an item of property. plant and equipment is
recagnised in profit or loss.

(if) Subseguent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it 13 probable that the future economic benefits assoclated with the expenditure will flow to

the Company.

{iit} Depreciation
Depreciabie amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or othar amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual vaiue.

Depreciation is provided using the straight line methad in the manner and at the rates prescribed by Part 'C’ of Schedule It of the Act
Depreciation is charged on a monthly pro-rata basis for assets purchased or sold during the year.

In the following cases. the useful life is less than the coresponding usefut life prescribed in Part 'C' of Schedule {1 of the Act, based on
intamal technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the asset. the aperating conditions of
the asset, past history of replacement. anticipated technological changes etc.:

[Dala Processing Networks - Servers and Nelworks 5 years
[Mator Car 5 vears 1

Leasehold improvements are amartised aver the: primary pariod of the lease.

Depraciation methods. useful lives and residual values are raviewed at each reporting date and agiusted f approprate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profii or loss within
other gainsKlosses).

Expenditure mcurmed on acquisition /construction of property, plant and eguipment which are not ready for their intended use at baiance
sheel date are disclosed under capital work-in-prograss. Capital work in progress |5 stated at cost less impairment losses, if any, Cost
comprises of expenditures incurred in respect of capital projects under development and includes any aftributable / akocable cost and
othar incidental expenses. Revenues earned. if any, befora capitalization fram such capital project are adjusled against the capital work
in progress,

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition f construction / development of tangible assets, intangible assets and capital work in progress
which takes substantial period of time 10 get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the peried till such
assets are ready to be put to use
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3.03

3.05

Intangible assets

Intangible assets compnse application software purchased / devetoped, which are not an integral part of the related hardware and ara
amorlised using the siraight line method over 2 period of the software ficense, which in the Management's eslimaie represents the
period during which the econgmic banefits will be derived from their use. Subsequent expenditure |15 capitalised only when it increases
the future economic benefils embodied in the specific ta which it relates

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwiil and intangibie assets that have an indefinte usaful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently If events or changes in circumsiances indicate that they might be impaired. Othar assels are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate Ihat the carrying amount may not be recoverable, Management periodically
assesses using, external and internal sources, whether there is an indication that ar asset may be impaired.

The recgverable amount is higher of the asset's net selling price or value in use, which means the present value of future cash flows
expected to arise from the conlinuing use of the asset and its aveniual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only
if, the reversal can be related objactively to an evani occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an
asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any accumulatad amortization ar depreciatien) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
years,

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are diractly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assels that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income gamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assels is
deducted from the barrowing casts eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the periad in which they are incurred.

Income-tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It 1s recagnised in profit or 108s except o the extant that it refaes items
recognised diractly in equity ar in OCH,

(i} Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adfustment to the tax
payable or receivable in raspect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates anacled ar substantively enacted at the reporting data.
Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends, Management parodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which appiicable tax regulation 1 subject to interpretation, It establishes pravisions where appropriale on the basis of
amounis expecied o be paid to the tax authoritias.

Minimum Alternate Tax {'MAT') under the provisions of Income-tax Act. 1961 is recognised as current tax in the statement of profit and
0ss, MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax
liability, is considered as an asset if there is 2 convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax. Accerdingly, MAT is
racagnized as an asset in the balance sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefii associated with it will flow to the
Company.

Current tax assets and liabiiities are offset only if. the Company:
a) has a legally 2nforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b) intends either to setlle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simuttaneously.

{ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recegnised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reparting purpases and the amounts used for taxation purposes. However, deferred tax liabilitias are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is aiso not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting prefit nor taxable profit {tax
loss).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused lax losses. unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will ba available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed al each
reporling ¢ate and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are
reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognised deferred tax asseis are reassessed at each reporiing
date and recognised o the exient that it has biecome probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which they can be
used.

Deferrad tax is measured at the tax rales that are axpected to be applied to temparary differences when they reverse. using tax rates
enacted or substanively enactad at the reporting date and arg expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax fiability 1s settled
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Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temparary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of invesiments in
subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where the campany {s able to control the timing of the raversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the diffarences will nct reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are not racegnised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of \nvestments in
subsidiaries, branches and assaciates and interest in joint arrangements where it is nat probabie that the diferencas will reverse in the
foreseeable fuiure and taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary differenca can be ulilised.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset onby if:

a} the entity has a leqally anfarceable right 1o set off current tax assats against current tax fiabilities: and

0} the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax labilites relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty on the same
taxable entity

{iii) Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recagnised In profit ar loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in eguity / deemed equity, In which case. the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
Incame or directly in equity / deemed equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination. the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

3.07 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent includes cash on hand, deposits held at cal
with financial institutions, other shart-term, highly fiquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convartible io known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank aoverdrafts. Bank
overdrafis are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet,

3.08 Inventories
Direct expenses like land cost, develcpment rights, site labour cost, matedal used for project construction, cost of borrowing, project
management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery 10 the site and general expeanses incurred specifically for the
respective project ke insurance. design and technical assistance, and construction overheads are taken as the cost of the project work
in progress and cost of unsold flats.
Material at site comprise of building matenal, components, stares and spares, consumabnles
Inventories ars valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, cost is determined on weighied average basis. Net realizable valug is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated cosis necessary to make
the saie.

3.09 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial tiability or equity instrument of
anather entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as put aptions, call options; 2nd forward contracts.

{i} Financial assets

Classillication

The Company shall classity financial assels as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprenersive
income (FYOCI) or fair value through profit or loss {FYTFL) on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial agsets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cosis that are directly aitributable to the acguisition or issue of financial
assets {other than fair valued through profit o loss) are added to the fair value of the financial assets, as approprate , on initial
recagnition. Transaction costs directly attributabiie to the acqguisition of financial assets fair valued through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or lass.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date basis, Ragular way purchases ar
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

All recognised financial assels are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cosl or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Debt instrumeants

1, A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amartised cost if both the following conditions are met:

aj The asset is hald within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual cash flaws, and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on spacified dates to cash flows that are solkely payments of principal and interest {SPP1)
on the principal amount outstanding.

2, Afler initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently maasured at amartised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discaunt or premium and fees or costs that are an integral parl of the
EIR. The EIR amodisation is included in finance income in the profit or ioss.

3, Deht instruments included within the fair vatue through profit and loss {FVTPL) category are measured at fair value with ai changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

A
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Equity instruments

The Company measures its equily invesiments in equity shares of subsigianes, joint veniras and associates at fair value frough
olher comprehensive incame

Fquity investments in companies other than equity investments in subsidiaries, joinl venturas and asscciates are measured af fair value
thraugh profit and less account.

Where the company's management has elected lo preseni fair value gains and losses on eguily investments in ather comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to prait or loss, Dividends from such investments are
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the company's right to receive payments is established.

De-recognition

A fimancial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial asseis} is pnmarily
derecagnised {i.e. removed from the Company's balance shee!) when:

The rights to racava cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred i{s rights to reczive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through” arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rawards of the asset, but has lransferrad contral of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered inio a pass-through arrangement, it
avaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has naither transferred nar retained
substantially all of the nsks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset. the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvernant. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated fiability are maasured on 2 basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing invalvement that takes the form of & guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maxjmum amaount of consideration that the Campany could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

in accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company apgplies expected credit loss {ECL) madel for measurement and recognition of impairment

loss on the following financial assets ana credit risk axposure:

a) Financial assets that are debtinstruments, and are measured at amorlised cos! 2.g.. loans, debt secunties, deposits, and bank
balance

by Lease receivables

¢} Trade receivables

The Gompany follows simpiifiad approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing companent.

All lease recervables resulting from transactions.

The apphication of simplified approach does not requre the Company to track changes in credit nsk. Raiher, it recognises impairment
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each raparting date, right from its initial recogniiion.

For recognition af impairment loss on other financiat assels and risk exposure, the Company determines (hat whether there has been a
significant increasa n the credil risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly. 12-month ECL is used to
arovide for impairment loss. Howaver, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent pesiod. cradit
quality of tha instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase n cradit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance: based on 12-month ECL.

(ii) Financial liabilities

Classification
Tha Company classifies all finapcial liabilives as subseguently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair valus
thraugh profit ar Ioss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liahilities, shall be subsegquently measured at fair value.

Debt and equily instruments 1ssued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or aquity in accordance with the
substance of the confractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial iability and an equity instrument.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liatifities are classified, at initial recagnition, as financial habilities at far value through profit or loss, toans and barrowings,
pavabias, or as derivatives designated as hedging insiruments in an effective hedge. as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities ara recogmised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and pavables, net of directly
attributable fransaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and ather payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative
financial instruments,
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Financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial kabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financiat iabilives designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or 1oss. Financial liabilities are classified as held {or trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. The company does not have any separated
embedded derivatives.

Gaing or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financizal liabifities designated upon Initia! recognition at fair value througn profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition,
and only if the critena in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FYTPL, fair valug gains/ losses attributable (o changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity, All other changes in fair value of such liabllity are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. The Campany has rot designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognitian, Intarest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized.

Amerlised cost is calculated by taking inta account any discount ¢r premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amorlisation is included as finance casts in the statement of profit and loss

This categary generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeamable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The dividends cn these prefsrence
shares are recognised in proft or loss as finance costs.

The fair value of the liability portion of an aptiorally converlible bonds is determined using a market interest rate for an aguivalent non-
convedible bonds. This amount is recorded as a liabifity on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption of
the bands. The remainder of the proceeds is atnbutable to the equity porton of the compound instrument. This is recognised and
included 10 shareholders” equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently remeasurad.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments io a creditor to extinguish all or part of
the liability (debt for equity swap}. a gain or loss is recognised In profit or ioss, which is measurad as the diffarence between the carrying
amount of the financial Fability and the fair valua of the equity instruments issued.

De-racognition

A financiat fiability is derecognised when the obligation undec the liability is discharged or cancelfed or expires. When an existing
financial liability 1s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially medified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liabllity and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the raspective carrying amounts is recogrised in the statement of profit or loss

Embedded derivatives

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of tnd-AS 109, the Company doas not separate embedded
derivatives, The Company appiies the classification requirements contained in ind AS 109 to tha entire hybrid contract. Derivatives
embeddad in all other hast contracls are accounted for as separate dervatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks ara not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for rading ar
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair vaiue with changes in fair value
recagnised in profit or loss, unless designated as affactive hedging instruments, Reassessment only occurs if there is aither a change 10
the terms of the contract that significantly madifies the cash flaws.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and habflities are offset and the net amount 15 reported in the baiance sheet where lhere 15 a legally enfarceable nght 1o
offset the recogmsed amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simulianeously
The legally enforceabie right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course af business and in
the evenl of default, insolvency or bankrupicy of the company or the counterparty

Derivative financial instruments

The Company has entered into derivative financial instruments, such as put and call option contracts and forward purchase contracts to
acquire stake from Non-controliing interasts. Such denvative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered intg and are subsequently re-measured al fair value through profit or loss account. Derivatives are
carriad as financial assets when the far vaiue is positive and as financial iabilities when the fair value 1s negative.

The company has not designated its dedvatives as hedging instruments.
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3.10

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract Ihat requires 1s5uer ta Make specified payments {o reimburse the holder for a ioss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guaraniee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at thewr fair values and, if nat designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of :

{1} the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with Impairment requirements of Ing AS 109; and

{ilithe amaunt initially recogmsed less, when appropriate. the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles
of Ind AS 18,

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate

Commitments o provide a loan at a below-market mterest rate are nitialiy measured at their fair vaiues and, if not designated as at
FWTPL, are subsequently measured af the higher of :

(i} tha amount of loss allowance determined 1n accordance with the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and

{iijthe amount initiaily recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amaunt of income recognised in accordance with the principles
of Ind AS 18

Employee benelits

(i} Short term employee benefits

Short-term empioyee benefits are expensed as the related service is pravided. A liability is racognised for the 2mount expected to be
paid if the Campany has a present legal or constructive cbiigation 1o pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
amployae and the obligation can be astimated reliably.

{ii} Compensated absences

The liabilities for earned laave and sick teave are not expected to be seflled whoily within 12 manths after the end of the period in which
the employees rander the related service. They are therefare measured as the present value of expected future payments fo be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting pericd using the projected unit credit method, The benafils are
discounted using the market vields at the and of the repoarting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
ohligation. Re-measuremenis as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or
038,

{iii} Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contnbutions to defined contribution plans ars expensed as the relaied service is provided. Prepaid contnbutions are
recognised as an asset o the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments 1s available,

(iv) Definec benefit plans

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans 1s calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of
future banafit that empioyees hava sarned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair vaiue of any
plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obiigations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the prajected unit credit method. When
the calculation resulls in a polential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is imited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductians in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value
of economic benefits, consideration is given ta any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurement af the net defined benefit tiakility, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan asseis {excluding
interest) and the aeffect of the asset ceiling (if any, exciuding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income
(OC)). Net interest expense {Income} on the net defined liabiiity (assels) ts computed by applying the discount rate, used fo measure the
nel defined liability {asset), ta the net defined lizbility (asset) at the stant of the financiai year after taking inta account any changes as a
rasult of contribution and benefit payments dunng the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related lo defined benefit plans
are recognised in profit ar loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relales to past service or the
gain ar loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss The Company racognises gains and losses on the settement of a
definad beneafit plan whan the setllement occurs.

{v} Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amaount of future banefit that employees have earned in
return for thelr service in the current and prior pericds. That baneft is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measuremeart are
racognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

These plans typically expose the Company to actuariai risks such as @ Investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary fisk:

i
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{i} Investment risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using the discount rate which is determined by
reference to market vields at the end of the repening period on govermment bonds. For other defined benefit plans, the discount rate ts
detarminad by reference to market yieids at the and of the raparting period on high quality corparate bonas when there is & deep market
for such bonds; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create 3 plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in Ingia, it has a relatively
balanced mix of invastments in govaernment securities and other debt instrumants. Further.

{ii) Interest risk : A decrease in the bang interest rate will incraase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase
in the return on the plan's debt investments.

{iii) Longevity risk : The present value of the dafined benafit pian liability is catculated by reference 1o the best estimate of the mortality
of plan participants hoth during and afler their employment. An increase in the life expectancy af the plan padicipants will increase the
plan's liability.

(iv) Salary risk : The present value of the defined beneft plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
parlicipants. An increase in the Salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

3.11 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the svents for
bonus Issue, bonus elemant in a nights issue Lo existing sharehalders, share split and reverse share spiit (consolidation of shares).
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusied for dividend, interest and other charges to
expense or income (net of any aftributable taxes) relating to Lhe dilutive potential equily shares, by the weighted average numpér of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have
heen issued on conversian of 2l difutive poiential equity shares.

3.12 Leases

The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement. whether it qualifies as lease as defined under Ind AS 118,

The Company as a lessae

The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract invalves:
(a) the use of an dentified asset,

(b} the right to abtain substantially all the economyic benefits fram use of the identified asset, and

(G} the night to direct the use of the identified asset.

The Company at the inception of the lease cortract recognizes a Right-of-Use (RoU) asset at cost and correspanding lease liability,
except for leases with term of less than tweive months {short term) and tow-valug assets.

The cost of the right-cf-use assets comprises the amaunt of the initial measurement of the lease lability, any lease payments mage at
or before the inception date of the lease plus ariy initial direct costs, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the right of-use
assets is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment losses, if any. The dght-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight-ine method from the commencement date over the shorter of iease term or useful life of right-of-use
assals.

Tha Company applias Ind AS 34 to deiermine whether a Righl-of-Use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss
in the Statement of Prafit and Loss,

For lease liabilities at inception. the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at

that date, The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the tease, if thal rate is readily determined, if that rate is
not readily determined, the lease payments ara discounted using the incremeantal borrowing rate.

The Company recagnizes the amount of the re-measurement of iease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use assets. Where the
camrying amount of the right-of-use assets is reduced {o zero and there s a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability.
the Company recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Lease payments {other than short term, low value leases) have been classified as cash used in Financing activities in the Statement of
Cash Flows.

Lease payments for short-term and low value leases, have tbeen classified as cash used in Operating activities in the Statement of Gash
Flows.

The Company has no assets given on lease to others.

A
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36

Tha oparations of the Campany 22 slassifiat as infrastruciure facrilies as defined under Schadule ¥ fo the Acl Accordingly, the hselosure requirements spacified in sub-secuson 4 ol
Secton 186 of the Act v iaspent of leans jiven wivssimenl masde or guarantes givan ar secunty pravided and the ralaied Jisclasures on gurposes/ ublisalon oy reciplent somoantes 3@

not applicable ip the Company

Dotails of imvastmants made by Campany as on 11 March 2021 (including investmants made during the year}

Nama of the entily

31 March 2020

Invasmments mada
during the year

Sala of Investmants
during tha yenr

Ind AS adjusimants

31 March 2024

A Non-gurrent investmants

Investmerit In subsidiaries

{nvastmant in erquity sharas

Agme Living Jalutions Private Limitad

208760

Armow infra Estatas Pnvate Limited 3862 11 EPE VT
Gurgaan Canstructwall Prvata Limied 316400 - STTH Q9. 792,00
Diaamed Investment in Gurgaon Consmuchvetl Private Limiled LR - G ot 61987
Gurgaon Realtsch Limited 8 - - e oo 5,068.00
TRIL Roads Prvate Limited - - - 28,243 74
Dsamad Invesiment in TRIL Roads Prvale Limilad - 262 35 2,150 28
TRIF Gumaon Housing Projects Phivate Limited - - - -
TRIL Urban Transpar Prvate Limitad 5,439 20 - 12,614 204 8.037.00
Deemead Invesiment in TRIL Urban Transpart Private Limited - - 12403131 -
‘Wallkapi Facility Management Servicas Privata Limited - - - - -
TRIL Censlructions Limited 2388 19 - W03 31 2.993.00
TRIL Infopark Limited 132,833 88 - 18373 W 1.1, 798.00
TARIL Infopark Limted {Deamad lnvestment - Cail ophon) - - -
M4 Infrastructura Privals Limited . - . -
HY Famms Prvata Limilad 100 - - 1.00
Intemational Infratuild Privata Lamitad - - - -
Deemed invastment in Infamational Infrabuid Prvals Limited 169215 - - ERLCIRD] $.880.45
Tnl Bangalutu Raal Estats One Private Limiacd - a1 - 0.10
Tnl Bangaluru Real Eslate Twa Private Limited - 21 - - 010
Tnl Bangaiuru Raal Eslata Thras Private Limited - 21 - - [31]
Tril Bangaluru Real Eslale Four Prvate Limited - a.10 013 - -
172,547 .66 5,433.30 .10 10.074,46 1.88.001.42
Itvastment in Prafaranca shares
TRIL Constuctions Limitad 701932 - - 5288 1.d7z.00
TRIL Infopark Limited 53335 00 - - 2047 00 62,862.00
B.454.32 - - 9,279.88 70,134.00
Invasipent in Debantures
TRIL Urban Trangpert Prvata Limitad 2387 60 - 1505 301 3.492.00
TRIL Roads Private Limited 375776 332020 - 270 T +1,188.00
TRIL Infopark Limited 4 850.60 - . 732300 52,385.00
HY Famms Privats Lymitad 1 064 00 - - 1,064.00
Intamational Infrabuild Privata Limited 191 60 - - - 18160
Industrial Minarals and Chemicats Company Prvata Limiked (R ER L] - - ©30 85} 12,174 00
1,00,008.91 3.320.00 - 742773 1,10.474.20
Investment in
Investment in aquily shames
Tala Housing Davetapment Sompany Limited - $4 000 £O - - 50,000.00
- 50,600.00 - - 50,000-00
Invastmant in Jarnt ventura
Investmant in aquity sharas
TRIL (T4 Prvale Limited 4C 338 21 - 333300 48,341.00
Industnal Minerals and Chemcals Company Prvate Limited 23357 T - o83 091 23,734.70
Mikado Realtors Prvate Limited 25,303 76 - - 1,005 38 24,596.00
89,222.55 - - 411245 93.334.80
mvastment in Debenturas
TRIL IT2 Privale Limitad 3140400 - . - 8.140.00
8.140.00 - - - 6,140.00
9. Cununt Invagtmants
Investment in Mutual Funds
ABSL Liguid Fund - Growth-Dirsel 19,5130 17000 6% 2253750 32133 {0.00}
Axis Qvamght Fund Durect Growth o000 071799 10,587 30 (RN 183.73
HOFC Liguid Fund - Direet Plan - Growih Ophon ‘5053 57 64 540 03 7972934 195 29 67.55
ICICT Prudenhal Ligud Fund - Diract Plan - Growmb 0220 15 9309 50 5088 37 175 36 2,500.04
TATA Yiguid fund - Direct Pian - Growih *3,39481 1,00.628.35 35 380 33 31335 20,802.08
71.179.33 1,87,361.405 2,465,567 38 77097 3.333.38
Tatal 501,950,868 256,740.45 2,48,528.08 39.382.85 5.51478.00
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37 Disclosura of ransactions with Ralated Parlias, as required by Indian Accounting Slandard {Ind AS) - 24 "Ralated Party Diacfasures” has bean sat cul balow:
{a} List of Related Parlies where contral exists;
Holding Company:
Tats Sons Pavate Limilad
Subsidiary Companies:
Acma Livng Solulions Pavale Limited
Arfow Infrasstate Private Limitad
Oharamshala Ropeway Limitad (subsidiary of TRIL Urban Transpert Private Limiaa)
Durg Shivnath Expressways Povata Limited jwholly pwned subsidiary 9t TRIL Reads Privala Limited)
Gumgaon Conslusteall Privats Limitad
Gumaon Realtech Limitad
Hamm Exprassways Privata Limited {whally ownad subsidiary of TRIL Roads Pnvate Limited)
HV Farms Private Limilsd
ntemational nfrabuid Prvate Lumited
Manali Ropeway Private Limuled [subswiiary of TRIL Urban TranspoH Prvate Limited} {upta 31 August 2020}
tdatharan Rope-Way Pnvale Limiled [subsidiary of TRIL Urban Transport Povata Limitad)
MIA Infrastructura Private Limited
TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Prvale Limited
TRIF Real Estata And Cevslopment Limited fupto 9 Dlecember 2019}
TRIL Amritsar Projscts Limited tupto 9 Deasmber 2018}
TRIL Construstions Limited
TRIL {riepark Limited
TRIL Roads Private Limited
TRIL Urban Transped Private Limitad
TRPI. Roadways Prvate Limited {wholy ownad subsidiary of TRIL Roads Private Limited) {up to 31 Klarch 2020)
Ughit Expressways Prvate Limitad (whally owned subsidiary of TRIL Roads Private Limitad)
Wallkapt Fagility Managamanl Sarvicas Pnvate Limited
Tril Bangaiuru Real Estate One Privats Limited
Tril Bangaiuru Raat Estata Two Povate Limited
Trl Bengalusu Raal Estata Thraa Privata Limded
Tnl Bangalturu Real Estate Four Private Limited {upe 21 July 2020}

{b} Juint Ventures:
A & T Road Construction Management and Operation Private Limited (tnvestiment s hald by TRIL Roads Prvate Limited, which 1s 100% sunsidiane of Tata Reaity and Infraszuctura
Limiled}
Industnal Minarals and Chemicais Company Prvaa Limitad
Mikado Reallors Private Limitad
Pune Solapur Exprassways Prvate Limiled {Invastment is hald by TRIL Roads Prvate Limited which 1s 100% subsidiary of Tata Realty and Infrastructuts Limitad)
TRIL IT4 Pnuale Limited
Pune |T City &latre Rath Limited

{ c) Associate:
Tata Housing Devalopmant Company Limited (we T 25 March 2021}

{d} Cthar relatad partles with whom transactions have taken place during tha yaar:
Faliow Subsidiariss:

Ewar nvesrrants Limied

Tala A1G Genaral Insurance Limited

Tata Asset Manacemant Limiled

Tata Communications Limited

T3ta ConsuMancy Servicas bimitad

Tata Consulng Enginzars Lumitad

Tata Etectmnics Pnvata Limitad

Tata Telesarvicas Limted

Tata Housing Devalopmant Company Limited (up ta 24 March 2021)

THOC Managemant Services Limitad

{ e} Kay Managenal Personnal:

Samay Dubl Managing Diractor & CEQ
Sanjavy Shamma Chiret Financial Officar
Vinay Gaokar Campany 3acratzry - upte 30th Movambar 2113

Sudhakar Sheity Company Secratary - w.a {. 1st Decembar 2019
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in

Associates /

Maturg of Transactions / reiationship ! major parties Holding Sub5|d|§w FE."'.JW. Joint Total
campany companies  subsidiaries Ventures
Share Application Money Received
{Alictmeni made dunng FY 2020-21) - - - - -
{1.20.000.00) - - - {1,20,000.00)
Tata Saons Private Limited - - - - -
(1.20.000 00) - - - (1,20.000.00)
Unsecured lcan taken - - B - -
- - 142,840 00) - {42,840.00)
Tata Housing Development Campany Limited - B - - -
- - (42,840 0G) - (42,840.00}
Unsecured |oan repaid - - - - -
- - (56,840.00} - {56.840.00)
Tata Housing Development Company Limited - - - - -
- - {58.840.00) - (56,840.00)
Interest expenses on unsecured loans - - - - -
- - {838 76} - {838.76)
Tata Housing Develcpment Company Limited - - - - -
- - {838.76) - (838.76)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - - 26.40 - 26.40
Tata Consultancy Services Limited - - 26.40 - 26.40
Invesiments in Equity, CCD,0CO during the year - §,758.10 50.000.00 58,755.40
- (17.672.00) - {1.313.50; {18,985.50)
TRIL Roads Private Limited - 3.320.00 - - 3,320.00
- (13,112.00) - - {13,112.00)
TRIL Urban Transport Privaie Limited - 5,439.00 - - 5,429.00
- (4,560 O0) - - {4.560.00)
tndustral Minerals and Chemicals Private Limited - - - - -
- - - {1.313.50} (1,313.50)
Tata Housing Develapment Company Limited - - - 50,000.00 50,000.00
Others 040 - 0.40
Sale of Investments in Equity,CCD,OCD during the year - 0.10 - 0.10
Ewart Investments Limited - a1 - - 0.10
Inter Corporate Deposit Given - 71,731.78 - - 71,731.78
- {43,086.52) - - (43.086.52)
Arrow Infragstate Private Limited - 22,995.72 - - 22,995.72
- (180.00} - {1580.00)
Gurgaon Constructwell Private Limited - 4,930.19 - 4,930.19
- {477.00} - - {a77.00)
Internaticnal Inrabuild Private Limited - 3.861.22 - - 3,961.22
- (9.937.95) - - {3,937.95)
Gurgaon Realtech Limited - 2987016 - - 29 870.16
{1,060.00} - - (1.060.00)
TRIL Roads Private Limited - 562100 - - 5,621.00
(3.925.00) - - {3,925.00)
TRIF Reai Estate And Development Limited - - B -
- (22,837.00) - - (22,837.00)
TRIL Urban Transporl Private Limited 4,308,00 - 4,308.00
- {3.895.18) - - {3,895.18)
Cthers - 4550 - - 45,50
- {774.39} - - {774.39)
Inter Corporate Deposit Refunded - 55.634.30 - - 55,634.50
- {48,799.48) - - (48,799.48)
Arrow Infraestate Private Limited - 21,265.00 - - 21,265.00
Gurgaon Realtech Limited 29,400.00 - 29,400.00
- (200.00% - - {200.00)
TRIL Amritsar Projects Limitad - - - - -
- (19.372.00 - - {13,372.00)
TRIF Real Estate And Development Limited - - - - -
- £25,192.00) - - (25,162.00)
internaticnal Infrabuitd Private Limited - 134.50 - - 134.50
{2,595 00) - - {2,535.00}
TRIL Urban Transpor Private Limited - 3.830.00 - 4,830.00
- (1,462,348} - - (1,462.48)
Others - 5.00 - - 5.00
- {8.00} - - {8.00)
NCOD Subscription - - - - -
- 120,100.00y - - (20.100.00}
TRIL Amritsar Projects Limited - - - - .
- (12,000.00) - - {12,000.00)
TRIF Real Estate And Development Limited - - - - -
- (8,100.00) - - {B,100.00)
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Halding Subsidiary Fallow Associates |
N Nature of Transactions / relationship / major parties R P Joint Total
company companies  subsidiaries
Ventures
Project Management Consultancy feas - 297.84 - 947.22 1,244.86
- 1,232 45) - {1,624.98} {2,857.43)
Gurgaon Realtech Limited - 42 84 - - 42,84
- {492 88} - - {493.98)
Internatiana! Infrabuild Private Limited - - - - -
- (44,11} - - (44.11}
Mikado Realtors Private Limited - - - 902.26 902.26
R - - (148521 {1,485.21)
TRIL [T4 Private Limited - - - 44 95 44.96
- - - {13977 {139.77)
TRIL Infopark Limited - 178.80 - - 174.80
- 1425.37) - - {425.37)
Uchit Expressways Private Limited - 76.00 - - 76.00
- {288.00} - - (269.00)
Asset Management Fees - 111105 - 160.44 1,280.4%
- i1.032.89} - {135.75) (1,168.64)
TRIL Infopark Limited B 1,001.57 - - 1.001.57
- (974.92) - - (974.92)
TRIL T4 Private Limited - - - 16G.44 169.44
. - - (135 75) {135.79)
Others - 109.48 - - 109.48
- (57 97} - - {57.97)
Interest Income - 1.970.00 - 1.465.20 3,435.20
- (1.961.64) - {1,265.20) {3,026.84)
Arrow Infragstate Private Limited - 373.70 - - 373.70
- (717 - - {7.17)
TRIL Roads Private Limited - 1,164 20 - - 1,164.20
- 1 1.164.20) - - {1,164.20)
TRIL IT4 Private Limited - - - 1,465.20 1,465.20
- - - (1.465.20) (1,465.20)
TRIF Real Estate And Development Limited - - - - -
- 1223 27y - - (223.27)
Others - 4321 - - 432.11
- (166.99} - - {166.99)
Othar Expenses 12.47 40.01 206.34 - 258.82
(6 811 - {62747} - {634.08)
Tata Sons Private Linnied 12.47 - - - 12.47
(8.61) - - - {6.61)
Arrow Infraestate Private Limited - 30 40 - - 30.40
Tata AlG General insurance Limded B - Q72 - .72
- - (117 41 - {117.44)
TC Travel and Services Limited - - - - -
Tata Consulting Engingers Limited - - 163.25 - 163.25
- - (451.79) - (491.79)
Tata Consultancy Services Linmted - - 38.36 - 38.56
- - {16.24) - {16.24)
TRIL Urban Transpart Private Limited - 450 - - 4,50
Others - 511 3.81 - 8.92
B - (2.02) - (2.02)
Reimbursament of expanses 6154 146.06 420.51 15.47 643.55
{19.11) {794.42} {294 38) (36.31) {1.144.22)
Arraw Infraestate Private Limited - 0.14 - - 0.14
- {0.02) - - {0.02)
Gurgacn Realtech Limited - 76 35 - - 76.35
- 1150 28) - - {190.38)
Gurgaon Constructwell Private Limited - 0.94 - - 0.94
. {007 - - (0.07)
International Infrabuild Private Limited - 28.29 - - 28.29
- {20 45) - - (20.45)
TRIL Roads Private Limited - 063 - - 0.63
B (257 28) - - (257.26)
Tata Sons Privaie Limitad 6154 - - - 61.54
i19.11} - - - (19.11)
TRiL Urban Transport Private Limited - 3307 - - 33.07
- {233.07) - - {233.07)
TRIL Amritsar Projects Limited - - - - -
- (7 B4} - - {7.64}
TRIF Real Estata And Development Limited - - - - -
- (27 461 - - (27.46)
Tata Housing Development Company Limited - - 404 60 - 404.60
- - (294 38} - {294.38)
Others - 664 1501 1547 38.02
- {58.06) - (36.31) (94.36)
Employee Benefit Transfer - 151 61 - - 151.61
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limitad - 151.61 - - 151.61
Depoesit Given - - 215 - 215
- - {153 63} - {153.83)
Tata Consuiting Engineers Limited - - 215 - 215

- - {153 83) - {153.83)
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in

Holding  Subsidiary Fallow  Associates!
Nature of Transactions / relationship / major parties K e Joint Tatal
company companies  subsidiaries
Ventures
Qutstanding Balances Recaivables B
Inter Corporate Deposit - Non-Currant - Unsacured - 66,842.08 - - 66,842.08
- 151,936.42) - - {51.936.42)
tntarnational nfrabuild Private Limited - 13.406.67 - - 13,406.67
- {9.579.95} - - {9,579.95)
Gurgzon Realtech Limited - 1.630.16 - B 1,630.16
- {1.060.00) - - {1,060.00}
TRIF Real Esfate And Development Limited - B - .
- {675.00} - - (675.00)
Gurgaon Construchwell Private Limitad - 10,219.1% - - 10,219.19
- {5.294.00) - - {5,294.00)
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited - 3217148 - - 3,217.18
- (3.739.18) - {3,739.18)
TRIL Roads Privatg Limited - 34.347.00 - 34,347.00
- {28.726.00) - - {28,726.00)
TRIL Amritsar Projects Limited - - - - -
- {916.62) - - {516.62)
Others - 4,021 89 - - 4,021.39
- {2,345.67) - - (2,345.87)
Interest Accrued but not due - 2,033.25 - - 2,033.25
- {1,287 46) - {84 05} {1.351.91)
TRIL Raads Private Limited - 1,076.89 - - 1,076.89
- (1.047.78} - {1.047.78)
TRIL Constructions Limited - 338.97 - - 398.97
- (227 80) - - (227.80)
Gurgaon Realtech Limited - 211 54 - - 211.54
- {5.21) - - (5.21)
Others - 34586 - - 345.88
- {7.07) - {64.05) {71.12)
Other Recoverable 24.94 33999 - 168.77 533.70
- (801.84) 1320.38; (34.271 {1,156.50}
Tata Sons Private Limited 2394 - - - 24.94
Arraw Infraestate Private Limited - - - - -
B (0.02; - - (0.02)
Gurgaon Realtech Limitad - 6563 - - 65.63
- {173.09} - - {172.09}
Gurgaon Constructwell Private Limited - 0.08 - - Q.08
- (0.04} - - (0.04)
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited - - - -
- (21.93) - - {21.93)
TRIL Constructions Limited - 20473 - - 204.73
- {204.73) - - (204.73}
TRH. Roads Private Limitad - - - - -
- 1275.68) - - (275.68)
Tata Housing Deveiopment Company Limited - - - 15502 155.02
- - - (317.93} (317.93)
Others - 69.56 - 13.75 83.31
- {402.03) (2.46) 34.37 (370.21}
Trade Receivable - 402.78 368.57 20545 976.84
(22.55) (801.92} {300.00} {734.51} {1.858.99)
Gurgacn Realtech Limited - 7012 - - 70,12
- {391.34) - - (391.34)
TRIL nfopark Limited 254.47 - - 254 47
- {354 54) - - {354.54)
Mikado Realtors Private Limited - - - 20549 205.43
- (734,51 1734.51}
Intarnatioral infrabuild Private Limited - 993 - - 9.93
- (8.404 - - (8.40)
Tata Consultancy Services Limited - - 368.57 - 368.57
- - {300.00} - {300.00)
Tata Sons Private Limited - - - - -
{22.55} - - - {22.55)
Others - 68 25 - - 68.25
{17 .65} - - (47.65)
Provigion for Inter Corporate Depasit - 611862 - - 611.62
- {611.62) - - (611.62)
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limiled - 95.00 - - 95.00
- 195 00y - - {95.00)
TRIL Amritsar Projects Limitegd - 516 62 - - 516.62
- {516.62) - - {516.62)
Provision for Interest Accrued but aot due - - -
- (10.00 - - {10.00)
TRIL Urban Transpert Private Limitad - - - - -
- (10.00} - - {10.00)

4



Tata Reaity and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the standalona Ind AS financial statements {Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency Indian rupess In lakhs)

i

. o . Hoiding  Subsidiary Follow ~ “Ssociales/
Nature of Transactions / relationship f major parlies . L Joint Total
company companies  subsidiaries
Vanturas

Provision for Advances recoverable - - - -
- {35.00) - - {35.00)

TRML Urban Transport Private Limited - - - - -
- £35 00) - - {35.00)

Qutstanding Balances Payable -
Trade Payahle B 0.12 §.32 6.93
- - (165 74) - {185.74)
Tata Consultancy Services Lid - - 6.54 - 6.54
- (5 36) - (5.36)

Tata Consulting Engingsers L_td - -
- - (159.71} - 1159.71}
Tata Communications Ltd - - 0.28 - 0.28

Tata Taleservices Lid. - - - - -
- - 0 66} - (0.66)
Others - 012 - - 0.12
Remuneration to KMP 1,053.79
(1.132.76)
Sanjay Dutt” 669.47
(717.64)
Sanjay Sharma 281.80
(271.28)

Vinay Gaokar .
{111.99)
Sudhakar Shatty 102.52
{31.86)

- Figures in brackets pertains to previous year

* Recavery of managerial remuneralion from fellow subsidiary is not netted off for this disclosure

&






Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
CIN No: U701020H2007PLE 188300
Notes 1o Ind AS financial statements
for the vear anted 31 March 2021
{Currency: Indian rupges in lakhs)

{iw)

Balanca Sheat Reconciliatlon
Qpaning nel hability
Expanse as abave

Emplovar's canmbution racaved ¢ 1pand)
Ameuat recagnised in Balance Sheel

Agtueanal Assumpbions @
Discount Rate
3alarv ascalaton
Artntion Rata

Estimaleas of fufure salary ncreases, conaserad in 2cluanal valuanon ke accaunt of inflebion, senoaty, premation and ather 1atevant lactors such as supply And damand m the

smployment markal

w13
8523,
(1576

23028

Far
o 0%
5 07%

387 93
100 38
187 02
38129

}

535%

7 00%

b

21 50%

Tha Company's lahility on account of gramuty 15 not funded and hence. e Disclesures relating 1o the planned assets ars not applicable

Expariance Adjustments:
Dafired benafit abligation
Plan assets
Surplus ¢ {Danicit

Expenences adjuslmant on plan hiaplities

31 March 2011

1 March 2020

<3025

128745,

Expetianca adjustment ar plan assats -

Qther long tarm ampleymant bansfils

Compansated absences

The lamiity lowards compansatad absences for the year endad 71 March 2021 recognisaed wn the Balance Shesl based on 3ctuanal valualion using tha projected unil sradit mathad

amounted to INR 427 15 lakhs (2020 INR 129 80 lakhs)

Sansitivity analysis

Reasonably poasible changaes 3t tha raporting date o ona of the relevant actuanal assumplions, halding clher assumplions constani, aould hava affectad the defined oeneft obiigation

by the amounls shown below

Salary ascalalian (% movament)

Discount rata { % movamant)

Salary ascalation 1% movement)

Atintion Rate % movemant)

38729

{181 29

1

31 March 2021 M March 2029 31 March 2020 31 Maich 2620
oMb Doacrexia Increase Derrrase
e 21 2 1) 2z
24 P 22 21}
(R 3 17 133

40 Financial instruments ~ Fair values and risk management
A, Accounting classification and falr vaiues

The followng tahla shows the carrying amounts and fair values of Bnancial assats and financial ligbities, maluding eir 1gvals in the fair valua hisrarchy i does not include fair v atlua Information for finanaat
assels and fingneial lizbdites if tha samying amaunt 18 a reasonabia aporoximation of farr value The Company s secufed luan under current matunties has baan cantracted 31 floating rales of intarast which

are rasel Al shont intervats. Accardingly, the camang vaive of such fong-term debl far valus
Carrying amount Fair voiue
. al 3 - Significant
31 March 2024 FYTRL FVTOCH Amortisad Gost Tatal Loval 1 - Quoted price Level 1- Significant qunnb!ar?labii " Total
in active markats obsarvabia inputs N
inputs
Financial assets
Nor-current financial assets
- Equny nsirumants 339,36 52 - 3.38 396 12 - 338 338 32 3.38.096.02
subsiaranas it eanturas and
assaciate
- Prafarance snares - RCRESK - Thr3 - bR 70,134.01
- 22nds and deharturas 38 340 90 1217400 EREInfets) * 154140 - - MADETER: 1.10.474.80
Lapg-eam .oans and 3dvances 30308 77 - - 50508 °7 30 36 7 50,506.77
Cther non-currant financial asssts - - 77 ars - -
Current financial assots
Currenl prasiments 23333 38 - - 1335333 23333 - - 23,333.38
Traue recanablas - - P32 st 11z - - - .
Cash and ash aquivaent: - - 14 347 08 *3347 08 - - -
Cthar Sans 3aiancas - - - - - - - -
3hari-term loans and 3uvarces - - 383 56 33330 - - -
ihar frangial assais - - 2095 38 - - - -
Tola| Financial Acsals 1,72,140.75 4.21,704.03 £.20,583 §% 23,333 38 - 570,511 40 551,844 76
Financia! liooiHties
Nenr-current Financial abiities
—Ong.l3TA AOMLWINGS - ‘aa339 09 14132408 - -
Othar hnancat Lagdles - - 127 a1 127 - - . -
Current Financial habllitien
Shant-tarm borgwengs - - A% 73886 -
Trads and sthar payacles 1har - - El-Ra -} - - -
than MSKE
Dther inanziar haoty T 3TE 00 - 93 882 3% 01 75399 - 7376 30 7,878.00
Total Financial Uabilities 7,476 00 - 1.27,884.75 3.35,780.75 N . 7.876.00 7,876.00




Tata Realty and infrastructure Limited

CIN No: UT0102MH2007PLT 168300

Notes to Ind AS financial statements

for the vear ended 31 March 2021
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs}t

Carying amount Fair valug
Level 3 - Significant
31 March 2020 FVTPL FyTOC! Amortised Cast Total Loval 1 - Buntod price L:;::rz"::g"""if"l:' anlsarabie Tatal
‘nputa

Firancial assats
Nan-gurrent financial assets
- Equiy instrumenis n 28777021 - 261,770 21 - - 26577020 2.81,720.21
submdianas, jont wenluras and
|associate
-Prafarenca shams - - 00,854 32 - - 80,854 32 80.854.32
- Bonds and gabanturas 87 59t 28 12,314.0% B8.143 08 108,126 81 - - 1 Dt 006 B 1,00,006.81
Lahg-term lkaans and sdvances 3070918 - - 39,700 18 - - 3970918 39,709.18
Othgr nor-curment financial essats - 078 a7a - - - -
Currant financlal ssnats
Cumenl nyastments 7147833 - - 117933 7117533 - - 71,479.33
Trade recaivablas - - 187840 1,876 42 - - . .
Cash and ¢ash aquivaients - - 29,580 30 25,580 30 - . - -
Cther Bark Batancas - - 1625 41825 - - - -
Bhor-term loens and advances - - 2484 51 2,484 61 - - - .
Othar financial asssls - - 1,420 91 142891 - - - -
Total Financlal Assats 1,28,560.38 3,34,939.4 38.912.14 £,73,432.01 71.,178.23 - 4,02,340.53 5,33,519.87
Finangial (labilities.
Non-current Finencial flebilities
Long-term bamowings - B 138419.04 1,39.418.04 - - .
inteqgst accrued but not dus on - - 5.832 57 583257 - - -
bomowinas
Qther financigf iabilies - - 138 52 138352 - - -
Current Financial lfabiities
Short-larm barrowings. - - 95,303 21 85,303.21 - - -
Trada and othar payables olher 3,185 66 318585 - - - .
than MSME
Othar financial habilly 7421 00 - 5701153 4,132 53 - . 712100 7424.00

7.121.00 - 3,00,690.52 308111562 - - 7.121.00 7.121.00

FVTPL : Fnlr yalund through prefit or loss

FVTOCI - Fair valuad through oth
B. Massuramant of fair vajues

et eomprehansive incoms

Yaluation tachriquas and significant unobservable inputs
The Campany has gppainted Indepsndant valuar {o delermina tha fair valus of each of s mvestments The Company heg given certain unoksarvable inputs 1o tha valuer to computa the valualien Considanag micro markat and
Industry scanano he veluer has dermved valuation by uaihg apprapnate technigue for yeluation The Campany has sccountsd fair valuation gam / loss in value of 4s investmenls using this rapart

The following table shows the valuation techniguas tsad in measenng Laval 2 and Level 3 fair values for finencial instryments massurad al faw value in the slatement of financial pesiion as well as the sgnificant ucabserabls

npuls used
Financial instruments measurod

at feir value

Typa

Valuation techniqus

Significent
unehservabla inputs

Intar-relationship batwasn
significam unobsarvable Inputs.
and falr value measurament

Unquated squily sharss (TRIL.
Infopaek Limited §

Linguoted aquidy shares (TRIL [T
Pryate Limilad)

Unguolad equity sharss|
(Iniemational  Infrabuild  Privala
Lrmated)

Uaquated equiy shares (Miksdo|
Realars Prvate Limitadt

Unduotad ejuty shares (Gugaon

Raaltech  Limtad Amrow
Inframsiels  Prvata  Limited /]
Gurgapn  Canstructwell  Prvata
Lmitsdl

Discauntad cash flow technique DCF methodianalysis s a financial
mogdeiling techniqua kased an explicl assumptiana regardmg Ihe
Rrospeciia incema ansing cut of the subject proparty In case of &
valugian of 2 large lanhd parcel, whers the davelopment potantial s
realizad over a pariod ai tima ne time valua ol morey comes into the
proture) and also whara them are no or faw immediata similer plopanies
{1 & comparabie) avadsble for companson, OCF mathed considaring
migvant potantiat gavelopments of Ihe pojact s useg

* Rent growih svary ihree years (%) 2021 12%
- 18%). {2020, 12% - 1B%)

* Stabifisad Qooupancy (%) 2021, 84 % (2020
Ba%)

* Capnalizalion Rate (%) 2021 85% -9 0%
{2024 8 5% - 9 0%}

Estmated fair valua woullf incragss (derraass ) if axpectad laase
rent ware highar (lawar)

Estimaled fair valus would wnereass dacreass) f sxpacisd lsass
| escalaiian wers nighar ilower)

Eshmated falf valus wauld gecraasa f accupency 15 lawer

" Rent growth every three years {%) 2021 12%
18% (2020 12% - 18%),

* Stabtlised Otcupancy (%) 2021 94% {2020
G3%)

* Ceptalization Rate {%) 2021 8 0% - 8 5%
(2020 85 % - 0%}

" Rant growth Bvary thrae years (%) 2021 12%
18% {2020. 12% - 18%).

" Qcupancy (%) 2021 87% (2020 05%)

- Cepitalization Rats %) - Nol applicable

~ Ranl growth evary three years (%) 2021 12% -
8% {2020. NA)

~ Stahilised Cocupancy () 202t 4% {2020
NA)

~ Capitalization Rata (%) 2021 6 5% -9 5%
(2020 NA}

* Renl growth avery inree years %) 2021 1% o
$8% {2020 12% - 18%)

* Stabalizad Docupancy {%) 2021 4% (2020
34%)

" Capialzation Rala (%) 2021 4% - 10.0%
{2020 0% - 10.0%]

E fair vaiue would increasa (dacreasa} f axpacted leasa
250alauon wete [ower {highar)

Unguotad  equity  shares (Tata,
Housing Omustopment company|

Rafer Fool nate 3 1o Note 5

and Chermicals Prvats Limited)

valuaban of a large land parcel. whare the developmianl potential is
realtzed gver a pared of time 4i & Ume valua of money comes inle ihe
pucture ana iso whara thers ame no or few immadiate similer properes
ive comparahie; available for companson

Limited!
Unquotad  eguity  shares & Discounted cash flow technigus. DCF method/analysia is & financral Taghniqua - Land Gampanson Mathed has £stimatad fair valug would incresse (decraase} f fair valus ol
Campulsary Coavedible| madelling techniqus based on axplicit assumplions regarding the baan used for valustion land ncreasas! decreasas

Dabenturas  (Industngl  Micerals! prospactve income ansing aul af the subect properly Ip casa af a




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

CIN Ne' U70102MH2007PLC1B8300

Notes ta Ind AS financlal statements

fer lhe vear ended 31 March 2021
{Currency: Indian rupees in fakhs)

Typo

Vaiuation technique

Signficant
unobsoryabla inputs

Intar-retationship batween
significant unobservabla inpuls
and fair valus measuramant

Invasimanis m unlisted corporate
dedl instrumants

Optienslly & Fully Cerwsribla
Debaniures- TRIL Roads Pavats
Lmited

Tha valug of the plain vanilla debantura s garerally estimated as prasent
vetue of fulure expactad sash lows

Tha Company has usad Monte Caro Simulatian 1o estimote the fair valus |
of the compulsonly converible debanturas and ophonslly convartitle
dBbentures

2024

* volallty of shers pnee of comparable
campanias (47 08% of wolaulity) (2020 57 17 %
3

"if Equity valua pf unksied caompany o asesidecreasss) by
10%, then fair value would {decmasslincreaza

=il thara is an (ncreese | (decreaca) of 10% wolalfily in shere
pnces of comparabla companies  (hen tha lair valus wautd
Increasai{dacraase)

Optionally Convanibla Babenlures|
HV Famms Prvets Limitad

The value of the piain venilla debanture 15 ganarzlly estimated 3s presant
value of fulure sxpected cash lows
The Company has used Monte Carlo Simulalion 1o estmale the far valua

2021
= Valablity of sham pnce of comparabls
campanies WolabMy (Mol spplicable (2020

“If Equiy vaive of unlisted company increases/{dacreases) by
10%. then fair value would (decrsass)iincragse
*if thare 1s an Increass f {dacrease) of 10% volatiiity 1In ahare

TRIL Urban Trapspatt Private
Limied

valug of futurs sxpected cash fows
The Company has ysed Monle Cara Simulation u estimale tha faur value
of tha compulsonly convertibla dehenturss and aotioneity convambls

* Vaolatiny of shars pnce of comparabls
compenias {37 05 % of velatiity) (2020 59 43
0]

of tha campulsonly converlibre debanluias and optionaly convartible Mot Applicabla § pnces ol comparabla campanes | then the Tair vatus wourd
dabaniumss incraase/tdecraasa)
Optignatly Convartible Debanlures! The valua of the plam vandle debeniura 15 ganerally astmated a3 presant | 2021 i Equity value of unlisied company increasestdacraasas) by

10%, (hen fair velus would (decreaselincraass
“IFthara i5 &n Incragsa / {decreasa) of 10% walatbty in share
preas of comperable companigs, Iben s fair vatse wouln

|debanturas

Fully Convenibla Praferanca
Shares- TRIL Infepark Limited

flows

Tha Company has used Mante Carle Simulation 1o estunats the fav valus
aof tha campulsanly converible prafsrence and gpiinnafly convanivle
preference shares

* Valauity of shara prca of compamyia
companies |40 45% of valaliitys (2020 45 72
Gk

Compulsarty Convaribla) 2021
Dabentures- TRIL Infopark * Volanlty of share pros of comparable
Limitad 40 45 % of yolstidy) (2620 45 72
%)
Invastmaants in prafarance sharas
The valua is gensrally esimated as prasent vaiue of fulurs 2xpacied cash|2021 “f Equity vatue of uhlistad campany mereases){dscraases) by

1030, than fert value would increase: dacrease)

~If thers is Bn Increase £ (decmease} of 10% wolatilly in share
prices of comparable companies  than the Ve velue woule
decrease

Fully Convertitls Prafarsnce
Shares- TRIL Construcions
Limitac

Tha valus s gsnerally astimatad as prasant value of fulurs expeciad cash
flows

The Campaay has used konts Carde Simulation to Bsimale the fai valus
of tha y canvanibla praf and

|piafarence sharas

Techrique - Lend Comparison Method hes
oean ysed for valuation

If Eciuny value of uniisled compeny imcressas/{decraases) by
10% then (arr valua would (decreasa)hncraass

Darivaliva -Put option

Tamd Nadu Industnat Carporalion
Limitad {FIGCO" ¢ Put aptior

Tha Campany has used Monta Carda Simuletion to eatmele the fair value
of tha aphons

20
~ Volatilily of shars poca of comparabla
companies (42 72% of wolatlity) (2020 48 18%1

<if Equity vakie of vnlisted sompany mrmasesf{decraases) byl
10% then far value would (decradselincrease

*If thare «s an Incredsa ¢ {dacrasss) of 10% wolallity in sham|
prices of comperable compares . then the far wvalua would
Increaseldacreasay

Put ! call oplions

The Indian Hotels Company
Limitad {THCL™) Zalt aptipn

The Company haz used Mante Catlo Simulatron o gslimate the fair vatus
of the ootians

2621

* ataify of shar once af compsrable
companis (42 18% of volatilty) (202D 45 44
%)

“ Enuily valua of unlisled campany Increasasidecmasash Oy
10%, then fair yeive wauid {decreasa)incroase

~if thers is an Increase / (decreasa) af 10% yolalility i share
priees af compareble companiss . han tha fesr valus would
increess/decreass)

Amortised cost lype iems
{including secunly dapasds, I0BOS

cesh lrade raceivablas and
|oayaties 1

Discouniad cash fow approach The waluation model considers the
prasent veiue of sypecied paywent discountad using 3 nsk adjusted
discount rate

ot applicabla

ol 2pohaabla




Fata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
TN Mot U700 MHZO07PLT 158300

Notes to Ind AS financial statements

for the vear 2oced 31 March 2001

(Currancy: Indian rupees inlakhst

41 Disclosure in respect of Sale of Residential Flats

Disclosura i respact of Construction Contacts.

For the year endad For tha year ended

Padticulars 3t March 2021 7t Mare 2070
Conlrag! revanua racogqnssd as ravenue dunng the vear 9,658 30 13050 57

Particulars 37 Mareh 2021 3 March 2020
Cumutative revanua racagnised AT 110,387 48
Cumulaiive costs racogmsad 01 5 158 B4 724 33
Cumuiative margins accaunad o4, 708 8] 3363715

Advances pard 48 -

17043 4010

Rstention money payabls

42 Financial instruments - Fair valuas and risk managament
(i) Financial risk managemant

The Company has siposure ta the followang 11sks ansing from financial instruments.

A Cradit ask
B Liguidity nsk
€ Markel nsk

Risk managamani framawork

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibiity for the astaplishmanl and ovaraight of the Company s nsk managemant framewoik The Campany manages markat nsh
through 3 reasury departmant, which evaluates and axercises indapendertt conirol over the enbra procass of market nsk managamen! Tha treasury deparynant recommends vsk

managamsnt objaclives and pahicies, which are approvad by Board of Direciors The

snsurag complianca with markat rsk limits ang poiicies.

of this dep W mclude 1ent of cask r borowing swatagiss, and

The Company's 1isk managamant policres are established io wenlify and analyss the asks faced by the Company, lo set appropiale nsk Kmuts and contrals and lo mamtar nsks and
athgrance lo imils Risk managsmenl policies and systems ara mvieawed requlary (o reflect shanges in mearket condiions and the Company's acliviies The Campany throogh its
framing and manageman! standards and procedorss. 2ims o mamtan a disoplined and consiructiva canirol anvionmant in which all smplayess undersiand thair reiss and abhigalans

The Board of Direstors oversees how managemsnt maniors compliance wilh the company s Nsk management poli

and grocedurss, and reviews (he adaauacy of the nsk

maragemant framework 1n relation ta the sks faced by tha Company The Hoard 5 3ssistad in s oversight role by mietnal acdit. Intemal audit undsnahkes bothr requiar and ad huc
raviaws of nsk managemanl contrels 3nd procedures, tha resllis of which are reporied to the Board of Dirsctors.

A. Crodit Risk

Cradit rigk 15 the nsk of financial loss fo the Company § a customer or counterparty 1o a financial nstrumeni fails fo meet 18 Sontraclual obligations. ana anses pncipally from the
Campany's rerawvahias fram costomars, foang and advancas fa related parties and aivasimants st amartised cast. Cradit tisk s 1navaged trough craght anprovals, astablishing cradit
imits and conbnuously monitorng the craditworthiness of cusidmears to whish the Company grants oradit temms in the normal coursa of business The Company astabbshas zn allowancs
for doubtful debts and mpaimment that 1apresents s astimats of incurred Isses in raspact of trads and olher recevables Ipars and advances and invastmants

Trada and other racaivables

The Company 3 axpesura 1o 2redit 18k s influanced malnly by the individual characlenstcs of each cuslomer Tha dsmographics of the sustomar. including the default rsh of the ndustry
and country in which the cusiomer oparates. also has an influenca on cradit visk assessmant Cradit nsk 15 managed through craait approvals, sstablishing cradit limits and conttnuously
monitonng tha sraditeoriness of cystomars o whneh the Company grants credit tarms in tha nornal coursa of business

Cradit risk fur receivables pariaining to residantial business

Tha nsk for wade recaivables penainng 1o rasidential businass 1s col 4 n|l as the of the residantal property 1s ansfarrad only after the ¢ecmpt of paymant trom the

custamsr

Summary of tha Campany's expoaurs lo credit nsk by 3gs of the auts!anding trom various cugtomers s 3s follows

Parlicuiars. 31 March 2031 11 March 2020
Past dqua 1-30 days wtT R 1417395
Fast due 31-140 days a2 3305
Pasl due 181-365 days L7 17
Pagt dys mara than 385 11857 424 21

141237 1.878.42

Cash and cash equivalenls

Tha Cempany held cash and bank nalances with credt worlhy banks and finansiat Inatitutians of INR 14,947 33 lakhs and INR 26,000 30 lakhs a8 at 31 March 2027 and 31 March 2020
raspechively Tha cradit worthiness of such banks and Ainancial institutions is ayaluaed by tha managemant on an ongaing basis and 1s considared o be good

Darivallvas

Tha denvatisas are entered inlo with credit warthy counterpartias The cradit wanhinass 1s avaluated by the management on an angaing basis and 13 considerad to be goad

Sacurity deposils given ta lessors

The secunty depasit majorly pariains 'o rent depesit amountng fa INR NIL [skhs and INR NIL takhs as a1 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 reapactively The Company does not axosc!

any losses fram nan-parfatmanca by theses <ounier-parties

B. Liquidity risk

Liquidity aisk is the nsk lhal the Company wll not oo abla to meet ds financal abligations as they hecama dua The Company manages its houidity nsk by ansunng, as far as possibla, that
o wll always bave sufficient liguidity o meet it liakilities when due, undar both nermal and stressed canditions, wilhout incurring unaccaplabls losses or rsk to the Compay s reautation
The Company has obtainad fund and nan-fund basad warking capital lines fram banks, commaraial papsrs ssued 1o Muiual funds and through 1sswe of detientures The Company alsc
zonstantly monitars funding options svalable n (ha debt and capital marers wath 1 view ta mamtainng financral flexibiity

Exposura ta liquidity risk

The tahle batow analyses the Gompany's financial abiites inlo relavant malurity groupings basad on thair conbracteal matnties for

* all nan denvativs finangial kabiiies

* nat and grass sattled danvaliva financial inswuments for which the contracieal mawrities are sgeptial for Ihe understandging f the timing of the cash flows

Contractual cash flows

Ag at 31 March, 2021 Carrying amount Tatal 1 year of lass 1+Z yaars 2-3 yeara More Lhan
S years
Mon.darivativa financial lizbilities
Commercral gaper rssued 53798 66 47,500 00 47 500.00 - - -
to mutual funds
Trade and other payables 375108 373168 375108 - - -
Qthar finanwiat Nabilitiss 04,010 B2 34,006 89 4 00829 - - -
Non sanvenibla debenturas 236 82419 184,500 00 - 94,300 00 70,000 00 -
4,00.384.75 3,29,757.97 £,65.257.97 94.500.00 70,000.00 -
Derivativa financial liabilities
Dany atives liabilities at far TAZG OO 787600 787600 - - -
valug
7.876.00 7.876.00 7.876.00 - - -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of TATA Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of TATA Realty
and Infrastructure Limited (“the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) which includes the Group’s share of loss in
its joint ventures but does not include the Group's share of profit / (loss) in its associate for
reasons stated in Note 52 (d) (iii) to the consolidated financial statements, the amount thereof
is not likely to be material, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2021, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income}, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financla!
statements of subsidiaries and joint ventures referred to in the Other Matters section below,
the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended {'Ind AS"), and
other accounting principtes generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of
the Group as at 31 March 2021, and their consolidated loss, their consolidated total
comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for
the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of cur report. We are
independent of the Group, its associate and joint ventures in  accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph
(a) of the Cther Matters section below, is sufficient and approprtiate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on this matter. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit

matter to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter

Auditors’ Response

Impairment Assessment of certain
Non-current asset(s):

The Group has the following account
balances as disclosed in the consolidated

balance sheelt as at 31 March, 2021:

Particulars Amount
(Rs in
lakhs)

Investment property 2,28,146

Right to use an asset 1,23,403

Investment property under 84,875

construction

Goodwill on consolidation 19,053

Intangible assets under 1,73,215

development, under

Service Concession

Arrangements

Intangible assets under | 1,75,904

Service Concession

Arrangements

Investment accounted | 125,343

using Equity Method

(associate and joint

ventures)

In line with the consolidation procedures,
investments in subsidiaries are
eltminated in consolidated financial
statements and the underlying assets of
the subsidiaries are reflected in the
consolidated financiai statements as
disclosed above. Investments in
Assaciate and Joint ventures do not get
eliminated and are reflected at cost
adjusted for share of profit / (loss) under
equity method.

Impairment assessment, using the resufts of
testing of fair values of investment at the
standalone financial statement level for
determining impairment, if any, in the
carrying amounts of non-current assets listed
alongside:
We assessed the Group's/Company’s process and
controls around valuation of non-current
investments carried at Fair Value which involved
testing of the design and operating effectiveness of
the internal controls and substantive testing as|
follows:

Evaluated the design of the internal controls

relating to the valuation of  non-
current investments at Fair value.
s Tested the operating effectiveness of

controls around review of assumptions and
estimates used in evaluation of inputs for the
purpose of fair valuation, We carried out a
combination of procedures involving enguiry
and observation, and inspection of evidence in
respect of operation of these controls.

Principal audit procedures performed:
+ Assessed the management's maker / checker
controls over preparation of the discounted
cash flow model for the wvaluation of
investments and controls ocver management’s

analysis of the wvariances in values in
comparison with previous year.
s Ascertained whether the fair value off

investments has been determined by external
independent  wvaluer, having appropriate
professional expertise and recent experience in
the location and category of the property
underlying the investments being valued based
on information and explanations provided by
the management.
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All the investments referred above,
namely, in subsidiaries, associate and
joint ventures have been accounted for at
fair values in the standalone financial
statements of the Company which is also
the basis of determining whether any
impairment in the above balances s
required.

The determination of the fair value off
investments and consequently the
determination of impairment, if any, in
values of the above stated non-current
asset {s), requires significant
management judgement, due to various
assumptions / estimates such as market
rent levels, toll revenues, expenditure to
be incurred, vacancy factors, prevailing
market yields and market transactions,
cash flows as well as impact due to
COVID 109,

The impairment assessment of the
carrying amount of the above stated
balances is considered to be a key audit
matter as these amounts represent a
significant portion of the total assets of
the Group included in the consolidated
financial statements, coupled with use of|
significant management judgements and
estimates and use of Management’'s
experts in determining the fair values, cn
the basis described above, to assess
whether any impairment exists.

The audit procedures followed for testing
of the above referred account balances
involves testing of fair values of
investments at a standalone financial
statemnents leve! of the Company and the
results of the same are used for
determining impairment, if any, in the
audit of consolidated financial
statements,

their board meeting held on 25 March, 2021, the
fair value was based on valuation report obtained

change in fair value as at 31 March, 2021 (Refer
footnote 2 to Note 9 of consolidated financial

Involved Internal Fair Value Specialists for
reviewing the key assumptions used in
valuation like Weighted Average Cost of Capital
for the purposes of determining the discount
rate, capitalisation rate, market rent levels,
vacancy factor, toll road traffic growth/decline
volume. Tested arithmetic accuracy of the cash
flow models prepared by the Management.
Performed analytical procedures by comparing
assumptions and fair values on a year-on-year
basis and obtained reasons for the variations.
Compared that the fair value of each subsidiary
and joint ventures (as considered In the
standalane financials of the Company for the
purpose of fair valuation) with their
corresponding carrying value reflected in the
appropriate non-current asset{s). In cases
where the carrying value exceeded the fair
value, ensured that provision has been made
for impairment

With reference to the investment in an associate
which was approved by the board of directors in

from an independent registered valuer. This
transaction being very close to the year end,
management is of the view that there would be no

statements).

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

s« The Parent’'s Board of Directers is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not include
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, standalone financial statements and our

auditor’'s reports thereon.
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» QOur opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibitity
is to read the other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries
and joint ventures audited by the other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and,
in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consoclidated Ind AS financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. Other infoermation so far as it refates to the subsidiaries and joint ventures, is
traced from their financial statements audited by the other auditors,

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Parent’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consoclidated changes in
equity of the Group including its Associate and joint ventures in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group and of its associate and joint ventures are responsible
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its associate and its joint ventures and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements by the Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group and of its associate and joint ventures are responsible
for assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their
respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate

and joint ventures are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Group and of its associate and joint ventures.

&
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consoclidated Ind AS Financial
Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusicn, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group and its associate and joint ventures to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditicns may
cause the Group and its associate and joint ventures to cease to continue as a going
concern.

« Evaluate the gverall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group, its associate and joint ventures to express
an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities or business activities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities or business activities included
in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors,
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such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be infiuenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of six subsidiaries, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs.3,59,583.32 lakhs as at 31 March, 2021, total revenues of
Rs.49,784.92 lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs.1,203.66 lakhs for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consotidated financial
statements also include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 917.07 lakhs for the year ended
31 March, 2021, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of three
joint ventures, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by
the Management and our opinion on the Ind AS consolidated financial statements, in so far
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and joint
ventures, and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and joint ventures is based solely on the reports of the
other auditors.

(b) The consolidated financial statements does not include the Group’s share of profit / (loss)
in its associate, for reasons stated in Note 52 (d) (iii) to the consolidated financial statements,
the amount thereof, which, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us by the Management of the Parent, is not likely to be material to the Group, whose
financial information have not been audited by us. These financial information are unaudited
and have been furnished to us by the Management of the Parent and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of this associate, in Note 52 {d) (iv) to the consolidated financial
statements, is based solely on such unaudited financial information,

Our opinicn on the consoclidated Ind AS financial statements above and our report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the repoits of the other auditors and the
financial statements certified by the Management.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and joint
ventures entities referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consclidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Fiows and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent
Company as on 31 March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company
and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and joint venture
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its joint
venture companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

fy With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure
A" which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent company, subsidiary companies and
joint venture companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial
reporting of those companies.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Parent Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending

litigations on the consclidated fimancial position of the Group, its associate and joint
ventures.
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i) Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, as required
under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if
any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protecticn Fund by the Parent Company, and its subsidiary companies,
associate companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

1 ——
’{_. F Al

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

(Partner)
{Membership No. 32690)
(UDIN: 21036920AAAACCB077)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 June 2021
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reparting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company
as of and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (hereinafter
referred to as “Parent” and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, its joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financiat Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and joint ventures,
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
estabiished by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeqguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial infermation, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its joint ventures, which are companies
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “"Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
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Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors of the subsidiary companies joint ventures, which are companies incorporated
in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its joint ventures,
which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accerdance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaiuation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other
Matters paragraph beiow, the Parent, its subsidiary companies and joint ventures, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the criteria for internal
financial control over financial reporting established by the respective companies considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
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Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act on the adeguacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to
six subsidiary companies and three joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India,
is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated
in India.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No, 117366W/W-100018)

1 - —t—
[_. A

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

(Partner}
{Membership No. 32690)
(UDIN: 21036920AAAACCE077)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 June 2021
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Tata Realty and I[nfrastructure Limited

Consolidated statement of cash Nows for the year ended 31 March 2021
tCurrency: [ndian rupees in fakhs)

3 March 2021 3 March 2020
A Cnsh flows from operating nctivities «
(Loss) before tax 29.647} (35,836}
Adjused for:
Depreciation and amortisation 20,94 [7.2510
Excess provision written back - (4
Profit en sale of curreny investmients in Muiual Funds (73%) {R92)
Provision for credit impaired Trade Receivables no longer required writien back - (172
Provision for Major Mamtenarce of Road 1,818 1219
Provision for Major Mainterance of Other Assels B3 -
Mark 10 Market loss / {pain} o Forward / Denivative: Contracts 2,252 1,103
Mark to Market gain on current wyesiments in butual finds (62} (435
Provision for credit impaired Trade Receivables - 306
Provision for eredit impaired Inter corporate deposits - 517
Advances written ofT - 207
Interest income (2.683) 13,867
Finance costs 60,058 60,186
Share of loss frowmn joint ventures 1,227 198
Proffl on sale of property. plaint and equipment - i
Provision for diminuwtion n value of lnvestments 8,456 -
Impaimment in value of latangible asset under SCA and Building - 11.3t4
Loss on Sale of Non-Current [ovestments - 34
Provision for Employce Benefits M4 |
Loss oo sale of property. plant 2nd equipment 2 1
Operating profit before working capifal changes 62,149 31,404
Changes in working capital
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables 93 1153y
Decrease in lnventories 6,458 10,134
increase o Loans & Advances. Other Financial Assels and Other Curtent Asseis 14,626) (1,130)
Increase / {Decrease) i Trade payables 252 (3.584)
Increase in Other financial tiabilities, current and non current lisbilities and provisions 5,524 13.132
Cash flows generated from operating activities 70687 69,800
Taxes paid (et of refund received) 1,958 {1.853)
Net cash Mows generated from operating activifies 72,645 47.945
B Cash flows from investing aceivities :
Payment for purchase and consiruction of propery, plant and equipment (298} 110N
Proceeds an sale of property, plant and 2quipinent 197 15
Paymenls for intangible assets / mtangible assets under developrient (24,945) 108.281)
Payments for investment property / investment propesty tmder construction {53M) 123.631)
Invesiment in joint ventures and associate 156,339 [5.7504
{nvesmment in egnity shares of other companies {49 [4%.LH
Preceeds from sale of investments m mutual funds 246424 378,060
Invesuments in muftual funds {1.97,981) 14,46,530)
Redemption  ([nvestment} in fined deposits under lien (net) {3,467 1,360
Proceeds on accounl of di of inv in subsidiane 1,160 9.177
[otergst received 2,788 3,783
Net cash fluws (ased in) investing aclivities (37.974) (1.32,120)
C Cash flows from financing activities :
{Repayment} / Proceeds from short term borrowings {net) {28.624) 4,840
Proceeds from long term borrowinygs 167424 09,216
{Repayment) of long tzrm borrowings {1,13,722) (47,330)
Rights Issuz Application Money Received - 1.20,000
Finance costs paid {71.489) 168.060)
Net cash flows (used in) / generated from financing activities (46,41%) 1.08,660
Vel (decrease) / increase in cash and bank balances (A+B+) {11.740) 24,490
Cash and bank balances, beginning of the vear 29.940 3921
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents due 1o divestment in subsidiaries 4) (471}

Cash and bank balances, end of year (refer note 17) 18,196 29.940




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Consolidated statement of cash flows as at 31 March 2021 (Continued)

{Currency: indian rupees in lakhs)

Notes:
1) {Cash and bank balances wchude the following
Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Cash balance 15 30

Balance with scheduled banks:

- In CUTTEm: accounts 3152 3,300

- in deposit accounts 15.019 26,610
18,196 29,640

Reconciliation of financing activities as per requirement of pars 44A 1o E of Ind AS 7
Particulars 1 Aprif 2020 Financing Disposal of Non-Cash Changes 1 March 2021
Cash Flows Subsidiaries {Other Changes

Short Termn Dorrowings 1.05.414 (28,6241 76,79¢

Long Term Bomowings 6,72.537 53,702 (23 - 716,000

Rights Issue Application Money 1,260,000 - 120,000 -

Fnance costs 23223 {71,489y 70.243 21,979

Total 921,174 (#6.411) {239) (49.755) 8,24,769

Particulars 1 April 2019 Financing Dispossl of Non-Cash Chanpes 3| March 2020

Cash Flows Subsiciaries |  (Other Changes

Short Term Borrowings 1.00,574 4340 - 105414

Lony Term Bormowinps 872,147 3] B86 152.095) 672,537

Righis Issue Application Money - 1,720,008 - 1,20.000

Finance costs 1977 [EXI 718 .22

Total 7.93,092 1.08,666 {52,095} 71,511 931,174

Note:

1. The Cash fow siatement has been prepared under the indwreict method as set out i [ndian Accounting Standard - 7 ( ind AS 7"} on Cash Flow S:atement
prescribed in Companies {Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, notified under Sechion 133 of the Companies Act. 2013,

2. On | Apnl, 2020, the share application money of Rs 120,068 lakhs was appropriated by issuance of 60,000,900 equity shares of Rs, 10/~ per share at 2

pretium of Rs. 104 per share

Significant accounting policies 2
Notes to the consolidated Ind AS Nnancial statements

The notes refemed above fonn an integral pan of these conselidated fmancial statemenis
As per our report of even daie artached
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Background and basis of preparation

Background

Tata Realty & Infrastructure Litriled (“TREL" or “the Group '} along with its subsidianes, joinl ventures and associates, collectively referred to as the “the Group”
1 engaged in e business of investmenl advisory setvices, project management consultancy services and real estate and mfraswucture development. The parem
company is 3 wholly ovned subsidiary of Taia Sons Privare: Limited.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These Consclidawed [rd AS fmancial slatements have been prepared w accordance with [ndian Accounting Siandards {Ind ASy a5 per the Companizs tindian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 not:fied under Section | 33 of the Companies Act, 2013 {'the Act) and other relevam provisions of the Act.

Geing Concern

The Group has meurred |osses amounting o Rs. 20,451 Lakhs in the cument year (previous year Rs. 36.236 Lakhs). As at 31 Narch 2021 the Company has a net
current lability position of Rs. 158845 [ akhs where the current limbilities a1t Rs. 250,337 Lakhs exceed the cument assels a1 Rs. 91,497 Lakhks, Based an
scheinled repayment ot borrowings. Rs. 188.482 Lakhs is clue for repayinent within 12 months from the ceporting date.

Assessment: The Board of Directots have assessed the above operational conditions and indicaters and have comng to Lhe conclusion thal no material unceramty
exists thal may cast sumificant doubt on the Group's abilily 10 contmue as a going cancem based oo cash flow forecasts and the plan macagement has put m

place.

Alitigating Factors: The Group 15 in the busmess of devefopiny conmnercd & residendial Real Estne and Infrasouciure PDevelopinent 10 generare stable cash
flaws over the life of Lhe assets. The Group is developing asset through investnents in Subsidianes and Joint Ventures i various project $PVs. During the vear,
twao projects become fully operatonal and slarted generating, lease renial and ene mfrastructure project has staned toll coileation in addition tv vagomy projecls.

During FY 2021-22 based on pmojections, the SPY's are expected o generate operational net cash flow of more than Rs. 50,100 Lakhs which will increase the
value of wvesiments in subsidiuries and jount venture SPV's. The management &5 evaluatmg possibility of divestinent of selecred assets and chanpe m capital
structure in s project SPYs which is expecled 1o genemie more than Rs 1,508,000 Lakhs as equity value. Also, the free cash flow tivin sale of Ready to Move in
{RTH1) residential inventory will support (3 operations durzng coming fnancaal years.

Negative working capital is oo account of manayement decision tp borrow short-ierm funds through commercial papers to take advanlage of mierest arbiirape
However, managetnent has medified the sirateyy to replace, (0 tie extent possibie. shor tenn funding with fong ferm funding amangemem poing fooward.

e equity capital from the parent 1e. Tata Sons Private Lomited of an amount of Rs. 1.20,000 Lakhs received during the previous year has improved the
Group s net wirth allovwng the Graup 10 further 1€'s ality for additonal barrewing i future and s reflected m the ratings of the Company

Conclusion: The Doard of Directors based on cash flow forecasis and management plans bave concluded oo abiliry of the Company to continue as poig
coneern and the financial satements have been prepared on thay basis.

Functional and presentation curtency
These Consobdated financia) statements are presented m Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functienal cumeney. All the financial mformztion

fave been presented in [ndian Rupees {INR) and al! amounts have been munded-off 1o the nearest lakhs, except for share dala and as otherwise stated. Due o0
roundiny off. the numbers presented throupghout the document may ooi add up precisely to Lhe totals and percentage may not precisely refiect e absolute fypures.

Basis of measurement

The Consolidated Ind AS tinancial staterzents have been prepared on the histoncal cosl basis excepl for the followinye assets and hatblies which have been
measured at fair value:

Certain finaocial assers and lizbilities tincluding derivative insmumnents)

Defined benelir plans — plan assets meusured at far value

&
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Noles to the consolidated financial statements
for the vear ended 31 March 20121
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty

In preparing ihese Consolidated nd AS financial stateinents, management bas made judgements. estunates and asswoptions that ziflect the applicalion of
accountig policies and the reporiad amounis of assets. lizhilities, mcome and expepses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying asswmptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions te accounting estunales are recagmsed prospectively .

{i} Judgements
[nformation about Judgements made in applysng accoununy policies thal have the most synificant effects on the amounts recognised o the Tod AS financial
statemants 15 ticluded 1o the subsequent noies.

{ii) Control
1f the Group owns less than one-hal f of he voning pawer and 1t is able to coniml the company which inter-alia provades the Group with power 1o appint wajoricy
of the hoard of direciors and power over relevant activilies, Consequently, (the Group cousolidates its investment in the company.(Refer Note No, $3an

[f the Giroup owns more than one-half ol the voling power but it does not have contral over the Companies then the Group hes joint cuntrol over the companies
In other words. decisions about the relevan: activities - ie. those that signifivantly affect the reums of die aTangenent - require the affinmarve consent of the
investars. Consequently. the Group has <lassified its nterest in these companies as jointly conoolled ennry  (Refer Note 0o, 32¢b1)

{iif) Assumprions aud estmation uncertainties

Information abowt assumptions and estimation uncerlaintics that have a significant nsh of resulring 0 2 matenial adjusiment in the year ended 3¢ March 2021 is
mehded tn the follownp notes:

fnfe ~ wnpamnpent test of non-Goancial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts meluding the recoverability of expenditure on acquired
infangmible assets (goodwilly; Useful Yife of Property. plam and equipment.

Note — recogrition of deferred tax assets avadabiity of future taxable profit agamst which tax losses carmied forward can be used,

Note — recopmbon and measuremnent of provisions and contingencies key assumpuons abowt the Nikeliheod and macniede of 2n outfllow of resources,

Note — measurement ot defined benefit obl:gations key aciuanal assumptions

Note — acquisition of subsidiary: fair value of the consideration ransferred (incleding contingent censideration} and far value of the assets zequued and
liabitities assumed, measured on a provisional basis: and

Nake - determuung the fair value of invettments on the busis of symificant unohservable mputs,

Nete —imparmeni of linancial nssets

Mezsurement of fair values

The Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both (mancial and non-financial assets and Liabdities. The Group has
an established conirol framework wuh respect Lo the mezsurement of fair values. The finance wam has overzll responsibility for overseeing all significant far
valuc ineasurements. including Level 3 fair values. and reporis directly w the CFO

They repubarhy review significant unabservable inpuls and valuation adjustinents. If third party informaon s used to measure fair vaiues then e finance team
assesses the evidence obtamed from the third parties to suppott the conclusien thar such valuatwins meet the requirements of Ind AS. meluding the Tevel nthe far
value hierarchy i which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a babulity. the Company uses vbservable markel dala as far as possible. Farr values are categonzad into ditterent
Yevels in 2 fair value hierarchy based on the npuls used m the valuation techniques as folkows:

Level |: quated pnces (unadjusted ) i active markets for identical assels or labiliies.

Level 2: inputs ather than guoted prices included i Level | that are observable for the assetl or babdity. either directly {i.e. as prices) ur mdirctly rie.
derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs For the asset or liabikity that are not based on observable markel daw (unobservabie inputs).

If the inputs used 1o measure the faic vafue of an asset or a Liability fali into different levels of the fair value hicrarchy, then the far value measurement is
cateporized in ils entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level mput that s sipmficant to the entire measurcment.

Forvign currency rransaciitas

Foreign currency Uansactions are transtated into the functional curency usmp the exchange rates at the dates of the transacuons, Foreign exchange pains and
losses resuliing from the serlement of such mansactions and from the manskation af monetary assels and liabilmes denvminated w foretgn currencies ar year end
exchanpe rtes are gencrally recogmised i profit or loss.

“on-nnnetary itens that are measured al fair value m a forergn currency are wanslated usimg the exchange rates a1 the date when the fair value was detennined.
Translaticn differences on assets and Labilities carried at fair value are reporied as part of the 1air value vawo or loss. The gain or foss anising on ranslattoa of oon
nonetary nemns weasured at fair vatue 1s reated o Yine wih the recopmion of the gain or loss on the clumge in far value of the stewn ji.e., ranslation differences
a ietns whose fair value mair or 1oss 18 recognised m OCH or profit or loss are alse recomised in OCT or profit or loss, respecuvely).

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidatoen

Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are all entitics vinclirdimg strucmred entivies) over whuch the group has contred. The grosp controls an entily when the group 15 expased io, or has
rights te, variable reums from 15 wvolvement with the entiry and has the ability L affect those retums rough s power to direet the relevant aclivities of the
entity. Snhsidiaries are fuliy consolidated frow the date on which cootrol s ransferred to the proup. They are deconsolidaled from the date that conuol ceases.

The wroup combimes the financial slatements of the parent and its subsidanias [me by Lne adding oeether tike dems of assets, liabilines, squity. meome and
expenses, {nleTeroup ransacbions, balances and unrealised gams on mnsacrions berween wroup companues are elimnated. Uinrealised losses are also elininated
unless the mansaction provides evidenice of an mmpainnem of the ransferred asset, Accounting pobicies of subsidiaries have been chanped where necessary o
ensue consistency with the pohcies adopted by the group

Nou-vontroling interests w the results and eqnity of subsidtares are shown separately m the consohidated statement of profit and loss. conselidated statement of
changes in 2quily and balance sheet respectively.
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Joint arraugenmients
Under Ind AS 117 Joini 4mrang in joinl arr are classified as either joinl operattons or joult ventures, The classificaton depends on
the contractual nghis and obligations of each invesior. rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The group has onfy jeinl ventmes.

Jount ventures

loint venrures are entities over wluch the group has joint controf along with another entiry !olerests m jomt ventures are accounted for wsing the equity meihod
afler initially being recopmised at cost in the consplidaled bajance sheet. The invesmment is intnally recognized at cost, and the carmying amount is increased or
decreased (o recounize the investor's share of the profit or loss of the mvesiee afier the acquisinon date

Associates

Associales are ennties over which the group has symificant influence but not conmol. [nvestmmeots in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. The investment is initially recognized at cost, and the camying anouni is increased or decreased to reeommize the umvestor s shane of the profit or Joss
af the investee afler the acquisition date.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reponad i a mannet consister with the internal repaning provided to the chief operating decision maker {CODM). Chief operating
decision maker's funetion 1s 1o allocate the resources of the enity and access e performance of the operaung segment of the Group

The Manaping Director assesses the financial performance and position of the Group and makes smatepe decisions and is identified as being the clitef operatng
decisior maker for the Group, Refer nole 46 for seyment informalioa presented

Revenue recognition

Sale of completed property

Revenue from sale of completed property (residential and coininercial) is recogmised when:

I The Group has transferred to the buyer significant risk and rewards of owmership of the completed property.

2. The Group retams neither cottinning managerial involvemen! w the degree usually assocrated with the ownership nor ciiechive conmol over the completed
property sold:

3. The amount of revenuz can be measured reliably:

4. It 15 probable that (he economic benefit associated with the transaction will Oow to the Groep: and

5. Cost incwred or to be incurmed in respect of the ransaction can be measured reliably.

Service concession Arrangemends
Concession arranpements are recognized in accordance with Appendin € of Ind AS 113, Service Concession Armangeirents. {i s applicable o concession
arrangermenls comprising 4 public service oblipation and satisfying all of the followng criteria:
- the concession pranior controls of regulates the services fo be provided by the operator usig the assel, the mirswucture. the beneficiaries of the services and
prices applied;

the grantor conrrols the sigmificant residual wierest i the mfrasmucrure at the end of the wrm of the amangemen:.

Pursuant to Appendix C of Ind A5 113, such mfrastructures are not recognized m assels of the vperator as propeny. plant and equipment but in Goancial assets
t“financial asset medel”) and’or intangible assets | “mangible asset model") dependimy on (he remuneration comniments given by the yrantor.

The inangible asset model applies where the operaior i5 paid by the users of where the concession grantor has not provided a conractual puamntee n respect of
Lhe recoverable amount. The uangihle asset comesponds to the right granted by the concession grantor 1o the operalo: W charge users ol the public service in
remuneration of coONcEss1on services.

Intangible assets resuiting from the applicaticn of Appendix © of Ind AS 113 are recorded w the financial tatements as inlangible assets. The Group

accounts for such mtanpible asset (along with the presant value of cominitted paymenls towards concessicn armangement 1o the prantor at the appointed date e.p.
Negative Grant, premium ¢} in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 38 and is amonized based on projected waffic counl or revenue. as detziled i Nole
2.07ii), aking into accoun the estimated period of commaercial operation of nfrasructure which penerally coincides with the concesston perzod. And are
umortized, generally on a straight-line basis, over the contract term.

Under the intangible asset model, revenue includes:

revenue recorded on a completion basis for assets and i frasucture under consiruction (o accordance with IND AS 113y,

charaes callected from users
However. in certain concession armangements, cootracts may wmelude a payment commiment on the pan of the coacession grantor cevering only pan of the
inv estment. with the balance covered by amount charged to users, Where this is the case, the investment amouont guaranieed by the concession grantor is
recomized under the fimancizl assei model and the residual balance 1s recommized wader the itangible asset model Financial assets resulung fom thar are
recorded in the linancial stasements under the heading other financial assets and recogmized al amortized cost

Further. where infrastruciure 5 panly regulated and panly unregulated. the portion of mfrastructure that is physically separable and capable of being opered
independently and meets defimnon of cash penerating unit 28 defined under Ind AS 34 is analysed separaely if it is used wholly for unregulated purposes.
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Rendering of services
Assel managernent fees and Project r 2 consuliangy fees are revopuzed i accordance with terms of aprecment with customers.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised as part of revenue from operations i profit or loss on a staiphi-line basis over Lhe ferm of (he lease. Lease
incemtives pranted are recognised as an intepral pan of the total rental meome. over the term of the lease. Remal income from sub-leasing is also recognised ina
similar manner and included under other inceme,

Toll Revenue
Toll collectivn from users of the infrastrucre facility sonstruried by the Cotnpany under the Service Concession Amangement s recopmsed m the petiod of
coltection of toll * user fee which coincides with the usage of the infrastructure facility. Income from sale of smant cards 1 recopmised on cash basis.

Claims

Claims raised with the concession granting authority towards reimbursernent for costs incurred due to delay in handing over of unencumbered land to the
Company for consiruction or other delays atributable solely to (he concession graating authority are recognised when there is 8 reasonable centamty that there
will be inflow of economic benefits to Lhe cancerued Company. The claims when recognised as such are reduced from the carrying amouni of the intangible asset
under development to the extent the clziins relate to cosls earlier included as a pant of the canying amount of these assets. Further, these clalms are credited to
Profit and Loss to the extent they relaie to cosis earlier charged ofT. The claumns are presented separately as a financial asset. In case where the clain is estmated
to be received over a period of time and the time value of Imoney is malerial. these claims are measwred at & discounted amount at the time of reeognition. The
unwinding of the discount is recopnised as ao interest income.

Interest and dividend:

A dividend is recognized as reveniue when the sight to receive payment bas been establisled. For all debt instruments measured aither at amortised cost of at fair
value through other comprehensive income. interest mcome is recorded using the effective nierest rate (£1R). EiR s the rate that exacily discounts the estimated
furure cash payments or receipts over the expected (ife of the financia) instrument or a shorter period. where appropriate. to the grass carying amount of the
financial asset of e the amortised cast of a finanvial Lability

Government grants

Grauis from the goverament are mitially recognised as deferred income ar their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the gram will be recaived and
the group will comply with all artached conditions, they are then recognised in prafit or loss as olher mcome on & systematic basis over he useful life of the asset.

Grants that compensate the Gronp for expenses mcirred are recogtused in profit or loss oa a systematic basis m (he periods in which the expenses are recognised

Property, plant znd equipment

Recognition and measarement

Freehold land is carmied ai historical cost. All cther iterns of property. plant and cquipment are measured at cost less accwnulated depreciation and any
accumulated immpzirment losses.

The cost of an jlem of propesty. plent and equipment comprises:

a)  its purchase price, including import duties and non-reflndable purchase taxes, afler deducting rade discounls and rebaies.

b} any costs directly atmibulable to bringing the asset w the location and condition necessary for it o be capable of operaing m the manner wrended by
¢}  the initial estimate of the costs of distmantling and removing the item and restering the site on which it is located. the obiigation for which an enlity meurs
either when Lhe ilem is acquired

Inceme and expenses relaed to the incidentzl operations. no! necessary to bring the item 10 the location and condition necessary for it 1o be capable of operating
m the manner intended by management. are recognised in profit or loss.

IF significanl parts of an item of property. plant and equipment have different useful lives, (hen they are accounted for as separate items {major components} of
property. plapt and equipment. Any gam or loss on dispesal of an item of prepery. plant and equipment is recoymised in profit or Joss.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable thal the fuure economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flew to the Group.
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Property. plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assels is the cost of an asset. or other amouns subsuiuted for cost. less 1s estinated residual value.

Depreciaton is provided using the siraipht line methed o the manner and at the mtes prescrbed by Pan 'C of Schedule I} of the Act. Depreciation 1s charged on
a monthly pro-rala basis {or assets purchased or sold during the year.

[n the following cases. the vseful bfe s less than the corresponding useful life preseribed i Pan 'C* of Schedule IF of the Act, based on intemal technical
evaluation, laking into account the nature of the assets. (he estinated usage of the asset. the operating conditions of te asset, past history of replacement.
anticipated iechnological chanpes ete:

Plant & Machinery R-15 years
Furnitwre & Fixure 6- 10 vears
Office equipments 1.6 years
Computers 3+ years
otor Vehicles 3-7 years
Commertial building 3-32 years

Leasehold improvements are amorhised over the lease period.
Depreciation nethods, useful hives and residuat values are mviewed at 2ach reporung date and adjusted if appropnate.
Gams and losses on dispasals are determined by comparing procesds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or foss within other zanss (lossess

Investment praperty

Property that is held for long-tetm rental yields or far capital appreciation or both, and (hat s ot occupied by the group, is classified as mvesonent property.
Invesmment property is measured mitially at is cost including relaled ransaction costs and where applicabie borowing costs, Subsequent expendiure is
capitalised to the asser's camying amount only when it is probable that future reonotic benefits assoeigied with the expenditure will low to the group and the
cost of the itein can be measored reliably. Al other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed wlen incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced.
the carrying amount of the replaced pant is derecopmised.

Investment property under construction
Propenty that 15 beiny constructed for funre use as investment property is accounted for as invesmment property under construcuion unbl consruction er
development 15 corplete. All costs which are directly arnbulable to construction of the investment property are capitalzed.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Gocedwill on acquisitons of subsidiaries is inchuded in mangible assets. Goodwil) 15 net amortised but @ is tested for npainnent anoually. i is cared ai cost
less accumulated unpaimnent fosses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an enlity include the carrying amount of poodwill relatng to the enlity suld

Goodwill is allocated 10 cash-generatiog units for the purpose of impawment Iesting, The allucation is made to (hose cash-generaltiy untts or groups of vash-
generaiing units that are eapecled to benelil frowm the business combination in which the poodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified sl the lowest
level at which gandwill is monitored for intemal inanagement purposes. which m our case are the operating segments

Intangible assets compnse application software purchased, which arc not an integral part of the refated hardware, and are amonized oo a writien down value basis
over a period of ten years which i Management's estimate rapresents the penod durmy wiuch the economic benefits will be derived fFrom therr use

Subsequent expenditure is capilalized poly when i ingreases the future economic benedits embedied n e specific te which « relates

Intangible assets under development

Passenger ropeway facility

Intangible assets comprise a nght w charge users for passenyer mpeway facility. which is currently under development. The cost of intangible assels acquied in
exchange of monatary or mon-monetary assets is measured at faw vaiug unless (a) the exchange ransaction lacks conmercial snbstance or (b) the fair value of
neither the asset received nor the assel given up is relably measurable. [f acquired asser cannot be measured at fair value. 45 cost is measured at the camrymng
amoun! of the asset given up. The fair valuz of the asset is measured with reference to the fair value of construction services provided.

Subsequent expendifure 15 capitalized only when n mereases the fulure cconomie benefits cmbodied m the specific to which 1f relates,

Toll collection right

Teil coilection nghis representing nipht to receve fees fimn users of facility are oblamed in conswderation for rendening construction, operanon and ipamienance
services m relation to buikling and maintenance of the project on Build. Operate and Transfer basis. The consideration received in a service concession
armangement is tneasured al fair value upon mninal recognition, L2 construction ¢ost. Subsequent to mitial recognition the mianwble assel is measured al cost
which meludes capitalised borrow g custs, less aceumulated amortisatiun and accurnulated mpawnnent losses.

Amortization of toncession intangible assets

Amortization of ntangtble asset under $CA. The mtangible mehts relanng to infrastructure assets, which ane recopnized e the fono of nght to charg= users of the
infrastructure assai are amonized by taking proportonate of actual waffic coumn for the period over tolal projected waffic count from project to cost of intangible
2ssets: 1.e. proportionate of acral traffic for the period over toral projevied raffic count from the imangible assets expected &0 be earoed over the balance
voncession pemiod as estirnated by the management. However with respect 1o toll road assets constructed and m operanion as at March 31 2016, the amoruzatun
of such intangihle cghts are based on actual reverue camed compared to lotal projected revenne from the project over the balmee concession period to cost
intangible assets, insizad of raflic count. Tolal projected revenue * traffic count is reviewed at (he end of each financial vear and 15 adjusted to reflect any changes
in the estunates which lead 10 the actual collection at the znd of (he concession penod.

&
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Impairment of non-Migancial assets

Goodwill and ntangible assets that have an indefinite usetul life are aol subject to amenization and are tested annually for mpamment. or more freguently it
evenls or changes in excumstances indicaie that they might be wnpaired. Other assets are tested for impainment whenever events or changes m circumsiances
indscate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Management periodically assesses using. external and mternal sources. whather (here 15 an indicalion
that an assel may be impaired.

The recoverable amount 5 higher of the asser's net selling pnice or valve in use. which means the present value of future cash [lows expecied to anse from the
continumy use of the assel and is eventual disposal. 4n mpamment Loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, the reversa! can be related objectively 1o an event
accumng after (he vopamment loss was recogmzed The carrying amount of an asset is increased to ils revised recoverable amount. provided thal this wnount
does not exceed the camying amount (hat would have beem detennined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no umpairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years.

Barrowing cost

Oeneral and specific borrowimg rosis that are direclly atmbutable to the acquisinon, constuetion of prodection of 2 qualifying asset are capilalised duning (he
period of ime that is required 10 coimplete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Invesment utconle earned on the temporary investment of specific bormowings pending their expendinure on qualifying assets is deducied from he borrowing
custs eligible for capitalisauon.

Orher borrowing costs are expensed in the pened i which they are incurred,

Income-tax
Izcome lax expense cnmpnises current and deferred tax. [t is recogmised in profit or loss excepi to the extent that i relates Rems recogrused directly tn equity or m
o)

Current tax

Current 1ax comnpnses the expected iax payable or receivable ou the taxable incorme or loss for the year and any adjustment to the lax payable or receivable in
respect of previous vears. It s measured using tax rates enacied or substantively enacted a1 the reporting date. Curtent tax also includes any tax arising fram
dividends. Management periodically evaluates positions faken m lax retums with respect lo situstions in which applicable tax regulaton is subject e
wnterpretation. [t establishes provisions where appropraze on (e basis of amounts expected 1o be paid to the ax zwhoritzes.

Minimwn Aliemmate Tax ('MAT) under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax i the statement of profit and loss, MA T paid in
accordance with the Lax laws, which pives future econormic benefits in the form of adiustment lo futere incowe tax Liability, s considered as an asset if there is a
convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal 1ax. Accordingly. MAT is recognized as an assel in the balance sheet when it is probable that the future
cconowic benefit associated with it will flow 10 the Group.

Current tax asseis and habilitics are offset only if, the Group:

a}  has alepally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts: and

hy mtends either to seitle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the babihty simultaneausly

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the cartying amounts of assets and Fabilities for (inaneial reporting: purpnses and Lhe
amounts used for axation puposes, However, deferred tax liabilitées are not recognised if they arise from the inftial recognition of goodwiil Deferred meome
1ax is alse not accounted for if it anses from wital recoymition of an asser of liability 0 a transaction other than a business eombication dsat a1 the time of the
mansaction affects neither accountng profit nor taxable profit (1ax loss).

Deferred tax assets are recogrused for nnused 1ax Josses, unused s credits and deductible wemporary differences to the extent that it i probable thar future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Detired Lax assais are reviewed at each reportmg date and are reduced 1o the extent that it is ao
tonger pmbable that the refated tax benelit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future zxable prfils improves. Unrecognised
deferred 1ax assels are reassessed at each repomung date and recopmused to (he extent that it has become probable that funue (axable profus will be available
against which they can be used

Deferred tax is measured an the 1ax rales that are expected to be appled to temperary differences when they reverse, using fax rates enacled or suhstantively
enacted a1 the reportmyg date and are expecled 1o apply when Lhe related deferred income 1ax asset ts nzalised or the deferved weome tax hability is setiled

Deferred tax habnlifies are oot recognised for temporary differences between the camying amount and (2x bases of mvestments in subsidianes, branches and
asspciates and interest i joint amingements where the proup is able to conirol the timmg of the reversal of the temporary differences and @ s probable (hat the
differences will not reverse e (he foreseeable future.

Deferred ax assels are nol recognised for temporany differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of nvesnnents i subsidianes, branches and
associates and interesl in joint arangements where it s not probable thai the differences will reverse in Lhe fpreseesble funme and axable profic will not be
available agamst which the 1emporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assels and liabiliies are offset only if

a}  the eniity has 3 legally enforceable nipht to set off current lax assers against curent Lax hiabilities; and

by the deterred lax assets and the deferred 12x habilites relate fo meowme taxes ievied by (he same xation authority on the same Laxahie entiy
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Business combtnations

The acquisiuan method of accounting 15 used to account for afl business combinations. regardless of whether equity instruments or olbier assets are acquired. The
consideration wansferred for the zequisition of a subsidiary compnses the:

fair values of Lhe assets mansfered:

liahidities incurred to the former owners of the aequired business;

equity interests issued by the proup: and

Fuur value of any asset or liability resulung from a contingent consideration armangement.

Identiffable assels acquired and liabiiities and conrugent liabilities asswmed in a business combination are, with lznited exceptions. measered mitially al their fair
valnes gt the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controfling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisstion-by-acquititiun basis either at fawr value or
at the non-contralling mterest’s proporuonate share of the acquired entity's net iWdemitiable assets Acquisiion-related costs are expensed as ncurred

The excess of the
- consideration ransferred:

amount of any non-conmulling mterest in the acquired enttry, and
- Acquitstion-date far value of any previous equily interest in the acquured entity over the Tzir value ol the net identifiable assets acquired 15 recorded as goodwill
If those amounls are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired. the difference 15 recopnsed m other comprehensive income and
accumulated 1n equity as capital resere provided there 1s ¢lepr evidence of the underiying reasans for classifying the business combination as a bargain puchase.
In other cases. Lhe bargamn purchase gain is recogmised direcily n equity as capital reserve,

Where senlernent of any pan of cash considerarion is deferred, the amounts pavable m the furure are discounted (o their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s mcremental borrowimng reie. being the rte at which a similar borrowing could be obuaived fom an independemt
financier wnder comparabty lerms zod conditions
- Contingent consideration s <lassified either as equity or a financial hability. Ampunts classified as a Gnanesdl linbility are subsequently remeasured to fair valus
with changes in fair value recomised in profit or Joss

[Fthe business cambimation 15 achieved in stapes, the acquisition dale carrying vahue uf the acquirer s previously beld equity mizrest m the acquire IS remeasured
to fair vale at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such reneasurement are recopnised m profit or loss or other comprehensive mcome, as
appropriate.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the stalement of cash Nows, cash and cash equivalents meludes cash on hand, deposits held at cali with finanoal insritutions.
other short-tenn, highly liquid inveshnents with oripinal matunities of three momtbs or less that are readily convertible  known amounts of cash and which are
subjeet ko an insignificant sk of changes in value. and bank overdrafts. Bank wyerdraits are shown within borrowings n curvem labilities m the balance shect.

Inventories

Direct expenses Lke land cost development righis. sie labour cost, matenal used for project consmuction, cost of borrow my, project management consultancy,
costs for moving the plant and machinery 1o the site and general expenses incurmed specifically for the respeciive project like wsurance, design and rechaical
assistance, and construction ovetheads are taken as the cost of the project work in progress and cost of wisotd Pars.

Material at sie comprise of building inalersal, components, stores and spares.
Imventories are valued at lower of cost of net realizable value, cost is determined on weiphled average basis. Net realizable value 1s the estinated selling price m
the ardinary course of business. less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary 10 make the sale.

Financial instrements

A financial instument is any contract thal gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrumen) of another entity. Fnaneial
insiruments also include derivative contracts such as forelym cumency foreign exchanpe forward contracls, interest rate swaps and cumency options: and
embedded derivatives in the host contract.

Financial assets

Classification
The Group shall classity financial assets as subsequently measured ar amoriised cost, fair value through viher comprehensive income (FVOICH o fair value
through protil or loss (TVTPL; on the basis of its bustness model for manaping the financial assets and the conracnml cash tlow chamcieristics of the finaneial

assal.

Inirial recagnition and measurement

Alf financial assets are recopmised ininally at far value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value throuph profit or oss, ransacton costs ilat
are attribuwable o the acamsition of the fnancial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delnvery of assets within 2 tune frame established by
regulation or convention in the market plice {reyular way rades) are recognised on the rade date. 1.e.. the daie thal the Group commits o purchase or sell the
asset.

X
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Debt instruments

§ A debr mstument 15 measured at the amortised cost if both the folfowing conditions are met

al  The asset 15 beld within a business model w hose objective (s to hald assels for collecury contraciual cash flows. and

by Contracthual tenns ol the asset give nse on specified dales o cash flows thai ar: solely paviments of prinvipal and mterest (SPP! on the pnocipal amount
auistanding,

§ Afier initial mepsurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective nterest rte (KIR) method. Amonised cost s
calculated by lakiny mio account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an inteyral part of the EIR. The EIR amonissnon & included in finance
eome u the profit or loss.

§ Debt instruments included within the Ffair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) catepory are measured al fair vzlue with all changes recoynized i the
slaternent of profil and loss.

Equity instrumnents

§ The group subsequently ineasures all equity nvestmenls m companies other than equity mvestments in, joint ventures and associates al fawr valee. Where the
group’'s mandgement has elected to present fair value pains and losses on equity invesmments in other comprehenseve income, there s o subseguent
reclassilication of {air vatue pams and Josses to profit or loss, Dividends from such investments are recogmised m prafit or loss as other income when the group’s
right to receive payments 15 esiablished.

De-recognition

4 A financial asset (or. where applicable, a pan of 2 finanvial asset or part of a Group of sunilar financial asscis) is pnmanly derecognised (1., removed from the
Group's balance sheet) when

§ The nights to receive cash flows trom the asset have expired. or

§ The Growm has mansferred ns oghts o recerve cash Jows rom the asseu or has assumed an obligation fo pay the recewved cash flows m full wihout matenal
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through  arangement: and gither {a} the Group has transferred substantially alt the risks and rewards of the asset. or (b} the
Group has neather iransferred nor retained substantially atl the rsks and rewards of the asseL but bas transferred contm! of the assei

§ Whan the Group has trensferred its nghts to receive cash flows fom an asset or bus entered inte 2 pass-Urough armangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When & has neither wansferred sor retamed substamially all of the risks and rewards of the asset. nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues 0 recoynise the ransferred asset 1o the exient of e Group's contnumg involvement. [n thal ease. the Group
also recogmises an associated bability, The transferred asset and (he assooiated babiiny are measured on & basis (hat reflects the rights and obligations that e
{Fraup has retained.

§ Continuny involvement that takes the furm of a guaranice over the ransferred assel 1s measured at the lower of the oremal camry me amount of the asset and
the maximum amount o f ennsideration that the Group could be required to repay

Impairment of fnancial assers

In accordance wnh Ind-AS 109 the Group apphes expecied credit loss (ECL) model for measurernent and recopmition of unpairment foss on the Following
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

ay Financial asszts that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost .. loans, debi securities. deposns. and bank bhalance

ty Lease receivables

¢l Trade receivables

The Graep follows “simplified approach’ for recogrution of mpainnent luss wllowance un

4 Trade recevabtes which do not contain a significaat financiog vomponzot.

% All lease recervables sesulung frois transactions.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group o wack changes in credit nisk. Rather, it recogmises unpaimment loss allowance based on
lifenme ECLs at each reporung date, nght froin ds witial recopmition.

For recopmition of nnpamment loss an other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determmes that whether there has been a significant merease i the
credit since initial recogmition. [F credit osk has not incrzased sipruficantly. £2-month ECL i used to provide for impamment loss However. if credit nsh has
fnereased symificantly. lifetime ECL w» wsed. If i a subsequent period, credit quakity of the insrument wopreves such that there 1s oo longer & significant
increase in credil risk since initial recognition, then the entily revens to recopnising impainnent loss allowance based on | 2-month ECL

Fimanetsl instruments (Convinuedi

Derivative contracts

The group enters into 4 vanety of denvabive financial nsiTuments 10 manage s exposwe o mierest rate and forelen exchanpe rate risk. meluding foreipn
exchanpe forward contracts, ilerest rate swapy and cross currency swaps. Derivatives are mitially recognised at fair value at the date the denvative contrct ars
entered mto and are subsequently remeasured to (hew far value at the cid of each reportmg period. The resulling gain loss 1s recognised m pmfit o loss
mmediatcly



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Naotes o the ronsolidated Mnancial statements
for the vear ended 31 March 1021

{Curreney - Indiun rupees in lakhs}

(i

Financial tiabilities
The Group tlassilies all Mnancial fiabilities as subsequently mieasured at amurhised cost, except for Ananciai labilities al fair value through prafn or luss Sueh
liabililies, meluding denvatives that are lisbilities. shall be subsequently measured at fair value

Initia) recognition and measurement

Financia? liabilities are classified, at mitial recopnition, ns {inancial liabilties al fair value through profit or loss, foans and borrowmgs, payables. or as derivatives
designated as hedpmy instruments o an eflective hedge, as appropnate.

All financial liabilitizs are recogmised inflially at faur value and. in the rass of loans and borrow ings and payables, net of directly ataributable ransaction costs

The Group's fipancial habilties include made and cther payables, loans and borrawinys e luding bank overdrafis. inaucial puarantee contracts and denvative
financial instwments.

Financial liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities al fair value tireugh profit or loss mciude finanerml labilnies held for trading and Mnancial babiibies designated upon mitial recojmitson as at
farr value through profit or Ipss. Financial liabilities are classilied as held for trading if they ame incurred for the purpose of repurckasing i the near wrm. This
eategony also ncludes derivauve inancial instrumenls entered into by the Group that are not desipnated as hedping instruments m hedge relationships as defined
by [nd-AS 109 Separated embedded deris atives are alse classihed as beld for trading unless they are designated as «ffective hedging (nstrupents

(Gains or losses on lubilities held for rading are recopnised in the profit er loss

Fnancial habuities designated upon mutial recognition al fatr value through profit or loss are designated a1 the mitial date of recogmition, and only 1f the criema in
Ind-AS 100 are sausfied. For Labilities desiymated as FATPL. fair vatue gams lpsses anribwiable to changes m own credit nsk are recaymized in OCI, These
pamsoss are nol subseynently mansferred to profit and loss. However the Group may mansfer the cumulative gam or loss within equity. All other changes in far
value of such liability are recogmised in the slatement of profil or 1oss. The Group has not designated any linancial liabsliry as at fair value throngh profit and foss.

Loans and borTowings

Afier initial recognition. mteresi-beanng loans and borrewmes are subsequently measured at amoriised cost wsing the EIR method. Gams and losses are
recognised in profi or loss when the habiliies are detecopnized.

Amortsed rost is caleulated by taking into account any discount of premium on acquisition and faes of costs st are an integmal part of the E1R. The EIR
amortisation 1s included as inance costs in the statemant of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to interesi-bearing loans and borrowmes.

Preference shares, which are mandatorly redeemable on a specilic date, are classified as labdities The dividends on these preference shares are recopnised m
profit or loss as finance cusls.

The fair value of the liability portion of an optionally converlible bunds is determuned usioy a market interest rate for an equivalent non-cnatvenible bonds. This
anount 15 recorded as a liability on an amonised cost basis until exnnygwshed on conversion of redemptivo ol the bonds. The rematnder of the proceeds s
attributable to the equity purtion ol the compeund instrument. This is recognised and included m sharehelders’ eguily, net of meome tax effects, and ool
subsequently remeasured.

Where the terms of a financial Liability are renegotiled ane the entity issuss eguily instruments i a creduor 1o extinguish all or part of the hahilite {debt for
cquity swap), & gamn or loss 18 recognised @ prafit or loss. which 15 measured as the difference betweers the carry ing armount of the financial Kubdity and the fair
yvalue of the equity instruments ssued.

Derecogaition

A financial lizbilily is detecognised when Lhe oblication uncler the babilily w5 discharged or cancelled or expires. \When an existing fnancial babilty s replaced
by another from the sarme lender on substanuatly different terms. or the teros of an existing Liability are suhstantially modified. such an exchange or modification
1s reated as the derecognition of the ongreal Liabilin and the recognition ot a new liability. The difference m the respective camymnp amounts s recoymised 1w the
stalenent of profit or loss

Embedded derivatives

If the bybrid cootract contains a twnst that i a financial asset withun the scope Ind-AS 109 the Group does not separae embedded derivanves. Rather. it apphes
the classificatron requirenents contained m Ind AS 109 to the entire hvbnd contract Derivatives embedded i all other host contraces are accounted for as
separate derivanves and recorded al far value if dwtr econnmic characleristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the hust
contracts are ool held for rading or desienated at faw valug through profit ur loss. These embedded denvatives are measured an fur value with changes m fair
valoe recogmised m profit or foss, unless dessgnated s etfective hedpmg mstnunents. Reassessment onfy oceurs i there s either a change w the wrms uf the
contmct diat significamly modifics she cash flows.

Offsetting of lnancizl instrumenss

Finanwial assets and liabilmies ane offset and Lhe Ael amount 1 repaned m the bajance sheel where there is a legally enforceable rght 1o offset the recoumised
amounis and there is an intention o seitle on a wet bases nr realtse the asset and setde the Bability sunuhaneowusly. The legally enforceable nghl must not be
gontingent on fuiure events and inust be enforceable in i nonnal course of busmess and m the event of default, insolvency ar banksuptey of the group or the
counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

The Giroup uses derivalye fmancizl fstrunents, such as fnreipn exchange foreand contracts and interest rate swaps fo m@anape s eXposure W mnterest rate and
foreign exchange nsks For contracts where hedge accounting & oot follewed. such derivative fnancial mstruments are wmnially recopmised at farr valoe on the
date on which 3 demvative conract 15 catered it and are subsequently re-measured ar fair value through profit or loss account, Derivatves are carned as
financral asseis when the far value is positive and as financial liabilities when the Fair value s negative,



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Jor the vear ended 31 Marek 2002 {

{Currency: Indian rupees in iakhs)

215

(i}

{ii}

{iti}

tiv)

v

217

Emplayee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Shon-tenn employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A Liability is recosmised for the amount expected to be paid of the Group has a
present |epal or conswustive obligation © pay this amount a5 a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated retiably

Compensated absences

The lahilities for eamed leave and sick leave are not expected 10 be setiled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period m which the employees render
e related service. They are therefare measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made i respect of services provided by etnplovees up to
the eud of the reponing period using the projected unit crednt method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporimy period thai
have terms approxunating to die terns of the related obligation Re-measurements as a result of experience adjusunenis and changes in acruarial assumptions are
recognised o profit oz loss.

Delined cantribution plans
Obligations for contributions ta defined conmbution plans are expensed as the related servive s provided. Prepaid contributions are recopmised s an asset Lo the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in furure payments is available.

Defined benefit plans

The Group's net obliganion m respect of defined beaefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by eslimatimg the amount of furure benelit that employces
have earned w the current and pror penods. discouniong (hat amount and deducting the fawr value of any plan assets.

The calculation af defined benefit obligarions is performed annuaily by 2 gualified actuary using the projected wnit credit method, When Uze caleulzton resulis in
a potentiai asset for the Group. the recognised asset is limited (o the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any fuhmre refunds from the plan
or reductioos in funure contributions 1o the plan. To caleulate the present value of economie benefits, consideruhon is given to any applicable minimum fundmyg
requirements.

Re-measurement of the net delined beneli liability. which comprise actuanal gains and losses, the return on plan sssets {excluding mieresti and the effect of the
assel ceiling (if any. excluding interest), ane recopmised immediately w other comprehensive mcame (OCI. Nel interest expense (inceine) on the net delined
babiliry {assels) 1s computed by applying the discnunt mte, used to measure the net defined Liability {asset), w the net defined liability (zsset) ai the starr of the
financial year afier laking into account any changes as a result of contribution and beneft payments durfng the year. Net imterest expense and other expenses
related o defined beneld plans are recognised i profit or loss.

Wihen the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is cunailed the resulong change in benelit that relates o pasi service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised tmmediately i profic or boss. The Group recomizes pains and losses on the seitlament of a delined benefi plan when the settlement accurs.

Qther long-term employee benelits

The Group s ner oblygtion m espeat of fong-tern employe: benelits 1s the amoun; of future berefnt tha: employees have eamed n return for therr semviee in thie
current and orior peniods. That benefil s discounted to determine §1s presem value. Re-measurement are recognised @ profii or loss w the periad in which they
Arse

Provisions

Long-tenn provisioss are detenmited by discounting the expected future cash tlews speeific to the liabitity, The unwindmng of the discount 15 recognised as
Jinzance cost,

Provisions are measurad at the present value of management s best estimate of the expenditure required to sentte the present obligation at the end of Lthe reporng
pened. The discommi rare used 1o determune Wie present value is a pre-lax mie that reflects current marker assessments of the ume value of money and the risks
specific io the hability. The merease in the provision due 1o the passape of ome is recognised 25 mterest expense.

Ouerous contracis
A provision for onerous contracts 15 measured ai the preserit value of the lower of the expecied cost of termmaring the cootract and the expected net cost ot
continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established. the Group recognises any inpairment kyss oo the assels assoviated with that contract.

Earnings per share

Basic szrmings per share is computed by dividing e profit  1loss) afler tax by the woighted average mumber of equity shares owrsianding during the vear. The
weighted average number of equily shares outstanding dunng the year is adjusied for the events for bonus issue, bonus element in 2 rights issue to existing
sharcholders, share splic and reverse sbare split iconsolidation of shares).

Diluted eamings per share is computed by dividing the profii + (loss} afier lax as adjusted for dividend. interest and other charges 10 expense of income (ReL of
any atmribuable taxes) relaung to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for demiy ing basic camings per
share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

s ot 31 AMurch 2021

(Curtency Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note 3(a)
Property, plant and equipment
Particulars Leasehold Freehold land | Buildings Plant & Furniture Electrical Cumputers | Office and Motor Total
improvements Mauchinery | und fixtures fittings Other vehicles
Euipments

Cost / Deemed Cost

At 31 March 2019 475 2616 41 271 498 123 474 391 227 5,316
Additivns - - 9 45 2 - 34 43 25 199
On aceount ot disposil of investments in subsidianes - - - 18) {38) 7 121 {8R) - 212)
Disposals - - - 2 {109) - (22y {46) 3 (205)
At 31 March 2020 475 2,616 56 351 i 116 465 St 222 5,098
Additions - 144 25 - 8 - 14 30 - 251
On accoont of disposal of investments in subsidiaries - - - - - - B - - -
Disposals (N - - 12) (39 - 112y (43) - (105)
At 31 March 2021 466 2,760 75 349 272 116 497 487 212 5244
Depreciation / amortisation

At 31 March 2019 32 - 8 Q3 G 90 397 334 80 1,410
Charge for the year 1oy - 3 34 22 12 36 03 30 321
On account of dispesal ol investmients m subsidiaries - - - 2 (33 [N {14) 175 . (125)
Disposals - - - - {108} - {30 145} (17) (190)
At 31 March 2020 14 - 13 121 257 1)1 413 277 93 1,416
Charpe for the year 100 - 3 3 21 2 32 66 25 301
Disposals (v} - - 2) (35) - 2 42) - (100}
At 31 March 2021 238 - 16 155 243 113 433 E | 118 1,617
Net Block as at 31 March 2020 334 2,616 37 230 46 15 52 223 129 3.6821
Net Block as at 31 March 2021 228 2,760 59 194 29 3 64 186 104 3,627
Nuote 3{b)

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars 31 Mar 2021 31 Mar 2020

Property. plant and equipment 301 321

Investment Propeny 14,850 13,737

Right (v use an assel {430 1417

Intangible assets 4,333 1.776

20,934 17,251

&




Tata Realty and Infrastrueture Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Mnancial s(atements
avar T Mareh 2021
tCurrency: lilisn Agxass 0 k)

Note 4 (a)
v estencol Propergy

Particulars Freeheld fand Leasehalid tandt Buildings | Cempucers|  Furnituse Ofmce Electrical Plamt & Tatal
and fixtures | equipmends fittimgs Machinery

Cost 7 Decmed Cost

At 31 March 2013 20, fNK L4127 2,43 MG 129 313 1261 11,562 15618 454,101
Less reclassifivl to Raght b use an ssscts - 1279y - - - - .4L279)
(Refir nate 4 4bi

Additions L2y H1255 - o7 1 5.4kt 747 SLAHD
Qo secount of dujosal of wyestments w substdianes (Rufer [RRAUSY) (Z3.776) (125) (5] i) L5 1¥,248 55,351}
Note Stk

Dhspursals - - - . - - -

At 31 March 2020 16352 - 237,424 1 116 [REL 16,313 34,746 LA
Additons - 531 - 37 U] a2 LI 1274
Oiber adjusiments [LED) 2 - - - - - (104)]

A1 34 March 2021 2,5R% - 257919 | 53 116% 10375 15402 113436
Depreciatian / amortisation gud impairment

At 1 March 2019 AL 15,480 39,541 128 AELH 27 LRI 13516 LA
Less reclassifiod 1o Raght to e an assels - 15,18ty - (15,180}
(Relir nate 4 (bt

Inmarrment Toss {Reder Note 540 () - - 1 87K - - 1,878
Charge for the year - - 630 3 L% 1157 T 13,737
On account of dwposal o mvestinents ib subsibames (Rafer (5,724 PG ) 1138 34y i+ VL33 b 41y {216
Wore b

Dispuosatt - - - - - - - - -
At 31 March 20210 67 - L0326 5 k2EY 511 13472 TF0,640
Charge: for the year - FETT 17 ite 1,603 1,541 14,950
Despusils - - - - - - - -

At 31 March 2021 467 - f1),394 - 12 467 LX) 17003 45,190
Net 8lock as 3e 3t March 2020 2,185 - 2,846,402 1 121 810 10,991 1,314 ZALEM

et Block as at 31 March 2021 2.4 - 197343 ] 161 m 9450 18,387 2,28.046

1) Amanois recognlted o profit & loss far loy estment property

Particolars 31 March 3 March

paikd] 2020

Ruual locome ECREY AR 077
Direct aperting vapenses Tom proparmy tat gansatol sl uwmme RINER 23,478
Drect oporaning vapetises o property that did not generate reatn) meomne [KLIA uys

it} Leasing arrangemenis

Tiwe Group has feasal prportas under non-cancellable operutmg Tesey m e copaermy of @ hesor, Refur Nofe 478 for futlare ninnimum Jease poynienss m nespe of hose popenaes bl the wopimye of ook o panad.

iily Measurement of Gir salues

The fanr vl of’ muesitinem propaty ars defermuied afle consdenng valuaton by an ndependsnt valuer who bolds 3 recogusal ot relent prorssion) quobibetien aul e enence 18 respet of the investoit

[roparTy buing valund

Mg o value meangement for alt o) the wvestineu property bis boeen caregonsed us 9 Level 3 fmp vadie baserd nn the mputs 10/ (e vafuaton techogue usal

iv) Valuation techalyie:

2. Valuabon of seawe subje property bus been done by Swles Conumson Mobed under Mark Approsch, A componson s iade for the puprse of salusteon sl soilar propeties that Bave seomily been »old wibe
warke awd it Wve a tramsaution nee. The sales comparison approach is the preferred approauli when sales dma are avaahle. Cnomamble properies are seladtal e sunlanty jo the subject property comsulonng
winbaes ke age, stre, shape, guality of construcoa, buildwy fesmres, condinan, design. genry, e Thar sale prces are thes sdjustod for ther difereee oot the subject poopoaty. Fanally o market value 105 tie subject
[ROATy b5 st from e adusied sales prce ot the corparable poperues,

b, Tiwe Groug also hins fllow ol descousted cash Bows technigee (e some poopeny whych consulers te: e vatue of not cash fiows o he gendaind from the propory, wsing osk-adgustal discoom mes,

4« In case of @ valuaien of o large land parcel. wheze the devdapment potenual 15 realised sver 3 anod ul oke e, e volee 6f MOTEY cunxs e e prenmyy and also where tere are ue ar s somalite sl
Propaus (1e conprrablicy avalabhe for conpanson. DCE muthexd considenog relevanl potentid devedapments of the project L sl

Invemnent propery cauyasis 4 numbir of gornnrcial properties th are Jesed © bunl parbe. Bpc oMhe leases enteral are narmolly e 2 perod of 3 e Byears. Subsuguent reticwals are oegetiated with the lessee or
oy per Whe termes of mitial spreenen are autemuncally reiewel No coptinganit nmts are charged

Recpociliatign of fair value

The followlag is the reronciliation in ¢t fair values as of March 31, 2020 apd March 31, 2021:

Particulars Anwunt
Opening halance as of April 1, 2019 315,41
Ahdiltgns 39,520
Bdetion on sucommi o disposal of iInvislpenis in subsobon 133,143
Far value wilwawe Rl
Closéng balance as of March 31, 24020 .41 63
Addinos n3R2
Farr velue diiferanee 15784y

Closing balance as od Marth 31, 202§

56224




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Naotes to the Consolidy ted financinl statements
o 3 Murch 2021
(Currency: lodian nupes w faklisd

Note 4 {b)
Right to use an assel

Particulars Leasehnld land | Office Premises Total
Cost
At31 March 2019 - -
Add : reclassified from lavestment proprarty L4279 - 141N
Additons - I15] 15t
Disposals . . .
At 31 March 2020 141,379 151 BALA3
Addirions - - -
Disposals - -
At31 March 2021 14127 150 141430

Amaertisation and impairment
AL31 March 2019 - -

Add : reclassified from Invesomen property 15 e 15,184
Charge for the year 133 4 1417
AL3T March 2020 1h,393 4 16,597
Charge for Lhe vear () 17 1430
Dispasals - - -
At 31 March 2021 18,006 21 18,027
Net Block as at 31 March 2020 124,687 147 1,24811
Net Block as at 31 March 2021 1,23,271 130 123403
Note:

Duniny the previous EY [9-20, Right 0 Use of [nianustble 4552l w hich represens Leasehold land is chusified as per provisions of Ind AS 1 16 and & amorsised based on balanee usetul life

Noted {e)

Goadwill on consolittatin

Goodwill aequired on business combination is allocated, a ucquisition 10 the cash yenerating uaiis (CGlish that are expectad ta benefit fom that business combmation. The carying.
amaount of Goodwill has been ullocated as follows:

Particulars I Miarch 2021 | 31 Masch 2020
Coodwill in respect of:
TRIL infopark Limited 19053 1053
19,053 149,053
=S







Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the Ceonsolidated financial statements
as ot 31 Marel 2621
(Currency; Indifan rupees in lakhs)

Note 8
Intangible assels
Particulars Software Service Convession Total

Arrangements

{refer foor note

below)

Cost/ Deemed Cost
At 31 March 2059 408 50,350 50,754
Additions 47 1.43.079 1,A3,126
On gevount of disposal of mvestments in subsidiries o7 - un
Disposals 133} - 33}
At 31 March 2020 405 1.93.429 193834
Additions 50 2976 3,026
Disposals 13 - (8)
At 31 March 2021 447 196,405 196,852
Amortisation and impairment
At M March 2019 337 4,906 3338
Loipainment joss {Refer Nowe 50 tah) 9,436 9,436
Charge for he year 13 1,753 1,776
Om account of disposal of investmenis in subsidianes 11y - (1)
Dispesals 133 - (33)
At 3 March 2020 35 16.185 18,500
Charye for he year 37 4.316 4353
Disposals 3} - {8)
At 31 March 2021 344 20,501 20,845
Net Biock as at 31 March 2020 90 1, 77,24 1,77,334
Net Block as ar 31 March 2021 103 1,775,904 1,756,007

Service concession agreements

Name of entity

Description of the arrangement

Significant terms of the arranpgement

International Infrabuild Pvt. Lid.

As per the Conuession Agreement {CA) the Company (s required to build
and operare Mult Let el Car Parking and colledt Parking fees from
Vehiches and User fees for Public Convenience Facilities. The CA also
spevifies that the Company is required ta bwilr and operate of the total arga.
wi commercial infrastructure and an areit of 3o Le 4656 s mshall be
reserved for Aute Showroom Aute Workshop,

Perivd of concession: 33 years (2017-2050)

Investment grant from concassian grantor - Ni

Investment and repewal obligatians . Nil

Basts upun w hich re-pricing or re-negoianon s deiermmed  [nflavon
Premium payable 15 granor Rs 266 ars plus escalation increasz

Hampi Expressways Private Limited

Desian, Build, Finance, Crperate and Transfer ( DBFOT) basis,
augmentation of the existing road from km 299.00 1o km 418 730
fapproximarely 120.13 km} on the Hospei-Chimadurga section of Narional
Highway 80.i3 (New National Highway Na.Sih

Period of concesswon: 26 years (2116 - 241}

Remunerstion * Tall Fee Collection from Road Users

Investment grant fem concession grantos - Nif

Investment and renewal obligations - &1

Besis upwin which re-priving ot re-negotiation is determned  Inllatwr
Premium payable to grantor :Rs. 18,15 cr5 plus escalarion increase

Uchit Expressway Private Lid,

Siv Lang of Chitterparh-Udaipur Section of NH-76 from Design
Chamage Km 214,870 to Km 308 370 10 the Siate of Rajasihan (Length
Q3 504 Kim) on DBFOT (Toll} Made under NHDP Phase V {Package -HI}

Pencd of concession: 2% Years (201 7-2046)

Remuneration @ T ol Fee Collection fom Road Lisers

[nvestment grant {rom concession pranwr - NIL

Investnent and renewal vbligations : NI,

Basis upon which re-pricing or re-neponiation 15 determined . NA
Premivm payable 1o wranter | Rs. 25 cos plus escalation increase

Durg Shivnath Expresswass Private Lirited

Toll collections from the users and nperation ard maintenance of total
stretch of 18.5 ks at WH-6, Dury Bypass as agreed belween the

Company and National Highways Autherity of indiz (NHAal) on Butld,
CGperzate and Transfer [BOT} basis

1) Period of Concession: 32 Years and & motiths (2067-2030}

2} Remunevation: Toll Fee Collecnion fom Read Users

1y Investment Grame fram Concession Grantor - NIL

) Basis upon which re-pricing or te-pegoriaton 1 Jeterimned - Toll Tanff wlt
be revised Ist April of every year vonsidermg WPI

%} Prermuum pavable to Granior - NIL

Dharamshala Ropeway Lmmited

year.

Aureement eniereyd with The Department of Toursm & Civil Aviaton,
Himachal Pradesh { Awthonty '} fos 1he eonstrucion of Passenger
Ropeway berweert Backside of Dharamshala Bustand wpto Dalali Lama
Termple, Meleodyan) under DEFOT Moudel { Design. Buald, Finance
Operate and Transfer Modeb. referred o as “Passenger Ropew ay
Facibty" The Passenger Ropeway Gcility is under construction us on dale
The Civl & Land Site Developmenis worhs have been staned duniny the

Period of concession: 40 Years from the appointment dage (2020-10610
Remuneration  Collection on Ropeway tickets

Insestment gram from concession graptor - NI

Invesiment and renzwa! obfigations - Nil

Basis upon which re-pricing or re-rggotialion & determined 43 per
concession agreement

Premium pavable to grantor:Rs. | <1 plus escalation [nenease

Matheran Ropeway Pnivate Limited

electric

Development of 3 Ropeway project n Matheran, Maharashira of approv
4300 Meters connectng Bhuetivali Village to Madhayji Peint at Matheran,
a0 Design, Build. Finance, Operate and Transter 1DBFOT) bass. The
Project would have all elements of sustainability and would be naise fee,
y driven, Evo-friendly and noa-paollubing: It is eStinated that the
Project would save ~ 1Y toane of carbon dioxide emissions

The Company has sigred an Agresment with The Matheran Garisthan Nagar
Farshad, Matheran an 20tk May 2003 for & period of 99 years. The Company
has agrezd 1o pay compensanan equal oo 3% of 115 ned profils of ¢ach vear
Marheran Giristhan Nagar Parshad, Matheran




Tata Realty and Infrastructure lLimited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements {Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees i lakhs)
As at Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Note 9

Investment accounted using Eqnity Method (at carrying costh:

Unguated equity shares, fully paid-up

2.380,711 (2020: 2386.711) equiry shares of Pune Solapur 1711 2248
Expressways Private Lunited. of Rs.10 each Rully paud up.

740000 (2020: 750,000) cquiry shares of INR 10 each in TRIL 1T4 - -
Private Limited & {Refer Foot Note 1 below)

30.000 (2020: 30.000) equity shares of A & T Road {onstruction | i
Management and Operation Private Limited. of Rs. 10 each fully paid

up.
3.256 (2020: 3.236) equity shares of INR 100 each in ludustrizl 21,921 21.950
Minerals and Chmnicals Company Povate Limited {Refer Fool Nole ]
below)
19,987,400 (2020: 19987400 equity shares of INR 10 each i 21,597 30,335
Mikado Realtors Private Limited (Refer Foot Note | below) (Net of
Provision for Diminution n value of Hs. 8,456 lakhs (2020 Rs. Nil)
hased on fair valuation}
08, 797395 (2020: 44,407,400} equity shares of [NR 10 each mn Pune 14,186 4226
T City Merro Raid Limited
18.50,85,185 (2020: Nill equity shares of INR 10 each w Taiz 50,004 -
Housing Developwent Company Limited {Reter Foot Nate 2 below)
TAY 105,416 58.760
Investment in debentures of joint ventures
314 (2020; B14) Qualed Redecinable Non-convertikle Debentures of 4. 144 X140
INR 10 Lacs each in TRT] [T4 Private Lunited {Refer Foot Nare 3
below)
11,787,460 (2020 11.787 460) Unguoted Compulsorily Convertible 11.787 LL787
Debentures of INR 100 each [n !ndustrial Minerals and Chemicals
Company Privale Limited
(B 19,927 19917
(A-Hi 125343 78,687
## Unrecoenised share of losses in inint ventures
TRIL 1T4 Privaie [ imited (19,215} {20,919

Faot Note:
1. The Group has provided Noo Disposal Findertakings 10 the lenders ¢ Investors of ifs joing venmures for the minimurg shareholding that
the Company needs to maintain untd! the (inal senlerwent date of the loan.

2. The Group, in accordance with the approval of its beard of directors in their board meeting held on 25 March, 202!, has wvested
185,183,185 equity shares of Rs 10 zach tn Tara Housing Development Company Lumted at Rs 27 per share at an aggregate amouni of
Rs 30.000 lakhs. the fair value in respect of which was based ve valuation report obtained from an independert registerad valuer This
ransaction being very close o the year end. Management is of the view that there would be no change m fair value as at 31 March.
2021

3. In the absense of any transactions. the book value of TRIL [T4 Lunited is considered as the far value.

Nate 10
Other [nvestments {non-eurrenty

Investment in Unquoted. Fully paid-up, Equiry nstrumens of Other
Cowmpanies {Farr Vatued Through Profit and Loss} t Refer Foot note)

137,600 (2020: 1,17,600) equiny shares of Vagari Wodfarms 12 12
Lunized
23.80,000 (2020: [8,90,000) equiny Shares of Peninyx Neep Private 138 184
Limited
119,187 (2020 119.187) equry shares of Echanda Urja Privace 1 il
Limited
261 212
Note:

The above investmenls represents mvestulent w equiy shares of the above mentioned entines pursuans io the requirement under the
Elecmricity Act. i connection wuh the power purchase arranpement that the group has in place with these parties. As per the wrms of
these invesuments, the wroap 15 not entitled to any other returns or benefits and will be entitled to receive the amount nvested equivalent
to Lhe face value of the equity shares upon expiry of such agreemenis

Nate 11
Otheyr Mnancial assets {non-current)
Linsecared, considered good

Fixed deposit having matunmy more than 12 inoeths under Lien 2194 389
Lzase rental receivable 230 243
Securiry Deposits 1,193 984

1717 1,816




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
{Currency: [ndian rupess in lakhs)

Note 12
Deferred tax assets (Net)

Deferred Lax assets on
- Unrecagnised Ipsses on investments in associates and jomt venrures

- Other Rnancial assets and derivate mstruments at fair value through
profit and loss

- Other provisions {including provision for employee benelits and
other amounis allowable un a pavment basis)

- unabsorbed depreciation

Note 13

Non Current rav assets {Net}
Advance tax
Less: Provision for Lax

Nute 14

Other non-current assets
Unsecured, considersd yood

Capilal advances

Balance with Governimeat Authonties
Secunry Deposil - Others

Prepard expenses

Lease equalisation reserve

Unbilled Reveene

MNote I3

[nventories

fvafed af cost or qes realisable vahie whichever is less)
Bought out construction materials

Work-in-progress

Finsshed goods { Refer foot nate)

t oot note:

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Represent value of residential ungts. Nvei of NRY provision on inventories TNR Nil Lakhs (2020: TNR 1.420.78 Lakhs)

Note 16
Trade and other receivables
- From related parties
Secured, considered yood
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured. considered doubt fui
1ess : Provision for credit impaired Trade Receivables
- From others
Secured, considered gowd
Lnsecured. considered good

Nete 17
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balange with banks
- ML CUrTent accounts
- in deposit accounts

Note I8
Bank bulances other than cash and cash cquivalenes

Term deposut with originzl matunty less than twelve months
Term deposit with original maruncy less than twelve montits under lien

A

2274 1274
3.238 2387
578 34
11,805 4,397
17,895 2591
16,819 18,787
6.943) (6,428)
9,884 12,359
12,251 863
1210 184
19 17
1113 610
13,008 11,599
- 157
27,701 21311
- 32
243 2,630
14,695 30,905
27,129 3,587
16 2
308 53y
306 306
{306y (306
1,189 1873
332 355
1,935 2,865
25 10
3152 3300
15,9 20,610
18,196 29,940
4.840 5.388
42314 218
9,074 35.607




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
™otes ta the consolidated Minancial statements (Continued)
(Currency: indian rupees in [akhs)

Note 19

Other Investments (current)

Investment in mutual funds, fair valued through Profit and Loss
Lnits Held 046,688 41% (2020 : 491.52%95) of Face value of Rs
1,000 {NAV - Rs, 3,247.6337 ¢202¢ © 3.132.99)) each io TATA liguid
fund - Direct Plan - Growth

Units Teld Nil [2020: 3,289,874 36] ol Face value of Rs I (NAV -
Rs. Nil [2020: Rs. 319.56]) each r ABSL Liquid Fund - Growil-Direct

Linits Held 2.208.70 [2020; 385.284.60] of Face vahe of Rs 10
{NAV - Rs. 3058.00!6 [3)20: Rs. 3.906.,6!]) cach o HDFC Lignid
Fund - Direct Plan - Growth Option

Uinits Held 754.765.41 [2028: 10,286.570.04] of Face value of Rs L0
INAV - Rs, 304.7364 [2020: Rs. 293.78]} each in ICIC] Prudential
Liquid Fund - Dirgct Plan - Growih

Umits Held [5.050 {2020: Nil| of Face value of Rs 10 (NAV - Rs.
10879196 [2020: Rs. Nil]) each m Axis Overmpght Fund [irect
Growth

Note 20

Short-térm loans and advances
Unsecnred, considered good

Sevurity deposits

Advances recoverable from Retated Parties
Cither loans and advances

Note 21
(her financial assefs (¢urrent)
Unseenrad, considered gaod

interest accrued oo deposis

Chaims Receivable from NHAT turility shiftg)
Intercorporate Depusits mven to Related Parties
Unbilled revenue

Fareign Exchanpe Funward Conmacl Receivahle
Claim Receivable from NHA | Refer fool note belowi
Security deposits

Others current tinancial asset

Fuot Note:

Asat
31 March 2021

Asat
3 Mareh 2020

21,002 15395
- 10,513
68 15052
2300 30220
164 -
23354 71,180
3 3
301 579
- 807
04 1,389
93 19§
1333 1.232
2,070 2510
570 438
. 103
344 4.0647
n7 775
173 247
8,000 10,150

Claun Recewvable from NHAI pertams fo claims towards change o law as per clause 41.1 of Service Corcession Agreement entered with
NHAI, These are back to back clmms made by EPC Contractor as per clause 24.2 of EPC avreement and the same are pavable to the
EPC Ceatracter only to the exient such clawms are recosmised by NHLAT as change i law and payments are refeased. To Lhe extent such
claims arc not accepted by N11AL the same shail accordingly vot be pavable to EPC contractor and accordingly vorresponding tabiliy

shall reduce.

Note 12

Other current assets

{nsecured, considered gond

Advance ta vendors

Balances with Government and other authorines
Prepaid expenses

Lease equalisation reserve

Others

76 184
i.13 3107
LI45 739

51 L7
235 355
3.3 5514




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2021
{Curreney: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note 23

Equity share capital

Authorised share capital

$.,00.00,00,000 {2020: 3.00,00.80.000) equity shares of INR 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-np
1.61,73,07,692 (2020: 1 01,73,07 692) equity shares of INR 10 each

Reconciliation of the shares cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of tlre year

Equity shares

At beginning of the year
[ssued during the year *
Qutstanding ac the end of the year

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

8,00,000 8,00,000
1,61,731 101,731
1,61,731 1,01,731
31 March 2021 31-Mar-20
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
1,01,73,07,692 101,731 1.01.73.07.692 1.01.731
60,060,00,008 60,000 - -
1.61,73,07,692 1.61,731 1,01,73,07,692 1.01,731

* - Dunng the current year, 60,00,00,000 Equity shares of INR {( each were allotted from share application money pending allotmeni at a premium ot

INR 10 each.

Terms and rights attached to the equity share

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares 1s entitled 1o one vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject ta the approval of shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeung. In the event of liquidation of the Comipany, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assels
of the Company, aiter distribution of alt preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

sharcholders.

Shares of the company held by the Holding company

Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up
Tata Sons Private Limited

Details of shareholding more thau 5% in the company

Equity shares of INR 10 cach. fuily paid-up
Tata Sons Private Limited

&

31 March 2021

J1-Mar-20

Number of shares Amouni Number of shares Amount
1,61,73,07.692 1,61,731 1,01.73.07.692 101,731
31 March 2021 31-Mar-20
Number of shares| % Holding Number of shares % Holding
1,61,73,07.692 100% 1.01.73.07.64%2 1 3%




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consulidated Minancial statements (Continued)
{Currency. Indian rupees in lakhs)

Asat An at
31 Mavch 2021 3 March 2020
Note M4
Qther equity
Share application mooey pending allotment - 1,20,000
Reserves and surplus
Serurifies premuom reserve 75,760 15,769
Capital reserve 4.911 4,911
Retained camnings (1.65.230) t1.35,799)
Other comprehensive income
Defined bene At plan adjustment 163 29
{B4.407) 4,910
Share application money pending alloiment
Openmg balance 120,800
Received during the year - 1,290,000
Less: allotnent of shares during the year 1.20,000% -
- 1,20.000
Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 15,769 15,769
Less: allotment of shares during the year 60,000 -
75,769 135,769
Capital reserve
Opennp balance 4.0 4911
4.911 4,911
Retained earnings
Opening balance (L5709 {99.543)
et loss for the vear attnibutable to owners {29.451) 136.236)
(1.65,250) (1,35.799)
Other comprehensive income - Defined henefit plan 2djustment
Openine balance 19 7
Remeasvrements of defined benefir Tability 176 3
Income (ax relatng 10 iewms that will nor he reclass: fied to profil of loss {421 i
163 29
Non-controlling interests
Opening balanee 6,384 6.617
[.oss for the year {882) 1231)
5502 6384

Nature and purpose of the reserves:

Securities premiuom reserve

1 0.01% Cownpulsorily convertible debenrures were compulsorily convertible mnee eqmiry shares by 23 August 2016 or before at the
vption of investor. Puring the Financial year 2016-17 1on 24 Aupust 20161, these debentures were coaveried mto 192,307,692 Equiry
shares of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 3 each

2) During the current year. 60,00.00.002 Equity shargs of IR 10 each were alloned from share appheaucen inoney pendmg aflotment at
a premium of INR 10 each.

Capital reserve

Capiial reserve was ereated to record excess of net assets (aken over pursuant to scheme of mesger sanctioned by the Bombay High
Court in the year 2015-16 berweer Tara Realty and lnfrastructure Lunited. Vara Builder Private Limited and YRIF Real Estate and
Developiment Linuted

Debenture redemption reserve

Debenrure redemplion reserve kas not been created as per Secrion 71 of the Companies Acr, 2013 due to losses incwred past 1ssuance of
debentures.

Note 15

Borrowings {Long-term) (refer footnote helown)

Secured

From Banks and Financial nstimrions 436,033 4.25.35n0
{Net of Carrent maruniies of long term borrowings of Rs. [ 7,348

Lakhs (2020 Rs. 35,794~ Lakhs)

From Others 22943 19.043
L'asecured
Non converible debentures 164,324 130419

tvet of Current maturities of long term burrowmgs of Rs. 72363
Lakhs (2020 Rs. 39,904/~ |_akhs)

Fron Banks and Finazcia! [nstimutions 12.967 12429

6.36,287 596,749




otz Kealty and wirsstructure Lnited

Notes o the ¢ lidated fmancinl 41

us wf 31 March 2621
s

ency Indan rupees in lakhs)

Note:

Name of the Bunks / Financial Institutions

Amount

Terms of Hepayment

Security

Rate of Interest

rrow estate Private L

FIDEC Lad

20,330

Faciiity-1

LR Loan shall be repaid un maxipium §32 maonths
by way of monhly nswiments  ("Mombly
Instalments” MIS)  © eguated  mombly
mstalmenty

Fauliy-2

Shall be payable os 132nd month trom dute of
disbursement

ar

(1) Mongage of underlving land admeasuning 2 025 acres ure Jucated at sector 72, Gurgaon, Goll Course
Lxtension Road, Gurgaon, Haryana-1 22101 alang wiith commercial buddimg thereon haveng leasable area
of abour 392 943 8q £t

i) Exelusive charge on recevables ansing ot of the buddmg

{n) Shorfall underizking from Tam Reahty and Infrastruciure Linted 1o repay propurtionate debt, m case
the premises aee not flly leased at the end of' 18 months from the dute of Tirst disbursemient nadéor m case
the scheduled receivabtes fram the sail premrses are less Lhan the seheduled monthly imstalmenisinierest
for 1§ months trom the dare of st disbursemient

The rate of mierest op LRD loan
from  HDFC Ll s HDFC
LRII_PLR(Lender's Corpornle Prime
Lending Rawy luss spread of 100 bps,
presently apphcable rate s 820"
pa pavable aunionthly rests

Curgnon Realtech Li

Troim Jur

L 2022 and wommatmg on March, 20410

(aa) Fust charge oo entire snmuvable properties of' the respechve group company, both present and future,
save and excet project Assels

tb) First chaige on oll fangible muovable assels of the respecive group company ncluding mavable ploant
and maciunery, machimery spares and tools and accessormy, furmture, fioqures, velicles and all other
movable ussets, both present and tuture, i any, save and excepl Proiect Assers

{c} Fiest charge over alf accounts of the respecuve group company including the Escraw Account, Sub-
Accouils (or any aceount 1o Substitution theren!) thnt may be npened 1n accordance witlt this Agréement
and the Membrowlum of Operetng Pracedure, or any of the other Project Documents and all funds
deposited therein, from tinie 1o iz, al) recervable and Pemntied Investmenis or uher secorines

HDFC Ld 28,298 tHaeilng-1 11} Mortgage of underlving land admeasvring 2 431 acres wre located al sector 72, Gurgaen, Goll Cuurse The rate of interest on term loan {ram
'LRO Luan shall be repard o maxunam 132 months|Extension Roud, Gurgnon, Haryana-132101 along with commercial butlding thereon having lessable area[HDFC Ltd 15 HDFC CF- PLR less
by way of monthly  wstalments  ("Montbly|af shom 470,422 Sy [ spread of Isu bps, presenily being
Inswlents"  or - MISY ¢ equated  monthiv] (o) Exclusive churge on secewvables ansing out ol the binkding 8 20°a per annum payable a1 munthly
mstalments (1) Anyior athier seeurity af sumlarfugher vilue scceprable 1o HDFC Tesls
Fuodiny-2
Shall be payable en 122nd menth from Jate of
disbursemem

|Dharamshaly Ropeway Liited

Bink of Maluwrashng 7793 |Tuse 3 quarterly lnswiment of prigcgpal bas beend () First chatge by way of morgage on uniiovable project asses Rate of ntetest will be MCLR
pawd by the company and for the belance repayment| (i) First charge by way af liypothecation of all the movable assets of the company present and future +| 25% po e presenly the rale of
ui prneipal amount has been shilted wall bel{in} First charge un the Project’s beok debls, operatng eash flows, receivables coptmissiens, resenues of | tterest 1s 10% per anaum (uppsox.)
guarerly nstalmenis over o penod of [0 yeors|whatsoever ature and wherever arsing, present and fifore, inangibles, poodwill, vncatled capial present|Interest payment fregitency will be
cumimencing lrom March, 2022 ull June 2031 and futuge menthly

(1v) Fserew of all recevables of the respective group company

() Furst ehwtge on Projects Escrow Accoum, Current Aceount and the wmoumts theren
Uchit Eapresswayy Pri ed
Unzan Bank or Indiz (TL) 40,340 |Repuvoble o qunrterly nstelments  commenciny

rate of interest 15 820 w #45% pa
{approx )




Vaw Really and wfrastucture Limsied

Notes ts the lidated financinl (Crnthniedd)
oy ul 31 Murch 2021

{Currency Indun rupees 1o laklys)

Note:
Nume of the Bauks / Financin! lastilutions Amount Terms of Repayment Security Rawe of Interes|
State Bank of Indin 12198 [Repavable w quarterly mstalments commencingita) Fust charge un entie immovable properties of the Company, both present und Nuture, save and except|rate of tnterest 15 K 20 10 R45% pa

from June, 2022 and tennmatng on March, 2040 | progect Assets {apprus )
11} First charge vn all wngble mavable assels of the Cumpany includieg movable plant ond machinery,
machitery spares and ools and accessones, (wnnure, (nteres velicles and all other movable assets, butl
present and {tture, f any, save and excepl Project Assets

{¢) Fust charge over all accounss of the Company tcluding the Bscraw Account, Sub-Accounis {or any
sccount i Substitution thergol) that may be upened n accordance st this Agresment and e
hemorundum wf Operaung Procedure, or any of the other Projeel Documents and all tunds debasited
theyen, from tme 10 tote. all recervable and Pernitlted Investments ar other securines

(d) Farst charge on all smangibles assews of the Compeny including but not hmued 1o goodwiil, rglhis,
undertakings uf the Contpany and uncajled capilal, present szl uture, except the Project Assets provided
that all recervaiies ansmy thei efrom shall be deposited inlo Bscrow Adc and a charge on the same shall be
subject W the extenl permissible as per the priongy specified in the Arucle 31 of the Concession
Agreement and clavse 4 of the Escrow Agreement  Fursher 2 charge on uncalled capual us sel 1h above,
shall subject however, to the provisons of Aruches 33, 7 1(k}and 31 of the Concession Agreemen

[e} un assignment by way of secunty in

i all the nglits, e, interest, benefus, clanns and Semands whatsuever of the Borrower i, o ur ander
(e Praject Documents

(i) all the nghts, utle and ierest ol the Companty in, w or uodee all such appravals as are required w be
sought (rom any Government
{uy adl the nights, Gtle, interest, benefils, clams and demnnds whalsaever, ol the Borrower m, any letler of|
aedit, gusrantee ingluding conlractor guarantces and hguidated damages and performance bond provided
by any party 1o the Project Documents,

v} 4l of the nght, ttle, nterest, benefits. clams and demands whatsoever, of the Comgany o, to or|
under all fnsurance Contracrs

State Bank of Indus 33,023 [term loany farn banks are repayable in unequal i1} Firsi charge un enure immovihie praperties of the Campany, i any, spve and except project Assets (us | average rate of mleres!t of' 8 40% -
quarterly instalments commencing from December [delined i the Concession Agreement), 8 50% pn
26, 2021 and termpnaling on barch 27, 2035 {it) Fars1 change on ennre movable asseis ol lhe Company, bath present und future, i eny, save and excepl
- a1 0 define = B85 g0 q
Orental B o Comrerce S8 Project Assetd {as defined 1 the Concession Agreement)

{1} First charge ea the Escrow Account / Trust and Retention Account {TRA), Dept Service Reserve
Account {DSRA) nod any ather reserves and otlwt bank secouns of the Company, wherever mainimned.
provided further that the irst charge as set oul beremn shall anse only alier the proceeds or realizstion
Canata Bank 19151 thereal, 1t any, have been received in Lo the Escrow Accounl designated far the Project and thereatier shall
ooly be 1o the eXlent of water(all mechanism (¢ prionties (o the withdrawal of payments} 43 provided in
the Concession Agieement and Escrow Agreement

() Enst charge on all imangibles including bt not lumited to guodwill end uncalled caprtal, prosent and
Ty AT l‘mu‘rt, exclodmg the Praject Asseis and v charge on the uncalled capunl subject huwever, 1o the proviswns
ot Concassion Agregient

fv) Assignment of secunty interest on the Domower s nghts, tle und mierest ke the extent covered by and
1n accordinee with the Subshiution Apieement

{vi) First chorge on the isuisnee proceeds depastted mio the Eserow Account

Corporation Rank 9048 {vit) The above secunty will raok pati-pessa with ot Lenders panicipiting m the Facitity

<



Taw Realty and intrasiuvture Linnied
Tl

Nutes 1o the ¢ I linancinl 1y (L U]
s wt 34 March 2021
(Cwirency Indsan rupees m lakhs)
Noge:
Name of the Banks / Finnnciul Lnstifutions Amint Terms of Repayment Security Rate of lnierest
TRIL Infup, winited
Stste Botth of Indi 75.000 [This Term Luan from Swie Bank Of India 15)The loan 15 secured by a lest rankig pon passo charge on the enfire current assets, curent accounts,| The mee of inturest on lenn loan om
repaysble 10 several mstalment ull 30th September|escrow accounts, project documents and such otlier assels of the Company Collateral securty uver (lie|state bank of Indin 15 6 Maonths SBi
2029 os per the repayment schedule npreed Investmen! properties owned iy the Company, assignment or hypothecuton of lease rent as per the Lease| MCLR e plus 0 20%, duning the
deeds  lease deeds and the amemities ngreement and other leases entered by the Campany i the|venr 1t was changed once o 7 15%)
vesiienl property p.a in October 2020 and 15 presently
sullbeing 7 1S% pa
State Hank ol [ndu 50,0496 [Thts Term Loan from Swie Bank OF India | The lown 1s secured by & Drst ranking pan passu charge on the enure current assels, curent accounts, | The rate of interest on term Toan from
repavable in several instalment Gll 300 Seprember|escrow accounts. project documents and such other asses of the Company Collateral securiry over the[state bank of lndia 15 ¢ Months SBI
2029 s per the repayment schetule agreed mnvestiment properties wwned by ihe Company ussignment or hypothecation of lease renl as per the Lease| MCLR rate plus D 15%, dunag the
deeds, lease deeds and the amemibies agreement and other lesses emiared by Ihe Company i the|year i was changed onee 1o 7 10% n
Imvesimens property March 2021 gad s presently sull
being 7.10%apa
HOC Tad 36,708 | This Term Loan ffom HDEC Lid 15 ropayable nf Assig Hyp tron of lense rent {present & fulure) as per teave and license Agrecment and|The rate of inderest on term loan from
severnl mstalments as per the repavment schedulel Amennes Apreen od g by TRILIL and the vatious lessecs roin the men nwrigaged herennfrer) HOFC Lid s #iDEC LRD PLR lgss

agiced bll Seplember 2029

referred 16 as the
horgage of appioxamately 23 74 Acres of SEZ
“Ramanuan IT Ciny*

propeny ulong with leaschuld nghts of project

The above secanties shall rank pary pasu with Stie Bank of India 25 on 31-03201% 10 he tane of the loan
outstanding 1¢ Rs 350 Croand Rs 900 Cr

265 basis pownts, dunng the year 1t
was chanped twice once (v 8 40%

pa o Apnl J020 snd then n
December 2020 w0 715% pa,
presenily soll bemg 7 15% pa

payable at monthly rests




Tk Realy nnd ntrastucture Linuted

Notes 1o the condolidated financinl statements {Continned}

ax at 31 Murch 26021
(Cwrency Indian rupecs  laklis)

Note:

Nune of the Banks / Financinl Inatitutions

Amount

Terms of Repayment

Rate of Ingeress

Adiya Birle Fraanve Lid

A3

Repavable w1 quurterly nstnlments  commencing
trom Dine, 2022 and wrmmatog on March, 2040

(a) Furst charge on entire unnrovable propetties of the Company. both present aml tuture, snve and excepl
project Assets

{h} Firgt chaige on all angible movable assets of the Conpany mciuding movable plant amd machinery,
mochinery spares and roels and eccessones. turniture, fxtures velictes and all other movable assets, hoth
present and futule, f any, save and except Froject Assets

e} Furst charge over olf accoums of the Company including the Eserow Account. Sub-Accounts {or any
avcount o Substitunon thereol thet may be opened o accordance with this Agreement d the
Nemorandum of Cperating Procedure, ar any of the other Projeel Documents and all funds deposited
therem, Trom ting o tme, all ieecivable and Permiited Invesiments or other securnties

() First charge oo afl miapgibles assets of the Company neluding hut Aot hmied (o goodwill, nglis,
undertakings ol the Company and uncalled copial, present and future, escept the Propect Assets provided
that all recervables ansing theretrom shall be deposited mio Lscrow Asc and a charge on the same shall he
sulyect 1o the estent permusmble as per the prionry specified m the Article 31 ot the Coneession
Agreement and clause 4 of the Bserow Agreement  Further a ehizge on unculled capital as set m sbove.
shall subpect however, to the provissons of Arecles S 3.7 ik} and 31 of the Concession Agreenient

{e) anassigmnent by wiy ol secunity n

() all the reghis nile, inserest, benefus, clomis end demandy whatsoever of the Bonower in. w ar under
the Praject Documents

(0} ail the nghts. ttle and iterest of the Company m, to ar under all sugh approvaly as are required o be
suggit fiom any Govermnent

tany bl the righis, utle, mterest, beaehils, caons and demunds whatsoever, of the Havrower an, any lelter ol
vredit, guaranter including conuetor guasamees wnd bguidatal dantages and perfonmance bond provided
by any paity 1o the Prigeal Docunients.

()l of the rght, e, unetest, benefits, claans and denuods whitsoever, of the Company 1, 1o ur|
under sl Insurance Contracts

rate of mterest s 8 20 o 845%0 pa
{apprax i

Private Limiteil

Lunted

12967

Repavinens i Instalment up w 40 Sepuember 2022

Cotpocnte Goarantee provided by TRIL Roads Prvaie Limoed, holding company  Also, Non-dispesal
undertabing pivest by TRIL Roads Privaie Limited. with respect o 51% shwe of Durg Shavnath
Lxpressways Private Limnted

The mierest paviments are due senn-
[annually  Interest rawe Kt st 90
davs  penod  from  the  date off
disbursemen H3IM. pa,
thereafier wd §95% po, sulject 1o
annual Tffective Inlerest
rae ! @38 pa e appled 10
recugiiise  (nlerest for the
year Eifective mierest 15 armved atter]
considering the uplront fee pud 1o
msinution the
amaunt borrowed dunng the yesr

W
rencwal

expense

finnncial towards

Duig Shivanath Expressways Privaie

Axis Bank L1d

16, 5tH)

The repaymuent shall be as ger repaynient schedule,

commencing fran FY 2024120 w0 2027-28

1) Mypathecation by way of first churge on sl mavable assets, bank aceounts including all recervables and
revenues both present and future

(1) Rghs of the company under the project documants meluding Insurance contracts

{my Al Receivables including toll 1ecetvables on the road streteh (excepl lon clams v NHAL for eliange

i seope winch huve been dune earliery

The Tetm Loan shall earry o fixed
rate of nierest of B 43%: pa
manthly witerest pavment

witl




Tata Realty and infrastrpciune Lunted

Notes (o the consolidated Gnuecinl siatemwents (Continied)

ux uf 37 March 2021
Cmreney Indinn cupees m lakhs)

Nate:

Nanie of ihe Banks / Financial Institutiens

Amdunt

Ternn of Repayment

Security

Rute of Interest

Tatn Realty amd Infrassructure Limited

Nyn Converiible Debentures

Non Converible Debentures

237 000

The (ebenures shll be redeemed  From 20
Apri 2021 1o 2Tst June 2024

z

The rate of interest on debentures w
6 50% 10 9 50% pa ., and coupon ta
be pad annually/Matoriy

(ﬂ)

FOTAL- A 7,206,849
TRIL Lufopark Limiwed
HIDIC Hank Lid 1out) |Company has received o saneton of Ry 25 400 TIns 15 a workmyg capital loan and 15 Unsecured “The rate of inrerest on this working
Lakhs fram 3DTC Bank Out of which Ra 10,000 caprtal lopn s S 78% pa
Lakhs 15 tund based and has been withdrawn lully
mo by Z0M-ZL And the bulance s Non-fund
based Lunil of Rs V34,00 Lakhs
This Warking Capaal Loan trom HDFC Bank as
repayable in 11 monibs 1 ¢ m Febroary 2022
89§ | Over Drait Unsecured rate of inlerest 1s R 20 10 Bd5%a pa
(approx. )
Tata Reulty and Infrastructure Limited
Commoveinl Paper
HDEC Ulira Short Term Fund 20,000 | Repavinent on 21 -0g-2011 Unsecurad bIipa
ICHL Ulna Short Tern: Fund 7500 |Repayment on 10-09-2021 Linsecured sdllapa
Adstyy Birla Sun Lite Mooev mansger fund 20,00 |Repavinent pn 20-12-203] Unsecued 5 SU%pao
LYE Ulus Shon Fund 8,508 | Repovnient an 27-09-202] Linsecpred 500% pa
Aduyu Birlo Sun Lile Money manayer tund YUY |Repaviment un 17-08-2021 Unsecured SHPapa
Malundra Manuhife Ultra Short Teon Fund 1,000 [Repnymenn an 27.04.2021 Unsecored SFepa
Matundrs Manulfe Short Term Fund 1,00 |Repayment vn 27-09-2021 Unsecured 5w pa
Nahindra Manulile Low durauun Fund 300 {Repaymeni on 27-09-26G21 Unyecured 50U0% g
Mathersn Ropeways Private Limited
Loung Wirectors 100
YOTAL-B 78491
Less - EIR on BHorrowings (IND AS (2,550}
|adjusimenisy - ()
TOTAL-(A+H () 302,790
Particulars Ameunt
Lorig, wim horrowings 630,287 [Reter Note Ng 25
Current maturny of lonyg enm barrmwings 713 |Refer Note No 32
Short term borvawisgs To 79 [Refer Nele Noo 50
TOTAL 402,790



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the ¢ d fi ial st ts (Continued)
{Currency. Indian rupees in lakhs)

As ar Asal
31 March 2021 31 March 202¢

Nate 26
Other financial liabiliries {non-current)
Financial liability for premium payment ai far value 70,285 69,0016
Secunty deposits from customers 14,611 2M.787
Interest accrued but not due on borrowmus - 5433
Denvatives not desegnated as hedges

- Put option 1441 1.391
Lsability towards purchase of shares {Reler Foot Note below) e 60l
Retention money payable 785 947
Lease Liabilities 128 139

B7,560 98.814

Foot Note:

The Group had purchased the shares of Durg Expressways Private Lumited from SAS Linsted at a consideranon of Rs. 24.076 lakls, ost
of which the Group has paid Rs. 23,473 lakhs and ithe balance consideration of #5. 601 lakhs was beld as "Holdback Amount” and was
payahle orly upon fulfiliment of conditions by the seller company. The said ainount was accounted as a kiability nnder "Liability towards
purchase of shares” Durmyg the year the seller ful(illed one of the conditions and as per share purchase ayreement the Group bas paid Its
291 [akhs.

Note 27
Lnng-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits:

- Gratuity Si6 464
- Cotnpensated absences 611 302

Provision for:
1,281 1,281

- Construction cost
- Major Maintenance of Other Assels 183

- Major Maintenance of Read # 1311 121
3.892 2,368

# As per the best estimale of the management. provision is been made. towards cost of major mainienance of the roads in rerins of the
agreernent entered into with National Hichways Authority of lodia.

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31si March, 2020
Opening balance 3.621 2o
Add: Provision for the year 1818 1219
Add: Linwinding of discouats an provision - 186
Closing balance:

- Long-terim Provision 1311 121

- Short-termn Proviston 4.128 2,504
Note 28

Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

an account of Property. plant and equipment and mianmble assels . 1364
- op straight liming of lease rents and athers 194 137
11,535 5,021

Note 29

Other nan-current liabilities

Advanee received fom customers 7050 7,030
Advance rent recerved 1,195 2725

8.235 9.175

Note 3

Short-term borrawings (refer footnoie ta Note No. 25)

Secured

- From Banks 891 10,011
Linsecured

- From Bark 14,0048 20000

Comniercial paper
- From Munai funds # ¢Net of wnexpired discount of Rs, i 70 - 65,799 75303
lakhs (2020: Rs. 2.697:- lakhs)

Loans from Otbers * 104a L

76,790 105414

Note:
# The said barrowing represents Commersial paper wsued to mutuz| funds at a discount rate rangm frown 3.30% - § 70% per annum
£2020: 0.10% - 9.00% per anonmt, and the same are repayable within one year at the agreed upon full face value.

* Borrowings outstanding as on March 2021 is mierest bearing equivalent to aet FDV interest (Previous Year : Interest bearmg).
unsecured loan which shal! be due and repavable afler satisfaction of wanche | conditions subsequeat snch as approval from relevant
authontes 10 constyct road fron Bhivpun o ropeway base starfon, EiA Clearance as required under the Envirorment Tmpact
Assessmeut Notfication, 2006, Approval of ROW from District Collector and Forest Conservaror and other conditions as mentioned
Share Holdmg Agreement. The Company esiimates that these condfivons will be satisfied by March 2022,

G



Tata Realty and {nfrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
{Currency: Lodian rupzes m inkhs)

Note 31
Trade and other payables

Due 1o Micro and Sinall Enterprises (Refer Note 48)
Due to athers

Note 32
Current - Other Gnancial liabiliries
Current Matunty of Long Term Borrowings (refer foomote (0 Note 25}
~Non-cenvertible debentures
From banks
Security deposits from customers
Capuital creditors
Interest accrued oo borrowings
Derivative Liability on put optian
Financial liability for premium payment art fair vales
Payable - Claim o EPC iRefer foot note to Note 2( 3
Other finaneial liabilities

Note 33

Other curreat liabilities

Advances fron customers

Statutery dues

Corpus Fund cotlection

Compensation on delaved possession payable
Unearned rent

Secunty Deposil from Custotners

Other current hiahilities

Note 34
Short-term provisions
Provision for empleyee benefifs:
- Oratnity
- Compensated absences
Provision for Major Mainienance of Road frefer foomote 10 Notz Ni
e
Other Provisions

Note 35

Current tax tiabilities (Not)

Provision for Tax

Advance Tax and Tax Deducted a: Source

As ar
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

97 6
6.034 5871
6,131 5379

71,365 19,594
17348 35,794
9.565 1619
8181 10,867
1979 17,200
19,633 17432
2035 1813
344 4,647
432 07
1,55,182 129,763
1593 1976
789 2577
5M 731

i i
2,676 1,383

58 43

135 128
6,096 7901
45 83
137 152
4,128 3,500

72 40
4.382 3777
8975 5.975

(7.213 7.219)
1,756 1,756




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note 36
Revenue from eperations

{A) Sales of products
Sale of residential flats

{B) Sule of services

Construction revenue

Toll revenue

Lease rentals

Maintenance and other receips
Utility income

Parking fees income

Project management consultancy fees
Asset Management Charges Income

Note 37
Other income

Interest income on fixed deposits with banks

Interest income on Inter corporate deposits / non convertible
debentures

Interest on income-tax refund

Profit on sale of cerrent investments in Mutual Funds

Mark to Market gain on current investment in Mutual funds
Profit on sale of Property Plant and equipment

Other income from residential projects

Excess provision writien buck

Provision for credit impaired Trade Receivables no tonger required
written back

Miscellaneous income

A

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

9,689 13,050
26,915 68417
22,276 12,753
49,918 48,077

6,428 6.911

2,683 5614

1,090 1,296

893 1,625
164 i36
1,20,056 1,57,879
967 567
1,716 3,299
180 206
738 892
62 435

- I
m 50
. 10

- 172
228 365
4,001 5,998




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Confinued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs})
31 March 2020

MNote 38
Cost of materials consumed

31 March 2020

Opening balance - Bought out construction materials 52 52
Less: Closing inventones - (52)
A 52 -
Expenditure incurved during the year:
Opening stock of Tnventories - Finished Goods and Work in Progress 33,538 43,589
Addition during the year
Construction cost 725 1.950
Approval and permission expenses 2 26
Professional fees and technical fees 36 69
Other expenses 17 20
B 34,315 45,654
A+B 34,367 45,654
Less: Closing Stock of Inventories - Finished goods and Work in progress 27,125 33,535
Cost of flats sold * 7,238 12,119
Foot Note:
* Includes NRY provision on inventories of Rs. Nil Lakhs (2020 Rs. 1.420.78 Lakhs).
Note 39
Construction costs {or Toll Roads 26,229 64,023
26,229 64,023
Note 40
Employce benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 8.229 7.608
Contributions to : Provident and pension funds 199 223
Staff weltare i51 255
Gratuity expenses 217 37
Compensaled absences 129 (35)
Less: capitalised to investment property under construction (46) {26}
Less: capitalised to intangible assets under development (165) (77)
8,714 7,985
Note 41
Finance costs
Interesi costs:
- on ternn loans and NCD's from Banks and Financial Instimiiions 58,119 17,160
- on cash credit and overdratts from Banks - 142
- on commerctal paper from Mutua! Funds 3.939 [1.250
MTM on forward contraci 233 33
Finance charges 392 1.594
Unwinding of interest expense 7,781 5.666
less: capitalised io investmenl property under construction {1,655) {5,300)
less: capitalised to intangible assets under development (751) (353
60,058 60,186

&



Tata Reaity and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Note 42

Other expenses

Power and fuel 2,580 3,297
Provision for diminution in value of Investments (Refer Note 9) 8,456 -
[mpaimment 1 value of Intangible asset under SCA and Building - 11314
{Refer Note 50(a))

Repairs and mainienance

- Building 43 0

- Plant & Machinery - 53

- Provision for Major Maintenance of Road (Refer Note 27} 1,818 1.21

- Provision for Major Maintenance of Others Assets 183 -

- Others 740 482
Project operating and maintenance charges §.291 7.139
Fair vafue loss on derivatives (net) 2,252 103
Adverlisement and business promolion expenses 178 1,098
Legal and professional fees 2,104 3,195
Rates and taxes 421 1,162
Rent (Refer Note 47 2356 322
Travelling and conveyance 165 303
Bank charges 44 124
Telephone and communication expenses 16 55
Business development expenses - §35
Training and recruitment expenscs 48 15
Provisions and write-offs:

Provision for credit impaired Trade Receivabies - 306

Advance written off - 207

Provision for credit impaired Inter corporate deposiis - 517
Loss on account of dispesal ol investments in subsidiarics ¢ Refer - 314
Note 50(b)}

Auditor's remuneration { Refer fool note below) 110 {E4]
Brokerage 451 768
Arbitralion Award paid - 1.120
[nsurance charges 400 140
Fees to NHAI 90 86
Printing, courier and stationery 9 13
Directors siting fees 68 43
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 1
Expendimtre on Corporate Social Responsibility 65 83
Compensation paid to vendors - 232
Miscetlaneous expenses 304 190
29,394 37,951
Foot Note:
Auditor's remuneration include payments towards:
- Yor stattory audit 78 [
- for taxation matier 12 I3
- (or other services 22 22
il 100

A



Tata Realty and {nfrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated fi fal st (Conrinued)
for the vear exded 31 March 2021

wCurrenwy: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Nete 43
Earnings per share

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Basic earnlngs per share
Loss after tax anributable o squity shareholters A (29451 3b,256)
Numnber of equity shares ouistanding a the beginning of the year i,01,73,07.692 1,01,73,07,692
Equity share< alloted ur 9 April 2020 BEN0,00,000 -
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the vear 1.61.73.07.692 L0} 73,007,697
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the yzar B 1.60,41,57.007 1.01,73,07,692

Rights Share application maney recerved during the year - pending allotment - 60,000,000
Wemhted svernge number of equity shares vutstanding during Lhe year C L60.41,57.007 1.61,73,07,692
Basic earnings pet share of face value of Rs 10 each [D=AB| {1.82) (3560
Diluted earnings per share

Duluted eamings per share of face value of INR |0 each * JE = AC] {1.82} $3.56)
* EPS for 31 March, 2020 is anti-dilutive - hence not considered

Nate 44
Contingencies and commitments
(i} Contingent Liabilities (Refer fnotnote 1}

Claims agatnst the Group not acknow kedged as debts 31 March 2621 31 March 2020

- Direct 1ax T 1460

- [ndirect tax 973 do7

- Dther Legal Claims 55 602
Faot Nates

1. The Group does not expect any outflow of econamic tesaurces in respect of the aboi¢ and therefore no provision s made in respect thereof.
(i{) Commitments
tat Indernminy for representabons and warranties fur disinvestment in retail busmess - INR 1,354 [akhs {20270: INR 1,330 lakhs).

{b) Bank yuarantee issued on behalf of the Paremt Company and as Subsidiarics and Jaint Ventures om ef the uverall non fund based iimits of the Company -
INR 18, 172,37 Lakhs {2020: INR 7,222 lakhs)

(cy The Parent Company has wsued Curporate Guarantees 19 banks in respect of loans avauled by a jownr venrure 12 Pune Solapur Bxpresswiss Private
Limited - INR 19,749 { akhs {2020 [NR Nil lakhs}

1d} The Parent Company  has issued lerter of comfort (o banks i respect of loans availed by a few of its subsidanes and join v ennures

Name of sabsidiaries / jeint ventures Nature of Comfort given
i [Mikade Realtors Pyt Lid Shorifall undertakiuge to meet any shofall during the wrcre of Gvility
i |Arow Infiz Estates Prisate Limited Shewrfall ondenaking 1o meet shortfall in debt service  repayment of
installments

te) The Parent Company has issued fingociel support letter to following subsidiaries and joint venrures an the basis of which the separate
Mnancinls statements have been prepared oo going concern basis

11 Acme Living Solutions Private Limiied

) MIA Infrastrucrure Private Liniled

3) Wellkept Facilily Managemenl Services Privare Limared (Previoush knowr as TRIL Hosputahiy Private Limied)
4} TRIF Gurgaonn Housing Projecis Private Limited

3) Gureraon Constructwel! Private Limited

4) HV Farms Privale Limited

7) TRIL Roads Private Limited

83 TRII Urban Transport Pritate Lymiied

9) ltermationa! Infrabuild Povate Limited

4



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continied)
for the vear ended 3§ Varch XM

(Currency: Indian rupees n lakhs)

g

e

~

Note 48
Capital a0d other commibments

Padficulars 31 March 20210 31 March 2020

Fstunated amount of contracts remaining 12 be executed on capal accownt and not provided for tnet of 15301 33024
advances)

Mote 46
Segment reporting

. Basls for segmextation

The Group has three reporiable sciments, as described below, which are the Group's strategic business unils These business units offer different praducts
and semvices. and are managed separately because they require different technelogy and marketing straleyiss

The followmy surmmary describes the operations in zach of the Group’s reporiable sepments’
Reportable sepmeat

- Development of Residential propemy for vutnight sale

- Real Estate

- [nfrasmuchure

Information ahoni repertable sepments

Information regarding the results of each repartable seyment i5 included below Performance 1s measured based on sesment profit (before 184), as ncluded
in the internal munagement reports thal are reviewed by the Group's CODM  Sepment profil 15 used to measure performance as manzgement befieves that
such informalion is the most relevant i evalvating the resuils of certain segments relative o other entities that operate within these industries. [nter-segment
priving & determined an an arm's lengeh basis.

Refer Annesure 4

. Infermation aboul major cusieniers

There are na customers fimm w hom Group recognises rey enye more Lthan 1% of tofal res enue of the Group,




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

Jor the vear ended 31 Murch 20121
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Refer Note No. 46
Annexure A

Particulars

Development of residential
property for outright sale

Real Estate

InfraStructure

Unallocated

Tota)

31 March 2021] 3! March 2020] 31 March 2021] 31 March 2020] 31 March 2021] 31 March 2020] 31 March 2021] 31 March 2020 31 March 2021] 31 March 2020
REVENLE
Net sales
Sepgment Revenue 10,183 13,609 60,066 62.224 49,886 81,563 4,012 6.48) 1.24,147 1.63.877
Total revenue 10,183 13,609 60,066 62.224 49,886 81,563 4,012 6481 1.24.147 1.63.877
Segment Expenses 8,378 14,062 18,251 25,103 34,665 71.517 10,282 11,397 71.575 1.22.079
RESULT
Segment Result 1.805 {453) 41,415 37,121 15,220 10.046 (6,269) (4.915) 52,872 41,799
Fiance costs - - 22.9%0 24.725 15,960 6964 21,908 28,497 60,058 60,186
Depreciation / Amoruisution / Impairment 15 8 16,313 15410 4,404 1.649 202 184 20,934 17.251]
Net loss before taxes and share of joint 1,791 (461) 2512 (3.014} (5,044) 1,433 (27.579) {33.596) (28,420) (35,638)
ventures
OTIIER INFORMATION
ASSETS
Sepment Agsels 27,615 34,803 484077 4 94 663 4,049,683 367,009 1.61,307 1.83.109 10,82,652 113,80,244
Total Assets 27,615 34,803 484077 +4,94.663 4,09,683 3.67.669 1.61,307 1.83.109 10,852,682 10,80,244
LIABILITIES
Segment Liabilities 4,029 4.484 3,15,688 346266 3.30,795 294277 349,344 322,192 9,99.856 9.6721%
Total Liabilties 4,029 4,484 31,15,688 346,200 3,30,795 2,94.277 349,344 322,192 9,99.856 967219




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated Minaocial starements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 21021

{Currency: Indian rupees in likhs)

1)

Note 47

Lease amangements

Operating keases - as a lessee

The Group has 1aken various premises undet cancellable operating leases,

The Group has also taken o commercial property and certain residential premises on non-cancellable operatung leases. The future munimum lease pavmenis

i respect of these properies as on 31 Aarch 2021 s as RHows

Lease Payments

INot later than one jyear
Later than ane year bul not fater than five years
Lates than five years

Payments of lease remtals dunng the year

31 March 2011

31 March 2020

133

"
ta
&

20
133

There are no exceptionat restrictive covcnants i the lease agreements

As a lessor:

QOperating Lease

The Group has leased some investment properties As op 31 March 2021 the furure mintnum lease payments in respect of these propertics ul) the expiry

of luck in peried i as follows

Mot iater than one vear
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later thag five years

l.ease Rental ncome for the year

3 March 2621

31 March 2020

40,604 46,132
79,138 1,532,983
12,991 H.aoTl
132733 123,784
10958 48,077

Finance leases - Fit-out and interior work

The Group's leasing arrangeinent tepresents the fit-oul or interior work completed [or the cusiomers which have been classified under Ind AS o as
Finance lease. The lease terms are for the perivds of five to seven years whare substantially all the risks and rewards of vwnership are transferred 1o the
lessee The Groug records dispasal of the poperty concetned and recognizis the subSequent interest in the finanee lease. ho contingent renl s recenable in

thus repard,
Fiiance leases are receivable as follows

Giross investment in lease
Recanable within one year
Receivable betwvn one and five vears
Recetvable after five years

Present valite of minimum lease pay ments
Mot later than ore year

Later than one vear tut Aot later than 3 years
Later than 5 years

31 March 2021

31 Mareh 2020

& 201
253 2H
B2 128
386 573

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

E 14
156 K5 ]
74 109
152 387

Nole 48
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprties Development Act, 2006, { MSMED) which came into force from 2 Gcetober 2006, canain disclosures are

required 10 be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprisss. On the hasis

nro outstanding dues 1o the Micre, Snall and Medium enterprises as defiued in the MSMED as sel vul in following disclosure:

1 the informaticn and records avaitable with the Management, there are

Principal amount remainmg unpaid 1o any supplier as at the vear end (s, for less than 31
days)

Interest due therean

The amaunt of interest paid by the buyer a5 per the Micro Smatl and Medium Enterpmses
D eloprment Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, ZHIG}

The amuounts of the pavments made ta micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed
day during each accounLmnyg vear

The ampunt of inlerest due and pavable for 1he period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed dav dunng the year) but withowt adding the
interest specified under MEMEE Ach. 2006

The arpount of mierest 2corued and remarng wipaid at the end of eact sueounine year

The amount of further intetest emaining due and payable even in the succeedme years,
untit such date when the interesi dues as above are actually paid to the small enierpnse
Amount of merest aceruid and remaiming unpad at the eod of the accounting y&ar

31 March 02

97

31 March 2020

&




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the ¢ lidated financial stat (Conri
tor the year ended 31 AMarch 2021
{Currency: Indian rupees m takhsy

Note 49

Espenditure o foreign eurrency {on acerual hasis) 31 March 2021 31 March 20204
Professional fees - 20
Training and conférence expenses ]

Travelling expenses - v
Membership & Subscription Expenses 11 b4
Note 50

{a) Impairment in vatue of Intangible asset onder SCA aad Duilding

As on 3lst March 2020, the Enterprise Valyz (as per the DCF technique) of the group s Invesiment Property and Insanygible Assets (Service Concession
Arrangements (3CAN m ane of its subsidiary te. International Infabuild Privaie Limied 13PL) is Rs 5463 lakhs which is Tess than the book value of Rs
16,777 lakhs. Therefore an impairment doss of Rs 11,314 lakhs has been revognized in the books of accounts The low enterpnse value primanly pertains
1o Multi Level Car Park and henee the miangible assets uader SUA periatnang to that assel s gntirely wiitlen down of Rs. 9,436 lakhs. The impaimrent over
and above the Intangible Assets under SCA pertams to the Rewil spave given on rent which is nepresented by Budding under Investment Property, henee
the balance amount of Rs 1,379 lakhs has been impaired thereftom As on 31st March 2023, the Entarprise Yalue of [TFL (a8 per the DOF technique) of the
rroup's Invesiment Property and tniangible Assets (SCA) 13 Rs 5,825 lakhs which 15 more than the book salue

tbi Loss on account of disposal of v in ies

Dunng the previous year the Group has disposed off invesiments wn lwo subsidiares i@ TRIL Ammitsar Projecis Limited and TRIF Rea! Estare
Development Limited as on December 79, 2019 for 2 sale consideration of Rs. 9 177 lakhs The amount of net asseix disposed off is Rs 9491 Lakhs
tinciuding goodwill al Rs. 2,163 lakhs} The et loss un disposal of nvestments nf s 314 Takhs has been charged to Statement of Profit & Loss Account

Note 5t

Disclosure in respect of Construction Contracts

For 1he Year For the Year
Parienlars emded March 31, | ended March
2021 31,2020
Conmact rrvenue recopnized 25 Fevenus %915 ST
duming the year
For the Year For the Year
Particalars ended March 3L, | ended March
2021 30,2020
Cumnulative rey enug recognized 266311 2.39.300
Comulatie costs incurred 254,168 2.27.906
Cugrlanve margins accounted 12116
Advances paid £.138
Retealion maney payable o3




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements (Comtinued)

far e vear ended 31 March 2021
1Currency: Indian nupees in lakhs)

Nate 52
Interests in other entires
{a) Subsidiaries

The Parent Company’s subsidianies at 31 March 2021 are set oul below

Place of % of ownership Interest

Name of entity busingss M March 2021 31 March 2020
Acme Living Salutions Peivate Limited Lndia 100.t0% L0G.00%
Arrow Infragstare Private Limited India 108.00% 110.00%
Gurgano Consoucovell Private Limuted India 100.00% (H).00%n
Gurgaon Realtech Limited India 100 00% 100 00%
TRIL Roads Private Limited lndha 104.00%s i00.00%
TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited India 100 00®q 100.0{%
TRIL Urban Transporr Private Limited India 1650 00% L0
Wellkept Faciliny Management Services Private [imned India 15002, 10000
TRIL Constructicns Limiced India 67.30% 67.50%
TRIL Infopark Limited trefer note no. (i) & Gl India 100.00% THIRVIE
Hampt Expressw ay Privare Limited India 100609 100.00%
HY Farms Private Limited India 100.00% LU
Inlematicnal Infrabutld Private Limuced (IIPL) Tndia 26.00% 26.00%
Dharamshala Ropeway Limited todia 74000, 74.00%
Manafi Ropeways Private Limated (upto 31 Aupust 2020 - {ndia - 7200%
72.00%)
Utchit Expressways Private Limited India KLU0, 100 0%
TRPL Roadways Private Limited {merged wily TRIL Indiz - U 0%
Rpads Private Limited w2 £ IsL Apnl, 2070)
Matheran Ropeways Private Limited India O, RAKHIEN
Durg Stivnath Expressways Private Limued Iodia 106.00% 100.00%
MIA lafrasmucture Private Limited tndia 100 00F 100 (5%
TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate One Private Limited Iadia HIY.L0%
TRIL Beagaturu Real Estate Two Prvate Limited Indiz 00.00% -
TRIL Benpaluru Real Estate Three Private Limited India 10U (%

Signkficunt judgement: consolidation of entities with tess than S6%% voting interest
i) Although the Group owns less than ane-hall of he voting power of intersational Infrabuild I'nvate Limited, it is able 1 conirol the company by vinue of an agreement with the other avestors of Iniemational Infabuild
Private Limited which inter-alia provides the Group wilh power to appoint majonry of the board of directors of [nlemnational Infrabuild Private Limited and power over relevant activities Consequently, the Group

cansalidaies 1ts investment 1o the company.

1) The Parent company has entered 10to calf opron wiih one of the shareholder of TRIL Infopark Lid expining on 10t July 2021 wherein the Pareat Compaay holds the call eprions Cowmpany has paid full consideration
of Rs 7,110 Lakis as vptier depostt Hence Parent company is consolidating sharehatding io TRIL Infopark Lid of the said sharcholder as stake held by it.

At} Similarly. the Parenr Company bas eatered mto put option with another shareholder of TRIL. Infopark Lid expiriop oo 30 September 2021 Based on the put oprion conditions Parent Company has prosided full liability
under ather currend fnanctal liabilities, since the put oprions Aghls are available with the other shareholders Hence, Parent Company 15 conselidating TRIL Infopark Ltd as TH0% subsidiary

Ib) Non-conirolling interests {NCI)

Sel out below 15 summarised Anancial wforntanon for each subsidiary that has non-controllig interests 10 the group The amounts disclesed for each subsidhary are before inter-company climinanons

Summarised bakince sheet

Dharamshala Ropeway Limited  TRIL Constructfons Limited  Manali Ropeways Private mrPL Muatheran Ropeways
Limited * Private Limited
51 parch 31 March 3% March 31 March  3iAJarch 31 March
m2 ny 2 2
31 Murch 2021 31 Barch 2020 31 Blarch 2021 020 31 Blarch 2021 2020 2021 2030 2021 1030
Non-current assels 15612 8.105 19,461 21984 3773 220 5,637 1.690 15958
Current assels 1067 159 R Ny 2ed3 L] 323 37 820 975
Non-current lizbilines 113761 {7.106) [CRIE] 18.868) {3,397 13.848) (7.079) - -
Current habilkues {2,348 {768) {18} 14a0) {240) 1323} (794) {2) i)
Net assels &10 589 12371 14,302 139 1.143 (1,905} 1,384 2463
Net assets attributable 1o NC1 1 K 5,308 6,098 - - - 193 216
Dharamshala Repeway Limited  TRIL Constructions Limited  Manali Ropeways Private PL Matheran Ropeways
Limited * Private Limited
31 BMarch 31 March 3 March 31 Murech 31 March 31 March
02 h 202 A m2 h 02
Al March 2021 31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2021 2020 31 March 2021 030 2011 2020 031 2020

Summarised statement of profit and loss
Revenve 6.64 225 - - - 414 488 47 58
{Loss}Profit {262} 1135 (2430 {034 (68} 1779 (3.55%} [kt 28
ocl 1] - - . - - - -
Total comprehensive income (263 {133) (2,430) {63) 168} t179) (9,559) N 26
Loss allocated 1 NC1 oy (35 1700} {203 {1 1376} (7074 (244 g
OC1 altocated w0 NCI - - - - - - - -
Tota! comprehensive income aflecated to NC1 (65) 135) (790) (2081 (19 (376} (7074 2 8
Loss 10 NCT Restricted 63 (351 (10 1208} - - - i E
Summarised cash flows
Cash fows from sperabng acovites 4359y 183 t5n (2580 ()] [l i34 1111 (34
Cash flows frowm investng achutes 2,69} 1936) - - 1230} {EBE) [T REER] 77 1877}
Cash flows from financing activines 4,778 i la7 H 253 234 0 730 Ly -
Neotincrease. {decrease] in cash and cash zqun alents i52) 146 {7 (3t it (24 {407} {354 1991}

* Sold dumng the vear

i
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Notes 1o the lidated finuncial (Comtinned)
fr thee vear ended 31 Marcl 2024
{Currensy- Indian rupees m lakhs)

Mote 52 {continued)

Trnierests in ather eatitics {continued)

{eh Tr ions with N ing
‘There e 0o wansactions svith non-contral g mierests m 20202021

{d) Iercets in joint venlures and axspciste

Set out below ere the joint ventwes and assocne of the group as ot 31 Margh 2021 which. w Ui epimen of the ducctars, nre matenial 1 the woup The couniry of incorposation or registrotien 18 also their prinemal place of business

Place of % of
Name of entity business mlvnurshm
et

[Fune Solapur Expresswoys Privine Limtied India RURITEA Jomyventere Equity method
A & T Road Construction Management and Operauon Privale India R Ipint ventwre  Equity method
Linuted

TRIL 174 frivate Limied Indin UG Junt ventere  Equity method
Mikado Realtors Pyt Lid Indin B Jomtvemure  Equiy method
Indugivial Minerats and Chegmicals Company Privatc Limited ladia T4 00%, Jointventuce  Egquity method
Pune I'T City Metn Ra Linited ledin s, Jomiventure  Equity method
Tata Housing Developent Cortpuay Limiied (redir nele No (i) India 20 23% Assgeiate  Equity method

107 Allhe phove joint ventures and sysocate are eagaged i e business of real eslate and mitastnuciure development . 1Lis o suategic invesiment which utilises e group’s knowledge nd expertise in the developmet of ren) estate and infrastrucre deelopment

(i) Sigmificant judgement Alhough the Group owas more thaa onc-hail af the voting pawer of TRIL IT4 Private Limited, Mikado Realiors Pyi. L., Industrial Minerals and Chemicals Company Privale Limied pnd Pune [T City Metro Rail Limiteg, 1t does nol fve control over these Componies The Gsoup hos
jomnt cuntral over these companics by viribe of an agreeinent with the other mvestars, In other words, decimans about the relevant activities - 1. those that signi feantly alfeet the retwms ol the or - reqquure the e copsent of the wmvestors Conscquently, the Group has classified »s inferest m
diese computues as joimly contolled ennty

tin Dunag the eurrent vear on 25 Marel 2021, the Group has mvested 1t (8,51,85,185 cquiy shoree of Rs 10 cach in Tuta Housing Development Compassy Limited (THDC) ai Rs 27 per shore for an agpregale amount of Rs 50,000 lokhs representing 20.23% cquity slake in THDC Thus w .t 25 March 2021,
THDC qualilics to beeomes assoanie of the Group  Thus irandachon being very cloge (o he yoar end, Mansgement 1a of the vigw (hat there would be na change in the camying value of intcrest in associate, Further, the Manngement is unable 1o aseaLain the lass {or praiit) alribulable (o period 25th Mareh, 2021
idete of nequisinon) 1o 315t March. 2021 and b therelore not inctuded the Group's share of loss {or profit) from this asseciole n the cansolidated financial statcinents, the umount thereot. in any cast. 15 5ol kel 1o be mater!
e Group's share of the wiogcertomned losy (ram thiy assovidte muributable ta the lost soven day 8 of the finwcial year

L

of the totel consolideted loss of the Group a5 comparce io

somsideting the amo

{1v) Summarised financial information for assaciate and joint veutures

Pune Solapur Expressways A & T Road Consiruction Industriul Mineraks and  TRIL IT# Private Limited  Mikudo Realtars Pyt Lid Pune 11 City Metro Rail Tata Housing Total
Private Limited Management and Operation Chemicsls Company {Refer Note 9) Limited Develepment Compony
Private Limited Private Limited Limited #
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
oz Y March 2020 M Murch 202131 March 202070, 020 2021 2020 021 2020 21 2020 2021 2020 01 2020

Tereentage ownership interest S50V 5% % 50%, 4% T+% 4% 4% T Y Y% T4% TA% 20.23%
Current ugyets 1118 R 2 3 1,306 1LKIS 97 230 12 b 334 L2 308,707 525,645 17.51A
Norscurrent assels A2.R53 HET(H + - 17,047 14,398 pENE: 26,071 73430 35,461 17.235 4,792 1,77.950 383,103 151,598
Current liabilhies 708 11,520 ] | n 41 (1) 43,126 127 35017 ZE0K [ 410,287 425512 O
Honecursent liabilibies 82438 #3223 - - - - 51,295 13,546 0227 46,216 222 327 20432 400,614 143,302
Nl assets 5425 4,500 2 2 18283 18,322 {2597m 128.269 336 4316 17,549 a7 75998 93221 4,587
Group's share uf net assets 1,711 2248 1 I 13,529 13,558 (19.21B) (20,91 1912 3,094 10186 4220 1837 24,496 2308
Gondwill Recognised - - - - 4,302 B3 - - 13,685 27144 - - 34,626 61,702 35533
Carrying umount of @terest in asseciate and joim vealure L1 2248 1 1 21,921 21950 - - 21,597 30,335 16,136 +4.226 50,000 1,05.416 58,760

Pune Solapur Expressways A & T Road Cunsiruction Indusirial Minerals snd  TRIL IT4 Private Limited  Mikods Renllors Pvi Ltd Pune IT City Metro Rail Tatu Houging Total

Private Limited Management apnd Operation Chiemiraly Company {Refer Nate 9) Limited Develupment Company
Private Limited Private Limited Limited ¥

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 3! March 31 March 3 Morch 31 March 31 March 3t March 31 March

5 ised of profit and loss aopp 31 Morch 2020 31 March 2020 31 Murch 280 oy 2020 2021 20 2021 2020 2021 200 2021 2020 2021 2020
50% 0% 50% S50% T4% 4% T Yo TYa Y% Té% T4% 20.13%

Rovenue 16300 16,368 - - - - 9,853 BOUS 2 o 4.155 “+, 393 - I5499 29.638
Drepreciation dnd umoriisation 3,704 4364 - - - - 311 G580 i o I v - 6218 1845
Interest axperise ERE 8045 . - - 4 5313 5054 305 87 35 47 - £3,832 13.8%2
Lcoine iy epense - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
{Loss)/ Prafit (1,070} 153 m g8 {3 54 2299 (5.5471 [LIN (13t (343) 1250 - 290 (5.7003
Other comprehensn e seoms H 3 - - - . 1wy 0 - - 1 - - 2z 4
Toral comprehensive meoe (1,075} |36 [0}] oy (39 54 2200 15,3461 {341} {130} §512) {200} - 292 (5,763)
Group's share of loss (538} 77 {0 [§)] 2% S0 - - {281) {hy {3804 1210 - {1,228} (200)
Group's share of OCH o 2 - - - - - - - - 1 - - 1 2
Group's share of total compechensive income 1538) 7" 10y [§5] 29 4t - . - {282) L1aly (379 2151 - {1.227) (198)

* Shape of weame i cument year 18 gase of TRIL UT4 Priviate Limited 1s not considercd ull the Grawy's shere of net asscts in that Joint Venture becomes posizye
4 Bosed oit upsuduted firancial stalements
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Nofe 53
Finanginl 1nssruments — Fair valves 2nil rish menagement
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes ta the Consalidated financial statements

for the vear ended 31 March 2021

{Currency- Indian rupees in lakhsi

Note 33 (continued)

Ligquidiry risk

Liquidity nsk is the risk thet the Group will not be able (o meet its fingncial obligations as they become due. The Group manages its liquidity risk by cnsuring, as far as
possible, that it will always have sullicient liquidity to meet its fabtlities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, witheut incurring unaceepiable losses or
nisk to the Group’s reputation

The Graup has obiained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from vadous banks. Furthermore, the Group has access to funds from compulsory convertible and
non-convertible debentures from holding Group and other financial institwtion. The Group also constantly momtors tunding options availuble in the debt and capital markets
with a view to mainaining financial Qexibility

Expeosure te liquidity risk

The table belmy analyses the group's finuncia! liabilintes into relevant matrity groupings based on their contractual matuntics for:

* all non derivative linancizl liabilities

" net and gross seftled derivative financial instruments for which the contactual matunties are essential lor the understanding of the timing of the cash fows

3 March 2021

Non-derivative financial liabilities Contractual cash flows
Careyving amount 1 year or less 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years
Mon convertible debentures 2,316,689 72,500 94,500 F0.000 -
Financtal liability for premium payment 7,285 -4.833 7,334 14,054 224045
Interest- free security deposits from costomers 21,176 9,363 - 4611 -
Comunercial paper 1ssued 1o murual fund 63,799 &7.300 - -
Trade and other payables 6,131 6131 - - -
Loan and working capital facility from Banks and Financiai 300,202 353,669 39317 89,506 151,896
Institutions
Other financial labililies 17,394 37,394 - - B
940,876 232,843 141,171 188,172 5,785,941
Derivative financial liabilities
- Put opticn 21,074 19,633 - 14431 -
21,074 19,633 - 1,441 -

34 March 2020

Non-derivative (Tnancia) liabilitics Coniractual cash flows
Carrying umount 1 year or less 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years

Non convertible debentures 1,79412 40,000 72,500 67,000 -
Financial liabitity for premium payment 69,010 2,108 7078 13,570 2934673
Interest- tree security deposits from customers 12,406 1,616 - - B
Commercial paper issued to muteal find 73,303 77,300 - -
Trade and other payables 5879 3 R79 - - -
Loan and working capital facility (rom Banks and Financial 523135 66,979 46,094 62,713 3,600,504
Institutions
Other financial liabilities 42,643 30713 - 5933 -

917,797 2.30.798 1.25,673 148,616 6,54,217
Derivative financial fiabilities
- Pul opticn 18,823 17,432 - 1,391 -

1B,813 17,432 - 1391 -

K



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Naotes to the Consolidated financial statements

for the vear ended 31 Mareh 2021

{Currency: [ndian rupees in fakhs)

Note 53 (continued)

Credit Risk

Credit msk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty 0 @ financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principalty from the Group’s receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit fimits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group
granes credit terms in the normal course of business. The Group establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment
that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables, loans and advances and investments.

Trade and other receivahles

The Group's exposure to credit nsk is influenced mainly by the individual charmactenstics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default dsk of the mdusmy and country in which the customer operates, also has
an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
continuously menitoring the creditworthiness of customers 1o which the Group grants credit terms in the nomnal course of
business,

Credit risk for receivables pertrining to residential business
The rsk for trade receivables periaining to residential business is considered mil as the possession of the residential property

is transferred only after the reczipt of payment from the cusicmer.

Summary of the Group's exposure to credit fisk by age of the outstanding from vanous customers is as follows:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Neither past due nor impaired - -
Past due but not impaired
Past due 1-90 days 1,762 2375
Past due 91130 days 85 466
Past due 181-363 days 88 A
Past due more than 365 days - -

1,935 2,865

A



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
for the vear ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note 53 {confinued)

(ii) Intevest rate risk
Interest rate nisk is the risk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuale because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates borrowings

from financial institutions.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing {inancial instruments is as foliows

Particulars 3t March 2021 31 March 2020
Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 19,547 374108
Financial liabitities 3,94,089 3,47 345

Variable-rate instruments
Financial liabilities 4,67,259 4.84.090

Interest rate sensitivity - fixed rate instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial fiabilites at fair value through profit o
loss, and the Group daes not have any designate financial linbilities.

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in mierest rates at the reporting date would have increased /
decreased equily and profit or loss by amounts shown below  This analyses assumes that all other variables, in
particular, foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant. This calculation also assumes thai the change occurs at
the balance sheet dale and has been caleulated based on dsk exposures outstanding as ar that date, The period end
balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

100 bp increase [00 bp decrease

As at '31 March 2021
Variabie-rate instruments 4,673 (4,673)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 4,673 (4.6873)

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

As at *3]1 March 2020
Variable-rate instruments 4,841 {4.841)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 4,841 (4.841)

(Note: The impact is indrcated on the profit/loss and equity before tax basis)

&



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
for the vear ended 11 March 2021
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note 54
Capirtal Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base sv as to masntain investor, creditor and market confidence and 1o sustain tuture
development of the business. It sets the amount of eapiwal required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which
include capital and other strategic investments,

The funding requirement of the Group are met from fund and non-fund based working capital lines from vanous banks. Turthermore, the
Group has access to funds from compulsory convertible and non-convertible debentures from holding Group and other financial institution.
The Group’s policy 15 to use short-term and leng-term borrowings to meet anucipated funding requirements

The Group monitors capilal using a miio of “adjusted net debt to “adjusted equity’ For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligetions under finance leases, less cash and vash equivalents. Adjusted
equity comprises all components of equity other than amounts accumulated in the hedging reserve.

As a1 31 Morch As at 31 March

2021 2020
Total borrowings ¥.02.790 7.77.651
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 18,1596 29,940
Adjusted net debt 7,84,504 7,48.011
Adjusted equity 82,826 1,13.025
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equiry raric 9 7

X






Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated linancial statements (Continued)

Jar the vear ended 31 March 2021
(Currency’ Indian rupees in lakhs)

(i}

(ii)

{ii)

Note 56
Disciosure pursuant to Ind AS (9 on “"Employee Benefits”

The Group has adopted Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefils” as per L Companies (Indian Accounting $tandards) Rules, 2015 notified
under Section |33 of the Compantes Act, 2013 {'the Act'y and other relevant provisions of the Act

Contribution to Provident fund
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Contribution to provident fund recognised as an expense under "Employee henefits”. 199 223
Defined Benelit Plans
Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on death
or regignation or retirement caleulated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972 with no ceiling.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

I Change in the deflined benefit obligation

Liability at the beginning of the year 549 512
[nterest Cost 32 33
Current Service Cost 80 75
Benefit Paid {39 (112)
Actuarial Loss on obligations (176) (103)
Liability acquired on acquisiiion / {settled on Divestituie) 103 -
Others - 144
Liability at the end of the year 55t 549
Il Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Liahility al the end of the year 551 549
Fair Value of Plan Assels at the end of the year - -
Dnfference 351 349
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 551 349
IIT  Expenses Recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current Service Cost 80 75
Interest Cost 32 33
Net Actuarizl Loss o Be Recognised (176) (103)
Liability acquired on acquisition (settled on Divestiture) 105 -
Expense Recognised in statement of profit and loss 41 3
IV Balance Sheet Reconciliation
Opening net liability 549 512
Expense as above 41 5
Employers conuibution | paid) 39) (12
Others - 144
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet 53 549




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Sor the vear ended 31 March 2021
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

{iv) Defined Beoefit Plans (Continued)

(v

—

Gratuity (Continued) 31 March 2021 31 March 2010
VY Actuarial Assumptions :
Discount Rate 5.90% - 6.80% 3.35%
Salary escalation 6.00% - 7.00% 7.00%

Attrition Rate: Directors - Nil, Age 21-30 years - 5%, Age 31-40 years - 3%, Age 41-5% years -2%

Estimates of tuture salary increases, considered in actuanal valuation, take account of inflation, senionty, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market
The Group’s liability on account of gratuity is not funded and hence, the disclosures relating to the planned assets are not applicable.

3 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020

¥l  Experience Adjustments:

Defined benefit obtigation 551 549
Plan assets - -
Deficit) (551) (549)
Experience adjustment on plan liabifities (19 -

Experience adjustment on plan assets - -

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date 1o one of the refevant actanal assumptions, holding other assumptiens constan,
would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below,

M March 2021 31 March 20260
increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate { % movement} (270 280 (2.10) 2.20
Salary escalation (% movement) 280 (2.70) 220 {2.10)

Other long term employment benefits
Compensated absences
The liability owards compensated absences for the year ended 31 March 202[ recognised in the Balance Sheel based on actuarial

valuation usmg the projected unit credit method amounied o INR 748 lakhs (2020: INR 654 lakhs) and the charge 10 the Statement of
profit and loss amounted to INR 129 lakhs (2020: INR (35) lakhs)

4



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated Gnancial statements {Continued)
for the vear ended 31 March 2021

{Currency: Indian ripees in lakhs]

Note 57
Related Party Disclosures

Holding company:
Tata Sons Private Linzited

Joint Venture

TRIL IT4 Private Limited

Mikado Realtors Private Limited

[ndustrial Mincral and Chemicals Company Limited

Joint Venture of a Subsidiary

Pune Solapur Expressways Private Limited {a IV of TRIL Roads Private Lunited)
A & T Road Construction Management and Operation Private Limited

Pune [T City Metro Rai] Limited

Associate:
Tala Housing Development Company Limited (w.e.f. 25 March 2021}

Other related parties with whom transections lave taken place during the year:

Feltow Subsidiaries:

Ewart Investmenis Limited

Tata Consultapcy Services Limited

Tata AFS General Insurance Company [imited
Tala AlA Life Insurance Company [ imited
Tata ('apilal Financial Services Lmited
Infimty Retail Ltd,

Tala Asset Management Limited

Tata Housing Development Company Limited (upte 24 March 202 1)
Tata Elxsi Lid.

Tala Teleservices Lunited

THDC Management Services Lunied

Tala Consulting Engineers Ltd

Tata Electronics Private Limited

Key Management Personnel

Sanjay Dutt Managing Director & CEQ
Sanjay Sharma Chief Financial Officer
Sudhakar Shetty Company Secretary - w e.f. Ist December 2019

Vinay Gaokar Company Secretary - upta 30th November 2019



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Nuotes te the consolidated financial statements {Continued}
far the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs}

Related party disctosures (Coniinited)

Summary of related party manssctions

Transactions Holding Fellow
CHTpany Subsidiaries

Joint Ventures

Associates

Key Management
Personnel

Tatsl

1

-

-

Share Applicarion Money Received

lallotment made during FY 2020-21;

31 March 2021 .
31 March 2020 1,20,000

1,20,000

Tata Sons Private Linnted
31 March 2021 - -
31 March 2020 1.20,000 -

Unsecared loan Given
3t Mareh 2021 - 2,000
31 March 2020 - -

1.20.000

2

Tata Housing Develepment Company Limited

31 March 2027 - 2,000
31 March 2020 - .
Unsecured logn taken

31 March 2027 - -
31 Mareh 2020 - 43,590

2000

Tata Housing Development Company Limited
31 March 2021 -
3§ March 2020 - 43500

Unsecured loan repaid
3) March 2021 - N
31 March 2020 - 37,390

Tata Housing Development Company Limited
3) March 2021 - -
31 Mareh 2020 - 57,390

Interest expenses on unsecured fpans
31 March 20214 - -
31 March 2020 - o]

840

Tata Heusing Development Company Limited
31 March 207t - -
31 March 2020 - &8

Purchase of property, plant and equipmest
31 March 2021 - 32
31 March 2020 - 1

B4b

3

[ofinaty Retail Limited

31 March 2021 -

3} March 2010 - 1
Tata Consultancy Services Limited

31 March 2021 - 32
31 March 2020 - -

Purchase of lovestments
31 March 2021 - 50,000
3§ March 2020 - .

[ndustrial Minerals and Chemicals Private Limiwed

31 March 2021

31 Masch 2020 - -
Pune IT City Memo Rail Limited

31 Mareh 2031 - -
31 March 2020 - -
A & T Read Construction

31 March 2021 -

31 March 2020

Tara Housing Detelupment Company Limiied *

31 March 2021 - 30,000
31 March 2020 - -
* Post acquisibion the fellow subsidiary has become an associate,

¥

Sta0e




Tata Realty and [nfrastructure Limited

Nates to the consolidated financial statements (Comfinued)

Jor the veur ended 34 March 2021
1Currency: Indian rupees n lakhs)

Related parry diselosures (Conrinued)

Summury of related party transactions

31 March 2020

Traosactions Rolding Fellow Joint Ventures A Key Manag Total
conpany Subsidiaries Porsonnel

8 Asser Management Consultancy fees

31 March 2021 - 169 - - 169

31 March 2020 - - 136 - - 136

TRIL IT4 Private Limited

31 March 2021 - - 169 - 169

31 March 2020 - - 136 136
% Pruject Management Consultancy fees

3] March 2021 - - o047 - a7

3) March 2020 - 1,623 - t625

Mikado Realtors Private Limited

31 Mareh 2021 - - an? - 202

31 March 2020 1485 - - 1 433

TRIL IT4 Private Limited

31 March 2021 - 43 - 43

31 Mareh 2024 p40 - 140
1D Inserest fncome

31 March 2021 - - 1 65 - L4835

3| March 2020 - - [ 463 - - 1468

TRIL IT4 Private Limited

31 March 2021 - 1463 - - 463

31 March 2020 - - 1403 - 1463
11 Rent lucome

3) March 2071 - -+ 788 - 4,788

31 March 2020 - 747 - - 4,747

Tata Consultancy Senices Limoted

31-Mar-| - 4683 - - 4,083

3t-Mar-20 - <727 - - 4723

‘Tata Housing Des efopment Company Limuted

31-Mar-21 [BE - 103

31-Mar-20 25 - - 25
12 Manageriul remuaeranion -

31 March 2023 1o 1,05

31 Mareh 2020 - 1,133 1133
I3 Reimbursement of expenses {receivabie}

31 March 2021 ol 422 [T - 1,156

31 March 2020 a7 36 Fi] - - 1037

Tara Sons Private Limited

31 March 2021 62 - - - - 61

31 March 2020 h - - - a7

Tata Heusing Development Company Limited

3| March 2021 407 - - 07

34 Mareh 2020 - 300 - - - 300

Ewarl [nvestment Limited

31 March 2021 - - -

31 March 2020 | - - 1

[HDC Managemen Sen ives Linuted

31 March 2024 - 14 - - 16

31 March 2020 - - - -

Tata Senfees Limuted

31 March 201 - - - -

31 March 2421 4+ - 4

Mikado Realtors Priv ate Limited

31 March 2021 3 - A3

31 March 2020 - 4 - 4

Pune Solapur Expressway s Prisate Linnied

31 Mareh 2021 3 il

31 March 2020 - 30 - 30

TRILITS Prvate Limuted

31 March 2021 - [ a

31 March 2020 - 26 - hsi)

Pune IT City Mero Rasl Limited

2 March 1021 - - 037 - R 637

- 33 - - 513




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidaled financial statements (Contivtued)
Jor the vear ended 31 March 202}

{Currency Indian rupees in takhs)

Related perty disclosures {Connued)

Swmmary of related party fransactions

Holding
company

Transactions

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Joint Ventures

Associages

Key Management
Personnel

Total

Services Recerved
31 March 2021
31 March 2020

12

1Y

500
39

Tawa AIG General \nsurance Limited
31 March 2621

31 March 2076

Tala AlA Life insurance Limited
31 Mareh 202)

31 March 2020

Tata Sons Private Lumuted

31 March 2621

31 March 1020

Ewart Investment Limited

3) March 2021

33 March 2020

Tata Consuhing Engineers Lid
31 March 2021

31 March 2021

Tata Telesenicas | td

31 March 2021

31 Mareh 2020

Tata Communicztons Lid

31 March 202]

31 March 2020

Tata Consultancy Senvices Limited
31 Mareh 2021

31 March 2020

Pune [T City Metro Raid Limeted
3i March 2021

1) Marek 2020

Balances receivable at the year-vad

Tawurds ndvance, interest and other expenses

31 March 2021
31 March 2020

113

238

v

4

871

=

[

31
14

10

Pune Solapur Expressways Privale Limited
31 March 2021

31 March 2620

Tata Sons Private Limited

31 March 2021

3t March 2020

TRIL T4 Private Limited

34 March 2021

31 Mareh 2020

Mikado Realtors Private Limited
31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Tala Cansunting Engineers L
31 March 202)

21 March 2020

Tata Housing Des clopmem Company Linited
3t March 2021

31 March 2020

Pune [T City Metro Radl Limited
30 Mareh 2021

31 March 2070

4

EiE]

g
b

vy

s i




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Caniinued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian nipees in tzkhs)

Related party disclosures (Cantinued)

Summary of related party trapsactions

Traosacrions Holding
compaoy

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Joint Ventures

Associates

Key Mavagerment
Personnel

Total

i) Deposits placed
31 March 2021

31 March 2020 .

40
240

Ewart Imy estments Limited
31 March 2020 -
31 March 2020 -

i) Trode receivables
31 March 2021 -
31 March 2020

1a
a

240
240

8l
0

{1

Bl6
763

Tata Consuhancy Sen ices Limited

31 March 2021 -
31 March 2020 .
Taia Sons Private Limzted

31 March 2021 -
31 March 2020

Tata Housing Des elopiment Compans Litmiled

31 March 2021 -
31 March 2620

1
[y

16 Balances pavable at the vear-end

JTowards advagees from custormers

31 March 2021 -
31 March 2020 -

30
O

o

T

8
RETH

[N
s

Tata Consultancy Senaces Limited
31 March 2071 -
31 Mageh 2020 -

1

Towards expenses
31 March 2021
31 March 2020 ©

14

Tatz Sons Prt, Limited

3i March 2021

31 March 2020

Tata Consultancy Services Linied

34 March 2021 -
31 March 2020

Taia Teleservices Limited

31 March 2621 -
31 March 2020 -
Tata Consulting Engineers Limited

31 March 2021

31 March 2020 -
Pune IT City Metro Rail Limited

31 March 2021 -
31 darch 1020 -
Tata Communications Lid

31 March 202} -
3| March 2020 -

&

L




Tata Realty and Infrastructuere Limited
Nates to the consolidated financial statements
for the vear ended 31 March 2024

{Currency ! lodian rupees in lakhs)

Naote 58

Addhtional information pursunnt to paragraph 7 of Division i of Schedute 11 to the Companies Act 2013 "General
wnstruchions tor the preparation of consohdated financial stalements’ of Division IT of Schedule [T

Part &
March 2021
Net Assets Share in prafit er loss Share In other comprehensive Share in total cemprehensive income
(Taotal Accats - Tolral Liabilitles) income
Name of the entity
Asa%aof Amount Asa%of Arnount Asa % of Amount As 2 % of tatal Amaunt
cgnsolidated niet consalidsted consalidated other tomprehensive
assets profit or loss camprahensive inceme
inrnme.

Parent

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Lintited 5235% 3.04,360 48.45% 19,636} 78.88% 20,669 15332% 11,033
Subsidiarles

Indian

Acme Living Sotutians Private Limited 0.00% {3} 2.00% . 0.00% 0.00% -
Arrow Infra Estates Private Limited -0.26% 1,531} 9.51% {LEZ1} 0.00% 26.268% {1,891
|Gurgacn Constrectwel! Private Limited 0.30% 1,752 4 58% {911y 0 00% 12.66% [o11h
Gurgaon Realtech Limited 0.08% 478 4.56% (906} 0.00% . -12.59% {206}
TRIL Roads Private Limited 5.15% 29,954 20.34% 14,045} 24.96% 6,541 34 68% 2,495
TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited 0.00% {a) 0.00% - 0.09% - C00% -
TRIL Urbkan Transpom Private Limited 1R3% 10,620 7.30% {1,451) -1.85% 11,008} 34.17% {2.459)
Wallkept Faciity Management Secvices Private Limited 0.00% {z) 0.40% (1) 0.00% 0.01% [$1)
TR Canstiuctions Limited 213% 12371 12.22% 12,4300 0 00% - 33.77% {2,430}
TRIL infopark Limited 8.98% 52,239 A2.28% 2,409 -0.01% {3y 116.81% 8406
Hamgl Expressway Private Limited 383% 22283 30.26% {6,018] 0.00% 1 B3 62% {6,017}
H¥ Farma Private Limited 018% 1,064 0Q0% {0} 0.00% - 0.00% {oy
international tnfrabuild Private Limited 0.20% 1143 3.91% {779) 0.00% -10.82% {77g}
Dharamshala Ropeway Limited 0.09% 508 1.33% (264} 0.00% 0 -3.66% i264)
Uchit Expressways Private Limited 361% 21,023 -l59% 17 0.01% 3 4.45% ERi)
Durg Shivnath Exaressways Pyt Ltd 2.05% 11,938 9.57% 1,904 0.00% 0 26.46% 1804
Matheran Ropeway Pvi Ltd Q.41% 2284 D 39% 77 0.00% -1.07% {72}
TRIL Benaaluru Real Estate One Private Limited 0.00% o) 0.00% o} .00 0.00% {a)
TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate Two Private Limited 0.00% (63} 0.00% (o) 0.00% 000% (o)
TRIL Bangaluru Rezl Estate Three Private timited 0.00% 1a) 0.00% (o 0.00% 000% {0}
MIA tnfrastructure Privata Limited -0.01% {314 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00% -
Non-controlling interests in all subsidiaries 095% 5,502 A4,43% {212) 0.00% G N0% -
Joint Ventures and Associate {investment as per equity method)

Indian

Pune Solapur Expressways Private Limited 0 25% 1711 2.70% (538} 0.00% F AT (538)
A & T Rpad Construction tManagement and Operation Private Limned 0.00% 1 0" 1)) 0.00% 0.0 (s34
TRIL 1T4 Private Limited 0.00% . 000 - 0.00% 0.00% -
Mikado Realtors Pvt. Lid. 371% 21,557 142% {222} 0.00% 391% {282}
Industrial Minerals and Chaemicals Company Private Limited 3.77% 21971 0.14% {29) 0.00% 0.4 {23}
Pune IT City Metro Rail Limited 175% 10,186 181% (379} 0.0 5.27% (275
Tata Housing Devefopment Company Limited 8 6% 50,000 B8.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -
Total 100.60% 581,558 100.00% {19,890}/ 100.00% 25,204 100.06% ¥.196
Conrsolidation Adjustment (4,98,732) {3,561} {26,070} {36,513}
Total 82,826 {29,451} 134 {28,317




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Bdsied i

Nates 1o fhe {7 i}
Jur the aeor etndeed 3 Afiecd 2021
[Cotency ludwn mpees i lokhst
Part 8
Mute of e enlily Heporitag | Exclinoge Rate | Share Capital Reserve and Total Avsetn oln] Lialiiltiey Evesiment Turanver ! Taral Income Feofie Befnre | Proviston fur | Profil Atter | Proposed *aal
Curreney Surpluy Total Hevenue Tuv Turslion Taxativn | Blvidend | Sharchulding
Puren)
Fria fealte s ndrastiane Lunied INK 1 (R 142724 o Hxu bl ERYISE] gy 150k [LREm
Subudhur
Iadiun
Avine | g Solisios Privete Dimilad MK ) o 5 114y 1" e - - - - - [HRTE
Attow iha Falates ['evute Lapied NK Tun I S0 207 LT - V201 1245 LRy LESN - LHEGTS
O Custrietsedl 3493 e | inted INI (LN k 1,745 i £ Rel Ky - - n IR 1145} LI B 0 Loy
Lt gosan Renblect L ionsed MR | il T A7) LR LY PRl ) - L (Nt - 0y . 1O 00
PRAL. Juuds Fenase Eannted 1ML (K17 15 pUARY] 121 4t [RRXE el - [RE1 [ERLT] s [RXIZEN - [EEINS
LN i | s Frajests Prvite Tuled INK 1o 5 [} " (R} - . - - - - - 14160 D
LY. Vit Gonspor Posie Lended 1K (NED) 12501 2 JLYSC (LX) 3 UK - A3 i3 M1y [LRCEN] - 108 {0,
Wielhept Faclity Maragenient Services fvole | onfed INK I un AU 42 + T - - ] - tly - OO0
PRI onstictuniy Laniied 1N (L0 nls 1750 A ih532y, B - - [RERIN - 1150 - 67 5
DI, Ditvpach Lutied INK [ (RS 152740 VAN sy IR i S4245 54411 Balrr B H o - (RN TIELH
Flasegu I-xpreassvay Prneate 1 omiled M (KL RELEY T 10271 [IRLEEES) . [NET LS b TRELY] iy [{EHEN - [LETR{TEe
HY Fatma iamate Cmned 1k 1 I [RICE o7 en - 1 iy - iy - [N T
Intei matnal Dfubiadd Poste it (1313 b 1133 ER [T Ak A 111 iy [FIN 177 - Fo T,
Dburanistulu Ropesiy Duatied [ 1de gl 16,173 . 7 315 t51} 12ty . T
Vehit b spresasan s Pres ale Lipnled [ S A b2 IEI W b 2 % we s i - FTRNEE Y
Durg Shuviwth | spresssass 15 il [ 4kt s TN " o 25 et o) - (0] 1,
Mullinin Kapeway (51K [ IR L5 - 47 iy ? 173 - bty
TR Bewggabori Kool Fatale One Proote | goted 1o W [ 1+ - - . B N - 108 (18
PRI Rengetunt kel Fataie P Vit | maied o u I n . - 1y - an - [CHRTHA
VIRU. Herlguburn Kot Erie Thice Private Lined I on n iy “ - - . i1y - 101 - VEHH
A Tairastuctne Privat Limiled 1 1Hy 271 (AU i - - - B - - [EORV G
3,118,352 162,208 16,400,547 {11.65306) 566,936 1,21 087 140,574 17.760) 125 117.78¢)
Ansuciures anil Joing Yentures
ne 0f fhe Assnchates / Julnl Venluren Latrst Mo, 5Han ¢3 of thie Amounl of Extent uf Orescripplon of Bin there 13 mgaifiennt tnflursee | Feason why the Netmorth Proflt ! Lias fur the vew
audited Aasurinre £ ot | Investinent b NHulding Assuchute ! nlicibutalibc 1o
Balanee | ¥entues held by| Awsorlates / Juint doint ¥enture | Shurehalding a
Sher) dute ite Compiny Yealure i ot ner lutest
Runuiie
Cuonidered o | Nea Conelfeyed)
Cowselldating | e Conswlidintive
Jow Yengires
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Tata Realty and infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for che year ended 31 March 2021
(Currency! Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note 59
Events afier the balance sheet date
There zre no sipnificant subsequent evenis that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial siatements as on the balance sheet date.

Note 60

a) Receni proncuncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Comporate Aftain (MCA) through a notification. amended Schedule 11 ol the Companies Act, 2013, The amendrments revise Division L
[T and OI of the schedule [11 and are applicable from April 1. 2021, The Group is evaluating the elfects of the amendments on its financial statement.

b) Covid 19 Impact

The Group iz actively monitoring the impact of the global health pandemic vn its Nnaneiaf condition, liquidity, operations. supphers. industry, and workforce The
operations of the Group were impacted due to the stoppage of work at its project sites and corporate office following the nationwide lovkdown hy the Gavernment of India
oz March 23, 2020 The varous sites were impacted due to the lockdown for different periods of ime. depending on their location and local regulations. The Group has
resumed its operations jn & phased mantier as per the directives tssued by the Government of India and local authorities. However, since early March 2021 | India has
wimessed a second wave of COVID-19 with sudden rse in COVID-19 cases across the country This has again led to imposing lockdown like restrictions across the
country. which is likely io impact. the economic activity of the country as a whole and the Group's operations in particutar. The Group has used Lhe principies of prudence in
applying judgments. estimates and assumptions based on current assessments. In assessing the recoverability of assets such as inventores, financial assets and other assets.
based on curent indicators of future ceonomic conditions. the Group expects W recover the carrying amounts of s assets. The extent & which COVID -19 impacts the
operations will depend on future developments which remain uncertain

Note 61
Previous Year's Figures

Previous year figures have been regrouped reclassified io conform to curreni year presentation. wherever considered necessary.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
CiN U70102MH2007PLC 168300

Yo

Banmali Agrawala Sanjay Dutt
Chairman Managing Director
DIN - 060120029 DIN - 05251670

v A

Ly :’/ -
anjay Sharma > SudhaKar Shetty
Chief Financial Officer Company Secrelary

Membership No: A13200

Murnbai
17 June 2021



Tata Reaity and Infrastructure Limited

Statemnent pursuant to first provise to sub-section (3) of sectlon 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 5 of Companies [Accounts) Rutes, 2014 in the prescribed Form AOC-1

* % of share holding of the Company anc 1ts subsidiaries

Addhional detajls:

1
1
2
3
"
5
&
7

Name of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operation
TA:F Gurgaon Housing Prajects Pvt Limited

Atme Llving Solutions Pvr Limited

Woellkept Factity Management Services Private Limited

MIA Infrastructure Private Limited

Trll Bengaluru Real Estate One Private Limited

Trll Bengaluru Real Estaze Twp Private Limited

Trli Bengalury Real Estate "hree Private Limited

Name of subsidiaries which have been llquidated or sold during the year
Manali Rapeway Private Limited (upto 31 August 2020)

Name of subsidlaries which have been merged during the year
TRPL Roadways Privaie Limitec {merged witn TRiL Roads Private Limited {3 wholly awned subsidiary of Tata Aeaity and Infrastructure imited) w.e.f. 1st Apnl, 2020] under a schermne of merge

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Umited
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300

Nanjay Sharma
Chiel Finanesal Officer
UIN - GULZUULY [FIIEEYEFEFT

Place: Mumbar
Date: 17 lune 2021

Statemnent contalning sallent featurss af the financial of 5 / Assoclate panies / Joint Ventures
Part A: Subsidlaries
(X crares|
5r. Name of the subsidiary The date since | Reparting period |Reporting currency | Exchange rate | Share Capital | Reserves & | Totai Assets Total vestments | Turnover Profit Pravislon | Profit after | Proposed % of
Ne. when subsidiary | for the subsidiary as on the last Surplus Liabilities before for taxation dividend | sharcholding *
was acquired cancerned, if date of the taxation taxation
different from the relevant
halding Financlal year in
company's case of foreign
reporting periad subsidlaries !
i
'
1
| ’
|_A_[Tata Realty and tnfrastructure Limited NA 31-Mar-2021 (ndlan Rupees 1.00 1,617.32 1,427.29 6,67B.80 : 1634 {90.68) 5,68 | 96.36] -
subsidiaries: {
1 [Acmr Living Solutiens Private Limitec 27-Jan-2008 31-Mar-2021 Indian Rupees 1.00 0.05 {0.14) 0.00 Q - - - d 100.00%
|_2 |Arrow Infra Estates Private Limited 5-1an-2009 31-Mar-2021 Indian Rupees 1.00 0.10 (15.41) 23047 245 (1B.91] - (18.91) - 100.00%
3 _|Surgaan Constrictwet] Private Limuted 5-Jan-2008 31-Mar-2021 Indlan Rupees 1.00 0.07 17.45 116.00 58 i0.56) (2.45) (8.11) - 100.00%
4_|Gurgaen Realtech Limited 5-Jan-2008 31-Mar-2021 (ndlan Rupees 1.00 D.07 471 33458 328 3.C6) - (9.08) - 100.00%
5 |TRIL Roads Private Limited 18-Mar-200B 31-Mar-2021 indian Rupees 1.00 735 29179 1,219.63 520 43.30] (3.45) (40.45] - 100.00%
6 'TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private Limited 24-lun-2008 31-Mar-2021 ‘ndian Rupees 100 0.05 0.09! 0.00 a - L N - 100.00%
{ 7_|TRIL Urban Transpor: Private Limited 25-May-2007 3i-Mar-2021 | indun Aupees 1.00 125.63 {19.42) 186,59 8C 115.42] {0.31) (14.51] - 100.00%
r—_— 17-lan-2011 3i-Mar-2021
(8 wellkept Facllity Management Servicas Pyt. Ltd. Indrar Aupees 1.00 a.4a (0.42) 0.01 < {0.01) {0.01} - 100.00%
{ 9 [TRI Constructioes Limlted 25-Jun-2007 31-Mar-2021 Indiar Rupees 1,00 38,15 B7.56 2:3.03 95 24.30] {24.30) - 67.50%
10 |TRIL Infopark Limited 22-Mar-2015 31-Mar-202% Indian Rupeans 100 1,050.00 {527.61) 3,566.87 3.044 84.08 - 84,09 - 83.85%
11 |Hampi Exprassway Private Uimited 73-Apr-2015 31-Mar-2021 Indiar, Rupees 1.00 53.13 169,70 1627.25 | 1404 63.55) 13.37) 160.18) - 100.00%
12 |HV Farms Private Limited 25-Apr-2012 31-Mar-2021 Indian Rupees 1.00 0.03 10.63 073 < [0.00) - {0.00) - 100.06%
| 13 [Internatianal Infrabuild 2ravate Limited 1-Apr-2016 31-Mar-202) Ingian Rupees 1.00 010 1133 55.34 a3 {10.70) {2.91) (2.73) - 26.00%
14_|Dharamshala Ropeway Limited 8-May-2015 31-Mar-2021 Indlan Rupees 1.00 3.60 1.48 166.41 161 1315 10.51] (2.64) . 74.00%
15 |Uchat Private Limited 10-Oct-2016 31-Mar-2021 Indian Rupees 1.00 155.23 55.00 1.625.72 1,418 383 085 3.7 - 100.00%
16 |Ourg Shivnath Expressways Put, Ltd. 26-Apr-2017 31-Mar-2021 Indlan Rupees 1.00 23.62 55.76 338.85 215 25.41 6.40 19.04 . 100.00%
|17 |Matheran Ropeway Pvt. Ltd, 18-Jun-2017 31-Mar-2021 Iadlan Rupeas 1.00 7.50 16.34 2511 | i ___[070) .07 10.77} - 70.00%
| B-May-2020 31-Mar-2021
' 18 771l Bi ! Real £stare One Private Limited Indlan Rupces. 100 0.00 0.00] 0.00 ! C C.00) [0.00) - 100.00%
6-May-2020 31-Mar-2021
15 _|7ril engaturu Real Estate Two Private Limited trgian Rupees 1.00 0.0 [0.00} 0.00 c 0.00) (0.00) - 100.00%
6-May-2020 31-Mmar-2021
20 |Trit 3engaluri Aeal Estate Three Private Umited Indian Rupees 1.00 0.0 [0.004 0.00 c 0.00) - (0.08; . 10C.00%
21 |MIA infrastructure Arvate Limited 17-Cct-2017 31-Mar-2021 ingian Rupees 1.00 2.77 (3.08} 0.06 C - ] - N . 100.00%

| Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai.




Part B: Assoclates and Joint Ventures

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3} of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and fgint Ventures

| Name of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operation
1 A& T Road Construction Management and Operation Private Ltd

2 Pune iT City Metro Rail Limitea

Il Name of associates ar joint ventures which have been liguidated or sold during the year - Not Applicable

NI

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17 June 2021

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Directar
DIN - 05251670

Chief Financial Officer

Campany Seercrary
Membership Nu: A13200

Name of the entity Latest audited Date on which the Reporting Shares of the Assaciate / Joint Ventures held by | Description of how there is significant influence Reason why the Networth Profit / Loss for the year
balance sheet date ’ Associate or Joint currency the Company as on March 31, 2020 Associate / Joint Venture | attributable to
Venture was No of shares Amount of Extcnt of I5 not h: gas | C In | Not Considered
| assoclated or held by the Investment in helding per latest Consolidation |In Consolidation
l‘ acquired companyin |assoclate / joint {in balance sheet {® crores) (X croves)
associate / joint venture® percentage}*® (X crores}
venture * (X crores}
A.|Assoclate
T Tata Housing Development Company Limited 31-Mar-2021 25-Mar-21 Indlan Rupees 18,51,85,185 500.00 20.23% There is significant influence due to sparehalding | The entlty is cansalidated 153.74 -
and joint control over the econamic activities by way of equity
indirectly through parent company. accounting
| B. [Joint Ventures *
1 {Pune Solapur Expressways Privale Limited 31-Mar-2021 20-Mar-09 indian Rupees 23,856,711 103.00 50.00% There is significant infiuence due ta sharehaiding |The entity is cansolidated 1711 (5.38)
and jeint control over the ecanpmic actjvities by way of equity
indirectly Lhrough subsidiary company. accounting
2 |A & T Road Construction Management and 31-Mar-2021 02 May-13 Indian Rupees 30,000 o 530.00% There Is significant influence due a sharehoiding  |The entity is consolidated 0.01 {0.00)
Operation Private Limiteo and jolnt control aver the ecanomic activities by way of equity
indirectly through subsiciary company, accounting .
i
3 |TRILITS Private Limited 31-Mar-2021 17-Dec-14 indian Rupees 7,40,000 0.74 74.00% There Is significant influence due :a sharehoiding  {The entity is consolidated (192.18) - 17.01
and joint conzrol over the ecanomic activities. by way of equity
accaunting
4 [Mikadp Realtars Privaze Limited 31-Mar-2021 €7-5ep-16 indian Rupees 1,99,87,400 159.99 74.00% There Is significant influence cue ta sharehalding :The entlty is consolidated 29.12 (2.82)
and joint contro| over the ecanomic activizies. ;by way of equity
!ac:aunting
S |Industrial Minerals and Chemicais Company 31-Mar-2021 3i-Mar-17 Indian Rupees 3,256 0.03 74.00% There is significant influence due ta shareholdirg | The entlty Is cansolidated 135,29 {0.29)
Private Limited and jcint contrel over the economic activities. by way af eguity
accounting
6 |Pune {T City Metro Rajl Limited 31-Mar-2021 28-May-19 fnaian Rupees 9,87,97,395 98.80 74.00% There is significant Influence due ta sharehalding | The entity is consolidated 101.86 (3.79) -
and joint control over the econamic activities by way of equity i
indirectly thraugh subsldiary campany. accounting :
i
* Nodirect holoing tiy TRIL of 1he shares of Pune Solapur Expressways Private Limited, A & T Road Consiruction Management and Operation Pvt. Limlted and Pune [T City Metra Rail Limited.
of Pune Solapur Ekpressways Brlvate Limited s held as under: Shares of A & T Road C : and Operatior: Private Ltd Is held as under:
Number Amszunt of Inyestment  Extent of Holding Number Araunt of Exzent af Holding
In jomt Venture (X %} Investment in Joint (%}
crores} Venture (2 crores)
TRIL Raads Fravate Limited (WOS of 7RIL) 23,85,711 103.00 50% TRIL Roads Private Limited (WOS of TRIL) 30,000 c.03 50%
Atlantia SpA 23,86,711 103,00 50% Indian Infrastructure D Private Limiied 30,000 063 50%
Total 47,73,412 206.00 200% Total 60,000 0.08 200%
Shares of Pune IT City Metro Rall Limited 15 heid as wnder:
Number Amount of Investmen:  Extent of Halding
in Joint Venture (€ (%}
crares}
TRILUrban Transport Pyt Limited JWOS of TAILY 9,87,97,395 58.80 7%
Seimens Project Venture GMBH 3,47,72,600 3271 26%
Total 13,35,09,995 133.51 100%



